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Dear Shareholders, 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
5th Annual Report 2024-25 

Your directors take great pleasure in presenting the Sixth Annual Report along with the audited 
financial statements for FY 2025. 

Your Company is health-tech venture that aims to transform the healthcare sector in India. It 
offers a range of healthcare solutions and services. The mission is to provide platforms for 
customers to manage their healthcare needs 360°, covering wellness, inpatient (IPD) and 
outpatient (OPD) services. 

Company seeks to a) connect providers of healthcare such as hospitals, doctors, labs etc. 
with consumers of healthcare, and b) provide healthcare and claims management services to 
payers of healthcare expenditure such as insurance companies, employers and government, 
through an efficient digital platform. 

Company has built a network of over 100,000 doctors, more than 4,000 diagnostic points and 
over 15,000 hospitals where outpatient (OPD) and inpatient (I PD) transactions can be done 
on cashless basis. Over 95 lakh OPD and IPD health transactions have been processed and 
fulfilled digitally in FY2025. Company operates primarily through a consumer-facing app which 
allows customers to manage their plans, access network of healthcare providers, book 
appointments and store their health records for future references. Company is also a Wave 1 
partner of the Digital Health Mission of the National Health Authority (NHA). 

Company will seek to further its presence in the health-tech space through network expansion, 
expanding presence in managed care for employers, provide technology-based cognitive 
services including fraud identification and claims management to all insurance companies and 
further build on its wellness platform which includes nutritionist, mental health counselling, 
fitness and other benefits. 

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2025 have been 
disclosed as per Schedule Ill to the Companies Act, 2013 (the "Act") and IND AS. 

The highlights of the standalone financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 March 
2025 are given below: 

(Rs. in lakh 

Particulars For the year For the year 
ended on ended on 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Total income from operations 67,563.91 62,376.18 

Expenditure excludini:i depreciation 77,479.76 75,064.25 

Depreciation 3912.29 2,673.75 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (13,828.14) (15,361.83) 
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Particulars For the year For the year 
ended on ended on 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Provision for Tax- Current - -
Deferred - -

Profit/(Loss) after tax (13,828.14) (15,361.83) 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net 115.27 (95.70) 
of tax) 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the (13,712.87) (15,457.52) 
year 

The highlights of the Consolidated financial results of the Company for the year ended 31 
March 2025 are given below: 

Particulars For the year For the year 
ended on ended on 
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 

Total income from operations 89,176.28 62,376.18 

Expenditure excludinq depreciation 1,00,501.96 75,064.25 

Depreciation 6,930.90 2,673.75 

Profit/(Loss) before tax (18,256.58) (15,361.83) 

Provision for Tax- Current 281.16 -

Deferred (1,776.01) -
Profit/(Loss) after tax (16,761.73) (15,361.83) 

Other comprehensive income for the year (net of 71.16 (95.70) 
tax) 

Total comprehensive income/(Loss) for the (16,690.57) (15,457.52) 
year 

Considering the operating and accumulated losses, Board did not recommended dividend, 
nor any amount is proposed for transfer to reserves. 

In April 2024, the Company completed the acquisition of Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited, 
along with its wholly owned subsidiaries-Vidal Health Insurance TPA Private Limited, VH 
Medcare Private Limited and VH International LLC. 

The Company does not have any associate or joint venture Company. 

Information on the performance and financial position of subsidiaries of the Company are 
provided in Form AOC-1 is annexed to this Report. 

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the 
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Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company and the 
date of this Report. 

Company is in process of putting risk management framework for identification, measurement, 
monitoring and control of the risks. The Board is of the opinion that there are no elements of 
risk that may threaten the existence of the Company. 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with its size, scale 
and complexity of operations with reference to its financial statements. 
These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding recording and providing 
reliable financial information, ensuring integrity in conducting business, accuracy and 
completeness in maintaining accounting records and prevention and detection offrauds and errors. 
The Board reviewed the said controls and found them in order. 

The composition of Board as on 31 March 2025 was as follows: 

Name of the Director Category 

Rakesh Bhatt Chairman & Non-Executive Director 

Devang Mody Managing Director & CEO 

Anish Amin Non-Executive Director 

Nirmala Castellino Non-Executive Independent Director 

Jasmine Chaney Non-Executive Independent Director 

The Board comprises of persons with diverse experience and skills, such that it best serves 
the governance and strategic needs of the Company and its stakeholders. The present 
composition broadly meets this objective. 

During the year under review, following changes took place in the directorate and key 
managerial personnel: 

1. Change in Directorate: 

a) Board at its meeting held on 19 July 2024, appointed Nirmala Castellino 
(DIN:10692792) as Non-executive independent Director of the Company w.e.f. 1 
August 2024. and approved by shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 
18 October 2024. Resolution relating to her regularization will be considered at this 
annual general meeting. 

Board is of the opinion that Nirmala Castellino is a person of integrity, expertise, 
experience and proficiency to serve the Company as independent director 
strengthening the overall composition of the Board. 
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b) Board at its meeting held on 18 October 2024, re-designated Devang Mody (DIN: 
07794726) as Managing Director of the Company w.e.f. 18 October 2024 and 
approved by shareholders at the extra ordinary general meeting held on 23 October 
2024. 

c) Board at its meeting held on 21 April 2025, appointed Girish Rao (DIN: 00073937) 
as an Additional, Non- Executive Director, Non- Independent Director of the 
Company w.e.f. 1 May 2025. Resolution relating to her regularization will be 
considered at this annual general meeting. 

2. Directors liable to retire by rotation: 

Anish Amin (DIN: 00070679), retires by rotation at the ensuing AGM and has offered 
himself for re-appointment. The information required to be disclosed in case of re­
appointment of the director is provided in the Notice of the ensuing AGM. 

3. Key Managerial Personnel: 

Provision relating to appointment of Key Managerial Personnel are not applicable to 
the Company. 

During FY2025, the Board of Directors met 4(four) times, viz., 23 April 2024, 19 July 2024, 18 
October 2024 and 24 January 2025. The gap between any two consecutive meetings was 
less than one hundred and twenty days. 

The details pertaining to the attendance of each Directors at the meetings of the Board held 
during the FY2025 are mentioned below: 

Sr. Name of Director Category No. of Board Meetings 
No. held durin! FY2025 

Entitled Attended 
to attend 

1 Rakesh Bhatt Chairman & Non-executive 3 3 
director 

2 Anish Amin Non-executive director 4 2 
3 Devang Mody Managing Director & CEO 4 4 
4 Jasmine Chaney Non-executive 3 3 

independent director 
5 Nirmala Castellino Non-executive 2 2 

independent director 

Di rs: 

The Independent Directors have submitted a declaration of independence as per section 
149(6) of Companies Act, 2013, stating that they meet the criteria of independence provided 
under section 149(6) of the Act. They have also confirmed compliance with the provisions of 
sub-rule (1) and sub-rule (2) of rule 6 of Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of 
Directors) Rules, 2014, as amended, relating to inclusion of their name in the databank of 
independent directors. 
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A copy of the Annual Return as provided under section 92(3) read with section 134(3)(a) of 
the Act in the prescribed Form MGT-7 is available on the Company's website and can be 
accessed at https://www. bajajfinservhealth in/financial•report 

In accordance with the provisions of section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
Directors state that: 

(i) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards 
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 

(ii) they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and 
made judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a 
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial 
year and of the loss of the Company for FY2025; 

(iii) they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud 
and other irregularities; 

(iv) they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and 

(v) they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that, such systems were adequate and were operating 
effectively. 

During the year the Company has extended loan to Vidal Healthcare Services Private Limited, 
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Details of loans, guarantees or investments are 
provided in the notes to financial statements as required under the provisions of section 186 
of the Act. 

During FY2025, the Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of sections 
73 and 74 of the Act read together with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 
as amended. 

During FY2025, there was no change in the equity share capital of the Company. 

As on 31 March 2025, the authorised share capital of the Company is Rs. 50,000,000 divided 
into 5,000,000 equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- while the paid-up equity share capital 
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stood at Rs. 25,000,000 Crore comprising of 25,00,000 fully paid equity shares of face value 
of Rs. 10 fully paid-up. 

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any equity shares, convertible 
securities, shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor has it granted any 
stock options. 

Consequent to approval received from the shareholders of Bajaj Finserv Limited, holding 
company of the Company at 11th Annual General Meeting (hereinafter referred to as 'AGM') 
held on 19 July 2018 and approval received from the shareholders of the Company at its 3rd 
extraordinary general meeting held on 15 July 2020, the employees of the Company are also 
covered under Bajaj Finserv Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme (BFS-ESOS). 

All contracts/arrangement/transactions entered by the Company with related parties during 
the period under review were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act including 
on arm's length basis and in the ordinary course of business of the Company under the Act. 
None of the transactions required members' prior approval under the Act. 

Details of transactions with related parties during FY2025 are provided in the notes to the 
financial statements. There were no transactions requiring disclosure under section 134(3)(h) 
of the Act. Hence, the prescribed Form AOC-2 does not form a part of this Report. 

I C> ()r ()Lt 

During the year under review, no significant and material orders were passed by any 
Regulators or Courts or tribunals, which may impact the going concern status of the Company 
and its operations in future. 

The information pertaining to the conservation of energy and technology absorption in terms 
of section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 
2014 is stated as below: 

Though the operations of the Company are not energy-intensive in nature, it 
implements various energy conservation measures across all its functions. 

Considering the nature of operations, no particulars regarding technology absorption 
are required to be given in this Report. 

The total foreign exchange earnings, in FY2025 in terms of actual inflows was NIL 
(FY2024: NIL). 

The total foreign exchange outgo in FY2025 in terms of actual outflows amounted to -
Rs. 124. 71 lakh as against Rs. 85.64 lakh during the previous year. 
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The provisions of section 177 and section 178 of the Act relating to constitution of an Audit 
Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee, are not applicable to the 
Company, being a wholly owned subsidiary of Bajaj Finserv Limited. 

The provisions of section 135 of the Act relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not 
applicable to the Company. 

The Company has complied with the requirements prescribed under the Secretarial Standards 
on meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) read with the 
MCA circulars. 

Internal audit is an integral part of corporate governance. The objective of internal audit is to 
identify, assess and mitigate risks as well as to evaluate and contribute to the systems of 
internal controls and governance processes followed by the Company. Key elements of 
internal audit are assurance on controls, governance and compliance, business risk 
assessment and its mitigation and process optimization. 

The Board periodically reviews the internal audit reports and the adequacy and effectiveness 
of internal controls. Significant audit observations, corrective and preventive actions thereon 
are presented to the Board. 

During FY2025, Jayesh Kulkarni, resigned from the position of Internal Auditor. Consequently, 
Satinder Singh, Senior Lead - Risk & Assurance, Bajaj Finserv.Health Limited, was appointed 
as the Internal Auditor of the Company w.e.f. 01 February 2025. 

KKC & Associates LLP (FRN 105146W/ W100621) continues to be the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company. They hold office for a period of 4 years upto the 7th AGM scheduled in the year 
2026. 

The statutory audit report for FY2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or 
adverse remark or disclaimer made by the Statutory Auditors. 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and rules made 
thereunder; the company had appointed Sachin Bhagwat, Practicing Company Secretary 
(Membership No. A 10189, Certificate of Practice No. 6029) as Company Secretary to 
undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the FY2025. A secretarial audit report 
in the prescribed Form MR-3 is annexed to this Report. 
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• re-appointment of Devang Mody, Whole time Director & CEO for the period of three years 
up to 31 December 2026. 

• Remuneration in the range of Rs. 700 lakh - 950 lakh per annum, with such increments) 
as may be decided by the Board from time to time. In addition, he is eligible for the 
performance incentives as may be decided by the Board. 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has a policy on Prevention of Sexual 
Harassment at Workplace and has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee ("ICC") to 
redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. 

During the financial year under review: 

• Number of complaints filed during the year: 1 
• Number of complaints disposed of during the year: 1 
• Number of cases pending for more than 90 days: Nil 
• Number of workshops/awareness programmes conducted: Nil 
• Nature of action taken by the employer/District Officer: The complaint was investigated 

under the POSH Policy and appropriate procedures were followed. The matter was 
found to be unsubstantiated, and no person was held guilty. 

• There was no change in the nature of the business of the Company. 
• The financial statements of the Company are placed on the Company's website in the 

Annual Report section at https://www.baiaifinservhealth.in/financial-report 
• Disclosure pertaining to maintenance of cost records as required under sub-section (1) of 

section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to your Company. 
• There was no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and 

Bankruptcy Code, 2016 during the year against the Company. 
• There was no one-time settlement entered into with any Bank or financial institutions in 

respect of any loan taken by the Company. 
• During the year under review, there were no frauds reported by the Auditors to the Board 

under section 143(12) of the Act. 
• The Company being an unlisted company, details as required to be reported under section 

197(12) of the Act, is not applicable to the Company. 
• Disclosure as required under section 197(14) of the Act for the Managing Director or 

Whole-time Director, for any remuneration or commIssIon from any holding 
company or subsidiary company is not applicable to the Company. 

Page 8 of 9 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
sth Annual Report 2024-25 

• The provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Act, are not applicable to the Company. 
Accordingly, it was not required to establish any vigil mechanism during the year under 
review. 

• The provisions of section 178 of the Act regarding annual performance evaluation are not 
applicable to the Company. 

The Board places its gratitude and appreciation for the support and co-operation from its 
members, regulators and business partners. 

The Board also places on record its sincere appreciation for the commitment and hard work 
put in by the management and the employees. 

On behalf of Board of Directors of 
Bajaj Finserv Health Ltd. 

Rakesh Bhatt 
Chairman 
DIN: 02531541 
Place: Pune 
Date: 21 April 2025 
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Annexure 
 

Form AOC-1 
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-Section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014) 
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate 

Companies/joint ventures 
Part “A”: Subsidiaries 

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs.) 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
1.       1 Name of the subsidiary Vidal Healthcare Services Private 

Limited 
2.       2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding Company’s reporting period 
April, 2024-March, 2025 

3.       3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

INR (in Lakh) 

4.       4 Share capital 199.68 
5.       5 Other Equity  7463.33 
6.       6 Total assets 15860.32 
7.       7 Total Liabilities 8197.31 
8.       8 Investments 2895.77 
9.       9 Turnover 4056.84 
10     10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation 53.97 

  11 Provision for taxation 61.83 
11     12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation (7.86)  
1       13 Proposed Dividend Nil 
11     14 % of shareholding 100% 

 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
1.       1 Name of the subsidiary Vidal Health Insurance TPA Private 

Limited 
2.       2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding Company’s reporting period 
April, 2024-March, 2025 

3.       3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

INR (in Lakh) 

4.       4 Share capital 1159.09 
5.       5 Other Equity  1986.76 
6.       6 Total assets 20009.00 
7.       7 Total Liabilities 16863.14 
8.       8 Investments Nil 
9.       9 Turnover 18983.01 
10     10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (3527.17) 

  11 Provision for taxation (1439.79) 
11     12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation (2087.38)  
1       13 Proposed Dividend Nil 
11     14 % of shareholding 100% 

 
Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1.       1 Name of the subsidiary VH Medcare Private Limited 
2.       2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding Company’s reporting period 
April, 2024-March, 2025 
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Sl. No. Particulars Details 

3.       3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

INR(in Lakh) 

4.       4 Share capital 350 
5.       5 Other equity  (1838.81) 
6.       6 Total assets 964.43 
7.       7 Total Liabilities 2428.93 
8.       8 Investments - 
9.       9 Turnover 286.53 
10     10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (924.07) 

  11 Provision for taxation                      (184.59) 
11     12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation  (739.48) 
1       13 Proposed Dividend Nil 
11     14 % of shareholding 100% 

 
 

Sl. No. Particulars Details 
1.       1 Name of the subsidiary VH International LLC 
2.       2 Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding Company’s reporting period 
April, 2024-March, 2025 

3.       3 Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last 
date of the relevant financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

QAR, ex. Rate (closing)Rs.23.4600 
QAR , ex. Rate (Avg) Rs. 23.4611 

4.       4 Share capital 11.73 
5.       5 Other equity  (97.99) 
6.       6 Total assets 11.97 
7.       7 Total Liabilities 98.23 
8.       8 Investments - 
9.       9 Turnover - 
10     10 Profit/(Loss) before taxation (97.99) 

   11 Provision for taxation - 
11     12 Profit/(Loss) after taxation  (97.99) 
1       13 Proposed Dividend Nil 
11     14 % of shareholding 100% 

 
On behalf of Board of Directors of  
Bajaj Finserv Health Ltd.  
 
Rakesh Bhatt  
Chairman  
DIN: 02531541   
  
Place: Pune                                                                                                        
Date: 21 April 2025  
 



To, 

SACHIN BHAGWAT 
Practicing Company Secretary 

SECRET ARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

For the financial year ended 31 March, 2025 
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 9 of the 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 
2014] 

The Members, 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, 
Akurdi, Pune 411035 

I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory 
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bajaj Finserv Health 
Limited (hereinafter called ''the Company") . Secretarial Audit was conducted in a 
manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conduct/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Auditor's Responsibility: 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable 
laws and maintenance of records based on audit. I have conducted the audit in 
accordance with the applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India. The Auditing Standards requires that the Auditor 
shall comply with statutory and regulatory requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliance with applicable laws and 
maintenance of records . 

Due to the inherent limitations of audit including internal, financial and operating 
controls, there is an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements or material 
non-compliances may not be detected, even though the audit is properly planned 
and performed in accordance with the Standards. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorised 
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my 
opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 
ended on 31 March, 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder 
and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-
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mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter. 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 3 1 
March, 2025, according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules 

made thereunder; (Not applicable to the Company during the audit 

period) 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed 

thereunder; (Not applicable to the Company) 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and 

Regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment. 

Overseas Direct Investment and external commercial borrowings (Not 

applicable to the Company); 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 

Securities and Exchange Board oflndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') :-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial 

Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; (Not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period) 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period) 

( c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to 

the Company during the Audit period) 

( d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 

Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 ; (Not 

applicable to the Company) 

( e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 

Non-convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable 

to the Company during the audit period) 



(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an 

Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding 

the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not applicable to the 

Company during the audit period) 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity 

Shares) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company) ,· and 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of 

Securities) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company) 

I further report that having regard to the compliance system prevailing in the 
Company and on examination of the relevant documents and records m 
pursuance thereof, no law was applicable specifically to the Company. 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India, with which the Company has generally 
complied with; 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; (Not 

applicable to the Company) 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions 
of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above. 

I further report that -

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. The changes in the 
composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

As informed, notice, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were given to all 
directors to schedule the Board Meetings, at least seven days in advance and 
when short notice was given, the consent thereto was obtained from the 
Directors . A system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and 
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 
participation at the meeting. 
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All decisions at Board Meetings were carried out unanimously as recorded in 
the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company 
commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to monitor and 
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the following events / actions took 
place having a major bearing on the Company ' s affairs in pursuance of the 
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc. referred to 
above: 

1. The shareholders of the Company authorized the Company to borrow up 
to Rs. 1500 crore notwithstanding that the monies borrowed together with 
monies to be borrowed may exceed the aggregate, for the time being, of 
the paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium of the Company, 
pursuant to section 180( 1 )( c) of the Act. The shareholders also authorized 
the Company pursuant to section 180(l)(a) of the Act to secure the 
borrowings so made by creation of charge. 

. Pune, 21 April, 2025 

. 

CS S agwat 
ACS: 10 , 6029 

UDIN: A010189G000158051 
PR No. : 6175/2024 
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Annexure 

To, 
The Members, 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, 
Akurdi, Pune 411035 

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial 
records based on my audit. 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to 
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the 
Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that 
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the processes 
and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion. 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records 
and Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about 
the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, 
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My 
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability 
of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the company. 

Pune, 21 April, 2025 

CS Sac m B gwat 
ACS: 10189, C : 6029 

UDIN: A010189G00015805 l 
PR No. : 6175/2024 
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Independent Auditor's Report 

To, 
The Members of 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Report on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited (the 'Holding 
Company' or the 'Parent' or the 'Company') and its subsidiary (the parent and its subsidiary together referred to as the 

'Group'), which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2025, the Consolidated Statement of Loss 

(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and Consolidated 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements, including 

a summary of material accounting policy information and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as the 

'Consolidated Financial Statements'). 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the 

consideration of reports of other auditor on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as were audited by the 
other aud itor, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 
2013 (the 'Act') in the manner so required and give a t rue and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting 

Standards prescribed und,er section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, 
as amended , ('Ind AS') and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the Consolidated State of Affairs 
of the Group, as at 31 March 2025, its Consolidated Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Changes in 

Equity and its Consolidated Cash Flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the St andards on Auditing ('SAs') specified under section 143(10) of the Act. 
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group, in accordance with the Code 

of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Acco1untants of India ('ICAI') together with the ethical requirements that are 

relevant to our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the Act, and the rules thereunder, 
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditor 

referred to in the 'Other Matters' paragraph below is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. 

Other Information 

4. The Holding Comp,any's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information . The other i formation comprises 
the information included in the Holding Company's annual report but does. not include the Consolidated Financial 

Statements and our auditors' report thereon. The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date 
of this auditor's report. 

5. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

6. In connection with our audit of the Consolidated Financial .Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 

identified above when it becomes available and compare it with the Financial Statements of the subsidiary audited by 

I~ the other auditor, to the extent it relates to their entities and in doing so, consider whether the other information is 

'hartered 'G) aterially inconsiste.nt with the Consolidated Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise 

o Accouni.ants (II ppears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed and based on the work done and audit 
~ -r:,::: __,..,._ __________________________________________ _ 
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report of other auditor, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. 

7. When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement there in, we are required to 

communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take appropriate action as applicable under the relevant 
laws and regulations. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

8. The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Consolidated 

Financial Statements, that give a true and fair view of the Consolidated State of Affairs, Consol idated Loss and Other 
Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Changes in Equity and Consolidated Cash Flows of the Group is in conformity with 

the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting 

Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board 
of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting 
frauds and other irregularities; selection of the appropriate accounting software for ensuring compliance with applicable 

laws and regulations including those related to retentiorn of audit logs; the selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation 

and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operatirig effectively for ensuring accuracy and 

completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements that give a true and fair view and are f ree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which 
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the Of rectors of the Holding 
Company, as aforesaid. 

9. In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the respective Board of Directors and th e Management of the 

Companies included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of each Company to continue as a going 

concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 
unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 

but to do so. 

10. The respective Board of Directors of the Companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing the financial 

reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

11. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are 

free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our 

opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are 

considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 

decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated Financial Statements. 

12. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also: 

12.1. Identify andl assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to 

fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
result ing from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

Obtain an u1nderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to the 

Consolidated Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of sLich controls. 
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12.3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the Management. 

12.4. Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on 

the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 

uncertainty exists, we are requ ired to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 

are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our audlitor's report. However, future events or 

conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern. 

12.5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, includingthe 

disclosures, and whether the Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

12.6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business 
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible 

for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such entities included in the 
Consolidated Financia l Statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in 

the Consolidated Financial Statements, which have been audited by other auditor, such other auditor remain 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely 

responsible for our audit opinion. 

13. We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in the 
Consolidated Financial Statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

14. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 

requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 

Other Matters 

15. The Consolidated Financial Statements include the audited financial statements of a subsidiary, whose financial 
statements reflect total assets of ~ 15,860.32 Lakhs (before consolidation adjustments) as at 31 March 2025,. total 
revenues of ~ 4,780.88 Lakhs (before consolidation adjustments), total net profit after tax of~ 7.51 Lakhs (before 

consolidation adjustments) and net cash inflow of~ 878.68 Lakhs as at year ended 31 March 2025 as considered in the 

Consolidated Financial Statements. These financial statements have been audited by other auditor whose report have 

been furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates 

to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this entity, and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in 
so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. 

16. Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of 

the other auditor. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

17. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of audit report of the other auditor 

on separate financial statements of such subsidiary, as were audited by other auditor, as noted in the 'Other Matters' 
paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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17.2. In our opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated 
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of 
the other auditor. 

17.3. The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive 
income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flow dealt with 

by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of 

the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

17.4. In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 

133 of the Act read with the relevant rules thereunder. 

17.5. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company, taken on record 

by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditor of its subsidiary 
Company, incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group Companies, incorporated in India are 
disqualified as on 31 March 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

17.6. With respect to the adequacy of internal fina ncial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary Company incorporated in India and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in 'Annexure A'. 

17.7. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and based on the reports of the 
statutory auditors of such subsidiary Company, incorporated in India which was not audited by us, the 

remuneration paid during the current year by the Holding Company and its subsidiary Co mpany incorporated in 
India to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration paid to any 
director by the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company, incorporated in India is not in excess of the limit 

!aid down under Section 197 of the Act. 

18. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 

(Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014 as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of audit reports of the other auditor on separate financial 

statements of such subsidiary as noted in the 'Other Matters' paragraph: 

18.1. The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2025 on the 

consolidated financial position of the Group - Refer Note 37 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

18.2. The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

18.3. There were no amo,unts which were requir€d to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by 
the Holding Company, and its subsidiary Company. 

18.4. The respective ma111agements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company, incorporated in India whose 

financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such 
subsidiary Company, to best of their kno,wledge and belief, that no funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding 

Company or any of such subsidiary to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

('Intermedia ries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by 
or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such su bsid ia ry ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or prov.I de any guarantee, 

security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

18.5. The respective managements of the Holding Company, its subsid iary incorporated in India whose financial 

statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditor of such subsidiary, to 
best of their knowledge and belief, that no funds have been received by the Holdfng Campany or any of such 

subsidiary, from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('Funding Parties'), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiary, shall, whether, 
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directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party ('Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee, security or the like on beha lf of 

the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

18.6. Based on such audit procedures, that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 

performed by us and those performed by auditors of the subsidiary Company incorporated in India whose 

financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or other auditor notice that has 

caused us or other auditor to believe that the representation under paragraph '18.4.' and '18.5.' contain any 

material misstatement. 

18.7. In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the Group has not declared or paid 

dividend during the year, accordingly compliance with section 123 of the Act by the Company is not applicable. 

18.8. Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by respective auditor of the subsidiary 

Company, which is incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the 

Company and the subsidiary Company has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts 
which has a feature of recording audit trail facility (edit log) and the same has operated th roughout the year for 

all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, during the course of our audit, we and respective 

auditors of the above referred subsid iary Company, did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being 

tampered with. 

Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved by the Company and above referred subsidiary Company, as per 
the statutory requirements for record retention. 

19. With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('CARO') 

issued by Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in Auditor's report, according to the 

information and e>:planations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us for the Company and based on 

our consideration of CARO reports issued by respective auditors of the compan ies included in Consolidated Financial 

Statements, we report that there are no material qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO reports. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

. ~\w' 
_s.~:::=:--:-
Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 25164366BMNUME9018 

Place: Pune 
Date: 21 April 2025 
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Annexure 'A' to the Independent Auditors' report on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health 
Limited for the year ended 31 March 2025 

(Referred to in paragraph '17.6' under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section ofour report of even date) 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to the aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements under 
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') 

Opinion 

1. In conjunction with our audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited as of and for the 

year ended 31 March 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements of Bajaj Finserv Health Limited (the 'Holding Company') and its Subsidiary Company, which is a Company 

incorporated in India, as o-f that date. 

2. In our opinion, the Holding Company, and its Subsidiary Company, which is a Company incorporated in India, have, in 

all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

and such internal financia I controls were operatililg effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal controls over 
financial reporting criteria established by the respective companies considering the essential components of such 

internal controls stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (thle 'Guidance Note'). 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

3. The respective Board of Di rectors of the Holding Company, its Subsidiary Company, which is a Company incorporated in 
India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with reference to consol.idated 

financial statements based on the interna l controls over financial reporting criteria established by the respective 
companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities 

include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating 

effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's responsibility 

4. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company, its Subsidiary Company, which is a Company 

incorporated in India, internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing ('SA'), prescribed 
under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to the 

Consolidated Financia l Statements. Those SAs and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethica l requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 

reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 

effective ly in all material respects. 

5. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial 

controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements included obtaining an understanding of internal 

financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of the internal controls based on the assessed 
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

6. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditor in terms of 

heir reports referred to in the 'Other Matters' paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

udit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements. 
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Meaning of Internal Financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

7. A company's internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements is a process designed 
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial 

statements for external purposes in accordance with ge erally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal 

financia l controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements includes those policies and procedures that 
(l) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 

dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assu ranee that transactions a re recorded as necessary 

to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 

receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabl•e assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of 

unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financia l 
statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the consolidated Financial Statements 

8. Because of the Inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 

due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal 

financial controls with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements may become inadequate because of changes 
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Other Matters 

9. Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effecti'leness of the internal 

financial controls system with reference to the Consolidated Financial Statements in so far as it relates to a Subsidiary 

Company, which is a company incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the auditor of such 

Subsidiary incorporat ed in India . 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(Formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
Firm Registration Number: 105146W/W100621 

- ~~ 
_$~~ 

Soorej Kombath 
Partner 
ICAI Membership No: 164366 
UDIN: 25164366BMNUME9018 

Place: Pune 
Date: 21 April 2025 
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J,297 58 370.89 
1,502,02 1,541 .67 

50,607.95 15,028.82 

308.73 295.90 
8,805.15 3,815.87 
7,610.76 7,369.98 

739.07 
175.00 

7S0.62 45.69 
19,874.99 4,960.93 

- -

38,089.32 
16,66].37 

88.697.27 31.69Z.19 

250.00 250.00 
1,12,320.00 G9,250.00 
(7 1,364.71) (54,531 .32) 
40,955.29 14,718.68 
41,205.29 14,9611,68 

2,540.19 2,989.07 
509.77 348.03 

3,049.96 3,337.10 

73.78 . 

2),37 

6,357.33 
S,145.65 

886.55 568.43 
I 21579.36 3,209.13 
S,2 I 6.30 2,296.76 

7.51 
19,297.82 2,166.44 
4~,442.02 13,671 .05 
,47,491.98 16.723.51 
88 697,27 .ll.692.19 

On bclm If of the Boa rd of Di reel om 
Bajaj Finse1v Hcailh Limi1e,I 
CIN - U85320PN2019PLC185286 

Dcvang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

Anish Amin 
Director 
DIN:00070679 



Bajaj Finserv Hea lth Limited 
Statement of Consolidated Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts in { lakhs, except share data and where otherwise stated) 

Particulars 

Revenue from operations 
Other income 
Total income 
Expenses 
Employee benefits expense 
Finance costs 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 
Other expenses 
Total expenses 

Profit before tax 

Income tax expense 
- Current tax 
- Deferred tax 

Total tax expe_nse 
Profit for the vear 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) 
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 
Rerneasurements ofpost-empfoyment benefit obligations 
fncome tax effect on above 

Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 
Foreign Currency Translation Reserve 

Total other comprehensive i.ncome/ (loss) for the vear, net of income 
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year, net of tax 
Basic eamings per share (In INR) 
Diluted earnings per share (ln INR) 
(Nominal value per sh.are INR I 0) 

Summary or material <1ccounting policies followed by the Company 
The accompanying notes are integral part of the financial statements 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
JCAr Finn Registration Number: I 05146W /WI 0062 t 

Soorej Kombaht 
Partner 
TCAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 

Date- 21.04.2025 

Note 
No 
20 
21 

22 
23 
24 
25 

8 

2 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March 31. 2025 March 31, 2024 

88,463.59 61,514.63 
712.69 861.55 

89,176.28 62,376J8 

25,989.47 13 ,028.31 
928.60 251.92 

6,930.90 2,673.75 
73,583.89 61,784.02 

1,07,432.86 77,738.00 

(18,256.58) (15,361.83) 

281.16 
(1,776.01) -
{1,494.85) -

(16.761.73) (15,361.83) 

57.ro (95.70) 
14.64 -
71.74 (95.70) 

(0.58) -
(0.58) -
71.16 (95.70) 

(16,690.57) (15,457.52) 
(670.47) (614.47) 
(670.47) (614.47) 

On behalfofthe Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
CIN - U85320PN20 I 9PLC 185286 

Devang Mody 
Director 
DlN:07794726 

'd.:!z. 
Finance Head 
Date- 21.04.2025 

Anish Amin 
Director 
DIN:00070679 



Bajaj 11insen, llcollh Limited 
Statement or Con,olidated cash nows for the year ended March 3 t, 2025 
(All amounts in t lakhs, exccpl share data and where otherwise stated) 

l"1.1rtkular.'I 

Cash now from operating activities 

loss hcllifc ini.:nnM.: Ju, from 00L"nt1i,u1s 

l.n11J"' ,u.1forc• lncnnu.· ta, 
Adjt1s.1rncnu for 

Dcprecialion and amonisation expense 
Changes in foir value of financial asscls at fai r value through profit or loss 
Unwinding ofdiscounl on security deposits 
Interest income 
Finance ensls 
Pror.1 on sale ofpropcrt:,,, plant aml criuipmcnl 
Provision for expected credit loss 

C'h11ngc In ope raring assets •nd liabllille.s 
(Dccrcasc)/lncrcasc in trade payables 
Decrease/ (Increase) in trade receivables 
Decrease/ {In crease) in other fi11a11cial assets 
(Dccrcasc)Jlnc rcasc in other financial li abil it ies 
(Increase) in other assets 
Increase in other liabilities 
1uC"n:H!iC 111 LlrHVISIUll> 

c~,1, ~rnrrat«I rrom on,•rall,nn 
lnr,,tm.: 1axcs 11nid net ufn:fonJ 
Net cnsh i:rnerarcd rrnml (used In) oi>rrorlni:. :irtlvlllr, 
Cash nows horn investing nclivities 
Purchase of property, planl and equipment and intangible asset 
Proceeds from property, plant and cquipmc11t and intangible a,Scl 
Payment for oqusi 1ion orbl1sinc~~ net nfcash 
ln vcslmcnls ,n other bnnk balnncc.s 
Proceeds from sale ofinvcstmcnts in mt1tual funds 
Investments in mutual fund 
Proceeds from rcpaymcnl of Lonn 
hncrc'!II received 
Net cuh l!enerared from/ (used inl lnveslinl! activities 
Cash now• from financing activities 
Proceed~ from fonds from holding company 
Rcpaymcnlof Worki ngCapildl Loan 
Repayment of Non Convertible Deben1u1cs 
Finnncc cost paid 
Payment of intcrcsl portion of lease Ii abilities 
ravm,'fll nr 11rinci11al Mr1inn or lease linhili, ics 
'.\'ct u .,h !!Cnrralctl from/ (used in) financlni? activities 
Net lncreas• (decreaie) In cash and cash equlvatenis 
Cash and cash euul•al~nr, al 1hc hccimunl! of lhc liuanc inl Year 
Cash and ru,h ,•1111h•nlc111, •I end of lhe ~·cur 

Rccundlialion or cash and cash c,1ulvalcnts •S per lhc cash now slitlcmcnt 
C,ish and cash cuuival~n~ •~ r,cr uhuw romunsc oflhc foll,,winc 
Particular 

Cash and cash equivatems 
noli1nrc, 11cr .\lAICln~11, nf cash nows 

Summa,y of material accounting policies followed by 1hc Company 
The accompanying notes arc in tegral palt oflhc nnancial statements 

For KKC & Associarcs LLP 
Cha rtcrcd Accounlams 
(fom,crly Khimji Kun11crji & Co LLP) 

fnr year ended Fnr year ended 
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 

(18.256 58) r 15.361.831 
Cl 8,256.58) (IS,J6l.8J) 

(1,930.90 2.673.75 
(20 .28) (20. 15) 
(30.62) (184.79) 

(271.97) (261.70) 
928.<iO 251.92 
(2.24) 0.00 

507 8~ (28 1 29) 

(609 05) 1,601.11 
'2,308.58 {1,755.05) 

.199.35 (I K'.l.J9) 
9,370.10 825.7 1 

{13,987.52) (1,598.92) 
8,500.37 l,49R.IS 
(~04.33\ 'Jl2 .60 

14.'36.R9! /11.883.87) 
(93]..J2 ) 253 .34 

(5,670.31) (11 .630.53) 

(7,000.46) (6,327.26) 
7.50 -

(:B,482 ,56) . 
(564 .07) 

307.45 
(]00 00) 

5,400 00 . 
259.26 224,60 

(15,372.88) (6,!02.661 

43,070 00 23,500 ,00 

(81.771 -
(9,788.801 . 

(583.63) 
(344 97) (251.921 
1986.!m (454.171 

31.183.9R 22.793.91 
240.78 ,,0110.12 

7.369.98 2.309.25 
7,1110.76 1 .. 111 11,YK 

As nt l\forch 31, As at March 31, 
202S 2014 

7,6 10.76 7.369 ,98 
7.610.76 7,369.911 

On behalf of lhc Board ofDircclors 
Bajaj Finscrv Health Lim ited 
CJN • U85320PN2019PLCl8528u 

ICAI Finn Registration Nu111bcr: 105146WIWI00621 

~ 

Soon:j Kombah1 
Parlner 
!CAI Mcmbcr:;hip Number: IM31i6 
Pum:: 
Oat,:.. 21 04.2025 

Dcvang Mody 
Di recto, 
DIN:07794726 

JI¥ 
Manccsh Sliaim.i 
Fimmi..:c Hem.I 

Dale- 21 .04 .202S 

Anish Amin 
Director 
DrN :0007067 9 



Baja,i Finserv Health Limited 
Con~olidated Statement or changes in equity rnr the year ended March 31 , 2025 
(All amounts in t lakhs, except share dnta nnd where otherwise staled) 

A. Equity hnre capital 

Particulars 

As al March 3 I, 2023 
C"huntcs m ,·1Iu1l ,. slwr,· cm>ilu I 
i\1 al March ;I I Z0?~ 
l 'hn11gc.s in c•@il y ~hare cnpilal 
,\, at March 31. ?0?~ 

B. Instruments entirely equity In na ture 

Pnrticulars 
At the beginning of the year 
Addition durini: lhe vear 
Clnslni: llRlunce 

•Equi lycompo,,ent of lo,111 received represenls loan received 
from Bajaj Finserv Li mited compulsorily convenible inlo 
equi ty shares n1 face va lue of Rs. IO per share 

C. Other equity 

Par!lculors 

Balance et March 31, 2023 
Loss for the year 
Other comoreltensive income/rl assl 
Tot~t cumprehensl~e incorm:.l\luss) for (ht po,riull 

liuln nee ul M •rch J 1 2024 
Loss fo r the year 
Other comprehensive inco1n::/(loss) 
Premium Paid on 1he recdempt ion of NCO of ubsidinry 

Totnl cum~rehensive incomei(luss) ror the period 
Balonceat March 31 . 2025 

Nnte No !Nil of shares (In 
lakhs) 

I 25.00 
10 ln1 

25.00 
. 

25.00 

NnLe No Ii\& a t March 31, 202S 

I 69,250.00 
10, 01 43,070.00 

1.12,320.00 

Note 0 Re5erves and surplus 

nernincd earnings 

(39.200.48\ 
1.3 (bl ( I 5,361.83) 

. 
( I S,4S7 .S2) 

(54.<,58.00) 

13 (b) (16,76 1.73) 
-

(1 42.82) 

(16,904.55) 
(71,562.55) 

Sunumiry ul' nmic,-ia l nccou11ti 11g pulicic:.s lu lluww l,y the Compun y 

The accompnnying notes a re integral put of the financial statements 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chortered Accountants 
(formerly Khimji Kunverj i & Co LLP) 
ICAT P'im1 R~gistralion Number: l05146WIWIO<J621 

Amount 

250.00 
. 

250.00 
. 

250.00 

As al March 31, 2024 
45.750.00 
28.500.00 
69.2S0.00 

Other Cnmprehensive Income 

Remeasurement of Foreign Currency 
dtl1ned benefit Translation 
Ollllg11tion keserve 

126.68 . 
. . 

(95.70) -
(95.70) . 

30.98 . 
. -

71.74 (0.58) 
. . 

71.74 (O.S8) 
I02.72 !0.58) 

On behalf of the Board of Di rectors 
Bajaj fi nscrv Health Limited 
CIN • U85320PN20 19PLC"l 85286 

Devang Mody 
Director 
DIN:07794726 

Anish Amin 
Director 
Di'i :00070679 

Soorej Kombahl 
Partner 
ICAI Memhership Number: 164366 
Puoe: 

~ I 

Date- 21 .04.2025 
F 111:111~c H c;td 
IJatc• 21 n-U025 

Tots I other equity 

I 
139,073 Mil) 

( I 5,36 1.83) 
(95.70) 

(I 5,457.52) 

(54 SJI .32) 
(16,76 1.73) 

71. 16 
(14 2.82) 

06 833.39} 
(71 364.71) 



Bajaj Finscrv Health Limited 

N"c,tes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

t. Description of the Group 

Bajaj Finserv Health Limited (the "Company" or the "Patent Company") together with its subsidiaries. 
(collectively known as 'the Group') is primarily engaged in the business of marketing, promotiilg and selling 
E-lealthcai-e plans/products including preventive healthcare, managemenL of illness, loyalty cat·ds, 
telemedicine, through online and/or through network of providers / pmtners. 

111e Registered Office of the company is al Bajaj Auto Limited, Mambai-Pune Road, Akurdi, Pune, 41 I 035, 
Maharashtra, and its Corporate Office is at Floor no 40 I, 50 l, 60 I, Trion IT park, Nagar Road, Wadgaon 
Sheri, Pune-4 l IO 14, Maharashtra. 

Please refer note 30 for the list of subsidiaries, step-down subsidiaries of the parent company. 

I 

l A. B~si.s of preparation of consolidated financial statements 

a) Statement of compliance 

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended March 3 1, 2025 compJy in all material 
aspects with the t11dia11 Accounting Standards ('' Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting 
Stan<lards) Rules 20 15, and presentation requ irements of Division 11 of Schedule lll to the Companies Act, 
2013. and as amended from time to time. 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared by the Company as a going conoem on IJ1e basis 
of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Compat1y's annual reporting date, March 31, 2025. These 
consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance by the Company's Board ofDirectors on April 
21, 2025. 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (~), which is also the Company's 
functional currency, and. all values are rounded lo the nearest lacs, rounded off to two decimal points unless 
otherwise stated. 

b) Basis of measurement 

These consolidated financial statements have been preJPared on the historical cost convention, except for the 
following material items in the balance sheet w.h ich are measured on the basis stated below and itt accordance 
with the respective accounting policies.: 

• financial assets and financial liabilities are measured either at fair value or at amortised cost, depencHng on 
the classification based on accounting policy; 

• long-term borrowings are measured at amortised cost using the effective intetest rate metb.od; 

• equity-settled and cash-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value on the grnnt date and the 
reporting date, respectively; and 

• assets acquired and liabilities assumed as part of busin,ess combinations are measured at fair value on the 
acquisition date. 

c) Uses of judgements, estimates and assumptions 

The preparation of the financial statements requires Management to make use of estimates, judgments and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies, the 
reported amount of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at tl1e reporti11g 
date and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the year. Accounting estimates could change 
from period to period. in view of the inherent uncertainties and the lev.el of subjectivity involved in the 
measurement of items, it is possible that the outcomes in the subsequent financial years could differ from the 
Management's estimates and judgmems. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized prospectively. 
Accounting estimates and jud,,,"Itlents are used. in various I ine items in the financial statements for e.g.: 

• Business model assessment 

• fair value of financial instruments 

• lmpainnent offinru1cial and non-financial assets 

• Provisions for tax and other expenses 

• Fair value of employee stock options 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

• Post employment benefits 

2. Material accounting policies 

i. Basis of Consolidation 

Subsidiaries 

These consolidated financial statements comprise the consolidated financial statements of the Parent 
company and its subsidiaries as at March JI, 2025. Subsidiaries are all entities that are controlled by the 
Company. Control exists when the Company (i) has power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give 
it the current ability lo direct the relevant activities of the investee), (ii) is exposed to, or has rights to 
variable returns from its involvement with theentily and (iii) has the ability to affect those returns through 
power over the entity. Tbe Company re-assesses whether or not it controls a subsidiary if facts and 
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the elements of control. The consolidated 
firian~ial statements of subsidiaries are included in these consolidated fihancial statements from the date 

' ... 
when the Company obtains control and continues until the date that control ceases. 

Consolidation procedure 

Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary during the year arc included in the consolidated 
financial statements. Profit or loss and each component or OCI !:Ire attributed to the equity holders of the 
parent of the Company. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, incomi:, expenses and cash flows 
relating to transactions between members of the Company are eliminated in full on consolidation. For the 
purpose of preparing these consolidated financial statements, the accounting policies of subsidiaries, have 
been changed where necessary to align them wiU1 the policies adopted by the Company. Furthermore, the 
consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as of the 
Company. 

ii. Business combinations and goodwill 

Business combinations arc accounted for using the- acquisition mclhnd. regardless of whether equity 
instruments or mhcr assets arc acquired, unless 1hl! transaction is treated as an ;;isscl acquisition by apply ing 
1he optional concentration test or Otherwist:. The oplioi1al co11ccntrotion LCSI pem1its the acquirer I() 111ak~ an 
election on a 1ransactio11-by-1ransaction basis -and apply a simplified assessment for determining whether an 
acquired set of activities and assets is a business. The optional concentration test is met, and tbe acquired set 
of activities and assets is not a business, if substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is 
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable Rsst~ls. The acquisition date is the 
date on which control is transfen·ed to the acquirer. Judgment is applied in determining the acquisition date 
and detennining whether control is transferred from one party to another 

The Company determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set of activities and assets include 
an input and a substantive process that together signifi cantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The 
acquired process is considered substantive if it is critical to the ability to continue producing outputs, and the 
inputs acquired include an organized workforce with the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to 
perform that process or it significantly contributes to the ability to continue producing outputs and is. 
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to 
continue producing outputs. 

The consideration transferred for the acquisition is comprised of: 

• fair values of the assets transferred; 

<J1.~• fair values ofliabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired business; 
r;, 
U'• 

d - • equity interests issued by the Company; 
Is -S 

• fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement; and 
,... 

• fair value of any pre-existing equity interest 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities in business 
combination assumed are, with limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values. For each business 
combination, the Company elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at fair 
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's identifiable net assets. 



B~_jaj Finscrv Health Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31 , 2025 

Goodwill is ini1i11lly measured at cosl. being the excess of the aggregate of tho consideration transferred, 
amount of non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, and the acquisition dale fair value of any previous 
equity intorest i111 1hc acquired entity. over the fair value of the CompR11}1's share of net identifiable asset. 
acquired. Ir those amounts are less than the fair value of the net idehl i fiable assets of the business acquired, 
the difference, after reassessment, is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss as a bargain 
purchase 

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impalnnent losses. For the 
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, 
allocated 10 eacl1 of ihe Company's ctish~gcnerating units or the group of cash generating units that are 
expected lo benefit frorn the combination, irrespective of whether other asset~ or liabilities of the acquirce 
are assigned to those units. 

iii. Revenue recogniti.on 

iv. 

Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control or promised products or services to customers in an amoulll 
that reflects the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. 

The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers (other than financial assets to which lnd AS 
I 09 'Financial instruments' is applicable) based on a comprehensive assessment model as set out in Jnd AS 
115 'Revenue from contracts with customers'. The Group identifies contract(s) with a customer and its 
performance obligations under the contract, determines the transaction price and its a!Jocation to the 
perfonnance obl,igations in the contract and recognizes revenue only on satisfactory completion of 
perfom1ance obligations. The Group recognizes revenue at transaction price net of variable consideration on 
account of various discounts and schemes offered by the Group as pa1 t of the contract 

I. Retail Business and Other Services 

a. HeaJth prime rider (RPR) and service revenue 

Health prime rider is a comprehensive offering in the health ecosystem which is issued by one of the 
group insurance company and comprises benefits such as OPD, laboratory benefit, loyalty card, 
access to Health Rx mobile app and website. Pursuanr to the terms of arrangement with the insurance 
company the Group's perfonnance obligation is to be obliged over the policy period for the services 
rendered, the revt!nue and contract liahility emanating from the said arrangement are recognized 
over the period of po Hey contract 

ii. General 

11. Interest Income 

Interest income is recognized using the effective Interest rate method. The effective interest rate is 
the rate that discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset 
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest inco111e is included under the head ''other 
income" in ihc slatement of pro fit and loss 

Property, plant and equipment, intangible assels, amorlization and depreciation Revenue 
recognitfon 

a. Property, plant and equipment (PPE) 

The Group had elected to continue with carrying value of all PPE as the deemed cost of PPE i.e. historical 
cost. PPE are stated at acquisition or construction cost less accumulated depreciation and impainnent 
losses. if any. Land is carried at cost of acquisition. PPE not ready for the intended use on the date of 
consolidated balance sheet arc disclosed as ' Capiral work-in-progress'. Land is carried at cost. 

ff significant parts of an item of PPE have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate 
items (major components) of PPE. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss as incurred 

b. Depreciation 

Depreciation on PPE is provided on sn·aight-line method using the rates arrived at based on the useful 
lives as specified in the Schedule II except for the class of assets listed below where the useful life is 
detennined by the Management through illtemal technical assessment of the Companies Act, 2013. 
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the period of lease terms 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 

Notes to the consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

c, lmpairmeo:t of Non- Financial Assets 

An assessment is done at each balance sheet date as to whether them are any indications that an asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication exists, an estimate oftbe recoverable amount of the asset/Cash 
Generating Unit (CGU) is made. Where the canying val ue of the asset/CGU exceeds the recoverable 
amount, the carrying value is written down to lhe recoverable amount. 

d. Intangible .assets and amortization there.of 

The GToup recognizes intangible assets, representing software, licenses etc. initially at cost and 
subsequently carries at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment, if any. The 
Group recognizes internally generated intangible assets when it is certain that the future ecohomic benefit 
attributable to the use of such intangible assets are probable to flow to the Group, commercial feasibility 
of the project is demonstrated and the expenditure incurred for development of such intangible assets 
can be measured reliably. The cost of an internally generated intangible asset comprises all directly 
attributable costs necessary lo create, produce, a11di prepare the asset to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by the Group. The Group amortizes intangible assets including those internally 
generated using the straight-line method over a period of five to ten years, which is the Management's 
estimate of its useful life 

v. Financial ln,struments 

All financial Instruments are recognized on the date when ihe Group becomes party to the contractual 
provisions of the financial instruments along with the certainty of ultimate collection in case of financial 
assets 

I) F inancial Assets 

Financial assets include caslt, or an equity instrument of another entity, or a contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset from another entity 

2) Initial recognit ion 

Financial assets are initially recognized on the trade date measured at their fair value. Except for 
financial assets recorded at fair value through profil or loss account, transaction costs arc added 
to this amount. However1 trade receivables that do nol contain a significant financing component 
are measuted at transaction price. 

3) Classification 

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets 
and the asset's contraclual tem1s. The categories include the following: 

• Amortized cost - Debt instruments 

• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)- Debt instruments 

• Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) - Equity instr11meots 

• Fair value through profit or loss account (FVTPL) 

(2) Subsequent Measurement 

Subsequent measut"ement of financial assets depends on the Company's business model 
managing the financial asset and the cash flow characteristics of the financia l asset. 

The Company classjfies its fmancial assets in the following measurement categories: 

a. those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

b. and at Amortized Cost 

(3) Reclassification 

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from 
the exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business 
line. The Group did not reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period. 



Bajaj Finserv Health U mited 

Notes to tlie consolidated financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2025 

vi. 

i, 

(4) Derecognition 

A financial asset is de-recognized when: 

• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or 

• The Group has transferred its -right to re,ceive cash flows from the asset or bas assumed an 
obligation to pay the received cash nows i11 full without material delay to a third party under a 
'pass~ hrough' arrangement; and either: (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks 
and rewards of the asset; or (b) the Group ha.s neither transferred nor 1'Ctained substantially all the 
risks and rewards of the asset, bu! has transfen·ed control of the assets. The difference between 
carrying amo1mt and consideration would go to consolidated statement of profit and loss or OCI, 
as applicable 

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount 
(measured at the date of derecognition) and the consideration received (including any new asset 
obtained less any new liability assu1ned) is recog11ized in profit cir loi,s 

(5) Impairm ent of financial assets 

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit loss associated with its 
financial assets carried at amortized cost. The impairment methodology applied depends on 
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk and if so, assess the need to provide for 
the same in the Statement of Profit and Loss 

The Company uses a provision matrix management approved policy to determine impairment loss 
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables and other financial assets. The provisio,1 matrix is 
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade recejvables and 
other financial assets and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the 
historical observed default rates are updated for changes in the forwardylooking estimates. 

(6) Financial liab.Uties 

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement 

Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value 

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured as financial liabilities at fair val\1e through profit 
or loss or amortjsed cost, as appropriate. Financial liabilities are measured at fair value thmugh 
profit or loss when they are held for trading 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an inlegral part of the E IR. The EJ R amortization is included as -finance costs 
in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. Gains or losses on liabilities 111 FVTPL are 
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. 

De-recognition 

The Group de-recognizes financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or expired. 

(7) Offsetting of financial instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the 
consolidated balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal righl to offset the recognized 
amounb and thc:re is an intention to settle on a ner basis, to reali7.e the assets and settle the 
liabilities simultaneously 

Expenses 

Retail Business and Other Services 

a. Fees and commission expense 

Fees and commission expenses which are not directly linked to the sourcing of financial assets, 
such as comm ission/incentive incurred on value added services and products distributiot1, 
recovery chat'ges, guarantee fees under guarantee scheme and fees for management of portfolio 
etc., are recognised in. the consolidated statement of profit and loss on an accrual basis. 
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vii. Taxes 

i. Current tnx 

Current income tax assets and liabilities arc measured at the ~mow1t expected to be recovered 
from or paid to U1e laxatiOn authorities, in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the 
Income Computation and Disclosure Standards prescribed thereii1. The tax rates and tax laws 
used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting 
date. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside 
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax. items are 
recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity 

II. Deffercd Tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabi lities, and their carryit1g amounts for fina ncial reporting purposes at the 
reporting date. 

Deferred tax assets and linbilities arc measured at Lhe tax raLes that rue expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realised or the liabi lity is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) tbat 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The carrying amount of 
defeITed lax assets is reviewed at each reporting date by the Group and reduced to the extent 
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow al I or pan of 
the deferred tax: asset co be utilized. 
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to 
set off current laX assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same 
taxable entity and the same taxation authority . 

viii. Leases 

ix. 

The Group follows Ind AS 116 'Leases' for all long-tenn and material lease contracts. 

Wl1ere the Group is the lessee; 

At lhc dale of commencement of the lease, the Group ret.-ognizes a right-of-use asset ('ROU') and a 
corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a 
term of twelve months or less (sho1t-te11T1 leases) and low value leases. For these short-te11t1 and low 
value leases. the Group recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the lease. 

The right-of-use assets are initially recognised at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease 
Uability adjusted for any lease payments made at or• prior to the commencement date of the lease plus 
any initial direct costs less any 'lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and impaim1ent losses (if any). Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement 
date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease tenn and useful life of the underlying asset. 
Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events ur changes in circumstances indicate 
that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. The lease payments are discounted using the interest 
rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily delenninable, using the incremental borrowing rdtes in the 
counlty of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to 
tl1e relate~ ri'?1t ofl'.se asset if the Group cha11ges its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension ~· 

or a termination t>pl1on. /J~:~~~~OJ rl ~) 
Employee benefit. expenses \\:, 

i. Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plan 

Liabilities for salaries, including non-monetary benefits and accumulating leave balance in "(I 

respect of employees' services up Lo the end of the reporting period, are recognised as liabilities 
(and expensed), and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled 



Bajaj Finserv Health Limited 
Notes to the consolidated financial statement for t he year ended March 31, 2025 

The Group also recognises a liability and records an expense for bonuses (including 
performance linked honuses) where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that 
has created a constructive obligation. 

The Group has made contribution to superannuation funds, provident fund and pension scheme 
as per the scheme of the Group or to Government authority 

ii. Defined benefits plans (Gratuity obligation) 

The liability or as.set recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defined benefit 
gratuity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at rJ1e end of the reporting 
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually 
by actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The calculation includes assumptions with 
regard co discount rate, salary escalation rate, attrition rate and mortality rate. Management 
determines these assumptions in consultation with the plan's actuaries and past trends. 

Remeasurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are 
recognised in other comprehensive income. 

Payment for present liability of future payment of gratuity is being made to approved gratuity 
fund viz., Life lnsurance Corporation of India (LIC) and Bajaj Allianz Life Insurance Company 
Ltd. (BALIC). However, any deficits in plan assets managed by LIC and BALTC as compared 
to actuarial liability determined by an appointed actuary are recognised as a liability. 

iii, Compensated absences 

Compensated absences entitlements are recognised as a liability, in the calendar year of 
rendering of service, as per the rules of the Group. As accumulated leave can be availed and/or 
encashed at any time during the tenure of employment the liability is recognised on the basis of 
an independent actuarial valuation. The compensated absences is calculated annually by 
actuaries using the projected unil credit method. 

iv. Employee stock option scheme 

Stock options are granted 10 e ligible employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 
as formulated by Bajaj Finserv Limited ("I lolding Company'"). The scheme is administered 
through Bajaj Pi.nserv Employee Stock Option Trust ("The Trust"). The mode of settlement of 
the scheme is through equity shares of the holding company . 

.. Further, cost of such options i.e. Option premium. which is reimbursed to the holding 
company is accoumed in line with Ind AS I 02 'Share based payments. 

The fair value of options granted under the Bajaj Finserv Ltd. ~ Employee Stock Option Scheme 
(BFS-ESOS) is recognized as an employee benefits expense. This amount is reimbursed to the 
holding company and is accounted in line with Ind AS 102 'Share based payments. The total 
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted: 

• including any market performance conditions (e.g., the entity's share price) 

• excluding the impact of any service and non-market perfonnancc conditions (e.g., 
continuance of an employee of the entity over a specified time period), and 

• including the impact of any non-vesting conditions 

The total expense is recogn ized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all 
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of each period, Uni entity revises 
its estimates of number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting 
and service conditions. It recognizes the impact of the revision lo original estimates, if any, 
in profit or loss. 

In case of forfeiture/lapse stock option, which is not vested, amortized portion is reversed by 
credit 10 employee compensation expense. In a situation where the stock option expires 
unexercisedi the related amount is n;co.\'..~red from the holding company. 
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x. Provisions and contingent liabilities 

The Group creates a provision when there is present legal obligation as a result of' n past cvent/(s) that 
probably requires an outOow of resources embodying economic benefits and a reliable estimate can be 
made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions detcnnined based on the best estimate to settle the 
obligation on the reporting date and when the effect of the time value of money is material, the Group 
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected cash-t1ows. These estimates are reviewed 
at each consolidated balance sheet dare and adjusted to renect cun·ent best estimates. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be 
confinned by the occurrence or non-occw-rence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within 
the control of the entity. lt also includes a present obligation that is not recognized as it is not probable 
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount 
of the obligation cannot be made. Accordingly, the Group does not recognize a contingent liability but 
discloses tl1e existence of a contingent liability. Wl1en there is a possible obligation or a present 
obligation in respect of which the likelihood of an outflow of resources is remote, no provision or 
disclosure is made. 

xi. Fair vnlue measurement 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that Lhe transaction to sell the asset or transfer 
the liability takes place in the accessible principal ruarket or the most advantageous accessible market as 
applicable 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient 
data is available to measure fair value> maximize the use ofrelevanL observable input and minimize the 
use of unobservable inputs. 

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy inw Level I, Level 2 and Level 3 based on tlle fnwest level 
input that is signiticant to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

2E Recent account ing pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (''MCA") notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards 
under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to lime. For the year ended 
March 31. 2025, MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 [nsurance Contracts and amendments to Ind AS 116 -
Leases, relating to sale and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Group w.e.f. April I, 2024. The 
Group bas reviewed the new pronouncements and based on its evaluatioo bas determined xhat it does not 
nave tlf\Y significant impact in its financial s tatements 
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A~ 1t.l Mar<11 ~ 11 

zoi.~ 
lij !3 

l-l.l 04 
.>A ,11 

06~0 
r'1lW: 

HUI 

O&l111onStu ~ 
~ .. •M~rrbll , 
1015 

S614q 
til16S 
,~90 

<tiDf• Ii 
IZ.27 

l,40~Jt<I 

.&,!101.16 

SJ< 
23.!\J 

Ot't~uo.fUl>.As!ti/ 
ILiahilhy) 11!1 til 

JI OJWl• 

. 

. 
-

,A.lal fl,f rttrhJ I, 
!Ill! 

,.1s.1 
,uu o 

t.S0,,02 

t\J nl l\1onh 3 1, 
WI.5 

JJ7 ~o 
1.2~1 ~2 
'":!,6Srt11J 

1(, .. .59 

.IOS IM 
3'155 

,s.m,-, 
10,J 15.!J◄ 

~itAn.:,s 
19.k7◄.99 

4c t1I M••rh 
l l , 201" 

~4R \d 

J41i.Sol 

JUG<MllrCh 
,lt.20!4 

-
<1S1,ll 

4S,69 

Alklld1;11rli.k'l\1 R~{'t!•1l1,Cflit1 
RC't'Dj,'11~ i11 

Odbn.'tllax 
nlhcr-

b\~llai3 ~f All..'!lnrnl nJ 
GOlnf'~ldu.i\lc' 

A,.tel I 0 ,Mtllily) 
~omblll!UltJH rwufir1u1J IQu If.I 1)1"32(f'J 

lllCOmt" 

145 .~ -•Jb"1 - <371 
J<M26 Silt• - i6144 
•190J IJH2 . "-"1f.S 

41J6 11 ~ti(, 11. 

151 ..-; 89 •f.J4 
I~ 21 - 1221 

l .'71 7 7fl 7{l() pQ - l,l'll,.N9 
l..7111 .1.l. 1.11,,ni - 4,477,7.1 

A,nl M111~c-A 
.11.101, 

1,117 JO 
.1}4Jl 

•. ~41.67 

.... 1M1,rch 
3 1.lUl◄ 

4')942 

88 1 10 
),<11492 

11wo.9J 

4.960.9., 



(' r11tllTHJ ,1'111tl\latth :l l , A,rdM.nrh 
1025 31.um: 

hrt'aJmc'.Ul 11 1u1mW Jhn~ 

.\11nu11f F~nJt {At f"ufT \ l11tuc: 01r0Uc:h r &U 
Q11oh:d , 
NU (M1ud\ .l ! '20'2.4,1.l67 HI) ,,~1~ 1n I l~BC' c .. ~" ,~u.lld. C rnWih l)j1q;:J . 177 :!S 

NU CM11r,hll , 2"J4:~,(Jlj(I W!l umu: 111 l'tud{tJl!l.11 L11,ri1u{ Fl,uui-Omwth•llftt'l,;f l lltUS 
P11111 

i~t9'181'\ :mh I 20;:A, NII ,)mli\., 111 UujJJ llkm.:..rv OIM.1 Fu11d,Oi1«ll'l1111~ 1571H 
(l""'1h 

f,4n 75 (M&Jcil J I ~2.a !"ti ~\11111111'1 lil'jaj fin.ira'I' MOlik:1 Madu~, FumJ• -4i01Jrr 
f)1~Plan-Omwih 

1'P l■I tMJfttU f1,1.\t).lmcNI J08.7J 19~n 
/utitr~tc h(y,k_ Ytha: of qu01oJ l,\,..a;ftncnu 1•1lttlU l •HO ... _, M•U ·••= 

r .ink11t.n. A,1H 1'\I nh lt? A~ n♦ M~1 rh 
10?.i Jl.'ltt'U 

,,.-.,..,L.,..,ltktnl~•.-4 s.1n1 "' ),64122 
I h• 11rcd, Cf!Mldcrcd ~ ,?.qlfl]'i 
r,~k RIN.'"ci\••bb Y,,'hi,i:h h,1\1: ~lCfCil~ m u1:d1t 1,.d:: '2 ,f1~1:!.J)'J 1114 JI 
r , Ilda Rttrivllhtct- crt"dU llnftlln'J':JJ 

Tt1hd frtth1ht ie.\ llll'IUY ~-"?$.jJ 
\ '1Ufflll rwt\KIIII ll"'it.1.-.J.IJ 
NM•Cllff'ffll rwtlnn 
,\OOWft110 (ru- hnd find doubl ful dilbh 

Un'"°'lf<d. ..,..l,lo<<>i II"'~ 
, ·,~·R.cc 'l'1hk$ \\llidl lltlvc 1li.nlfln11I lnc.1.·ut fo credll rhk l.4191.' 9(,6 

Tn1dt R.ecd\'.ablc•- crixhl mvt11ff"cJ -
1410 1:11 , ... 

Ti,t•I 1 "r.tdt ncr-J\.1blH 8.MDS.1S l.&t ,!; Kl 

l'ulln~,.,, i\ , "' Mrutb ,\I. Ui.~ 
Nul d11e 1 .. n d 1:1116" 6 ,uun,tna-lytnr l•l_yt:in Mt1 rt lh11.11l 1'-i t t1rc.t!:t:tin3 Total 

♦11on1tu fHJ'S ]'C'llrf 

litt l'nJi;1111k,ITIQ ,,'ttl\Ahh:t - t"on•itCc,1,.,I t:\11"1 . S,8:Q Rl 9~)11 ;29 74 I 7" 7.2ml 61 
11, U11,)1'r,atN T1~.ft..n:b,-olbib- ~11-kl• hl&YI: 1.11(.tiirtmttt illLll.'.ilU: ht tt~ir htiL 11(.1" SSW IOJ 72 4)2 .. 17 ,~4JIO l.:i!fi:Sl)J 2./llf1_12 

hi lh1tl...tw.i1h.l Ii~ Rn:r,~ --':111!( ut!iffi tn111illlf1..-J. 3 62 J'71 . - 42-1 J !UlJ~ 
Untt1r£011 fk1,"CJm" , ... n,,1 " - . t~l1 ~I 
f jHu .. Traaa. -rrtd••t-.lo IU .. ll , _, 11.:to J.081.70 H~l~lt .!JlJ..7Q J,..t 01,U4 lt .,,·U .. ll 
Leu: fionniltmall l'\ll0¥i•,ntef1ltowl.JlCt r~ Nd ::antf OOL1b1M dcbr:t.l ,1).5t.. l -10.1.n -S90.70 •51i14 00 .1,1,,..,. •HIRl7 
Tmdt' rt,ccttV6bln ntlt GI l mnnlnne,.r /\lll)wOpce .. f$.M •IU:\11 -S00.76 ~M.DD , St◄"'•°' 1ao~1• 

l'n rjkolttn J I \llird l -.lit 

l~•ldilr 1-t!Js01a ,,i1!i lin\ilhlf\S ... l )Ur t--1)'C'.llr& l\l fmtth11nl Mutt lllll n 3 Tt-1111 

11w.•1k\ -~'-'"" lntif"I 

Iii• tJ111r~outcdT~t.k 1t'Q."l'l'11bJ~ - CU1-sd!fc:d 1.•q,U1I J.E•U 21 - 1.641.l.l 
tll tJi'1Ji"muh.-dTn:itkt R.n.:t=lv:ibL.s- 11d!H!h IU1ve d"1mlni:11rtr it~roitmin trot'iUI ftl~ ,,._. JI - IMJI 
~ro~t 'ftnde rettlnhln, IR4_ll l.60.:IZ . . lRH'-1 

ILffl"; l_,trftlllft Alk-..nc:c.fo[~ (or Mt) 11kJdoubirul d..."ba.) . - UlS.5'1 
1 r•tlC! rcrtfrt11Hr;,- ft(I of l mn1111'rmtnl .AU111¥11nl;'c, OM 

,l.111S,R7 

l'ar1lcti1Jn A.1 •• t,111..-hl l , AJIIM11dl 

2025 3 1. lftll 

liolniira: will, ~i.n~1 
- In cdfftl\l tecotlntA 1,H?Ol l .'/09.79 
Oc'pOl1f!I wllh lfflgMltll Jt1111'1 ril)' or~-- IJ!dU ,~,ce !1'K)utltl- 6.Jfio ,Jl s,•60 19 
CJt.1.h lnh::iffll )_ll 

Tomi ~h und nbli toulv111i'.nn MI0.7~ 7J6UR 

rbcrc 11ro. fW. r(11~1 (\l\i ~l•h 1cc,ud 1n cish 11111! 4,.,iif1 ~lv-h.,1111; lilf ~, lhe \;ltJ f1f'1t1t cut rent arut J"lfe\ol,11r.i rcii•'M h11, ~d!'hk 
l •r~1.• tkpo,-lll t?\ M,rcti1k.'J by the C'untp,1J1:,' w,ch btmh c:amptitc of timt.l tlq,ttelli. ,vt-iK:h t:41) be will .. tnl\VII llY 1111: Con\f,-tby ut :•rtY 1i1~1~ 

l'11rlkut1n Al •I ~l ,rtl, J I . A1-J M11rth 
10JS JI, !024 

f) Bnt1111cu ~1111. 11.tH~ 
I!) In dq,DJ!l •mJIIIIM doc ll1t llitllutlty t1111or,a..1h11 n l 11wn1tlt!1. ~ W1ll1ln /,: lllMI~ 4"401 

,1r 1r-.erc,M)1tl,1a~'I! 

hl E&lom,l:,,l ill'"""'• Ill, hon!<, !7~1~1 1750!1 
tn161 rHli 11.,ut toadl .. .11 ,11,•a111 Jgh 1.,11,01 l?S.00 



B:aJaj f'lnstrv He-~llh Lhnl•M 
Notu ID Co11_!1'nUdor, d ).'luor,rl•I .11;,tert1 en t 11 for th t p«-rfod ended M11 ch JI, 2025 
!All anK'l1nh In J 11,kh\, e:iti.:~11 .!than: d1, 111 and w~IL."fC o\lk!rwt~ 11111cd) 

I~(•) ~11•i1Y \hloo ropll,I 
,,111twrh:ll'd I.L\utU ~·ubl(tlbrd and titihl uo ro-ulr¥ t.hal'cc:i.ultttl . . 
r1t11tu 1ari 14• 01 M•n:h 31, A .. 1 March .ll, 

tfil.~ 20N 
Aut~nrl~d 
SO,OD,nQO toul I)' 1hnrH of Rt IU each 5aq.oo 500.00 

lnut1'1 Sllb.\Cr1b,d llnd ri,u .... n11fd UD 

25,00.000 equity •hores of It. 10 mh (PY 25,00,000 250,00 25000 
i:nukv ,:hairc.is) 

15(),00 250,0U 

Ill R <Ill I l lh I i.•t~Hil 111,I IHI (t C' 'la.IQ 1tOU,h'llldln1!. Ml lhc tw.•1 hnlnu and NI flit' C!tld 0 rwc \l'.lf' 

hrtlculi,r,,; Numhl'ror !!qui!)' shar,: 
,.llf't.'I (lh IAk hJ} tapltal 

(p·uvAtue) 

A• 111 l\1nrt:h JI. 202.l 25 J.50.00 
l!quily ~tU'L: topifal lllUtd, >11bic:ribc-d anJ fulty pnfJ up -
dutfo, th~ vcar 
At nf Mi11rth l 1 ?014 l.5 1.<0.00 
P.qm1y Jhorecopual o,nt<:tl, mbo<,~lOll ,nd fully r,ld up - -
du rill a I he yi-,0.1 

l\t al Mar't.h JI. 2025 l.'< 250,on 

rcn,111- 11mt righl11111Uuchtil io equuy ~hua 
F,:qull)' bh111 t•~ have:" a per vatncoflNR In. TIM:ycntitli: ,~ holJi.·r h.i vi111n:~,.n1.: in Ul¥kkmb, nnd to Si~Ul'C: n, ti,u pr0<."t't!d!f af,vlnJll1~ 
11p th L'Unip1my i n prnpl'.hlit.111 lu rl~ ntHnb..:1 o(sm:l .iffl01J11•~ pultl un ,oo ~uirc.-s lrc:ld 
l!\lc:cy hold~r vr ~uity sh11in:.s ptcunt 1u 11 1uro1lnc, m p~Taor or by proxy, ls cn1i1k-d Id QnO -vurc, ,rd u()Ofl A pol! '-'11th !Jh1m:i r~ 
~,,kk-d 11;1 l\nc ~ofo. 
Ai- rc-1· rctor11~ or11., C'Qo1pna,y, it1cluding il:!l 1i:yil;1e1 or,11.,rchclJe1/manbcr, .1nd 01her declu.1111io1w fC'c~ved rrcnu lhe ! h-ttdtl\ldmi- ,e:gllrdl11i:: bc11dki11I lnlcrc,;l, t.l1e. 
For 111< r~rlod of five )"11$ i1T1onodlo1clypre<tdh1& 1lied11e M wloi,h lhc RnlOlw:., Sh«t i< orepm'ecl lhc,o .,. no ,dr.r,:; nllollod .. fl,lly f"'icl up P"""•"' 10 comn1ct 

Pur1kulan A,ut Morclt.'11, Asol M11rt:bJl 1 

2112~ lll?4 On l:dc:f1JJ 

Kqult~• Sh1o·c, 
H PldhU!. C11u1oia.nv 

1),nO.oOo t..'q\liL)' ~h•'r(l.f' oflt.J 10 caeh (VY 15.00,000 2, ?J 
t-qu)]y l\hlltclli) 11....i held hy Uaj.lj Hru;crv U1ni1etJ 

(illl lJ ii I I h Id l I II •• ,ta I .S'• t t?t'tl ,\ I.I A Ufff ~ fl hi I n ... • 1,.n i l.1111('~ II f It." it'UIU fl' UV I I 
Po:rtlr,tbln A• Rf l\l1ud1 ll llU5 \, -lMli"11 Jl, 10!4 

N•mhcr Dr •t• holdfn_g Numbl"rn( 0/• bijfdln~ 
,r1 llirn t •n fokbl) Sh:Ll tH(hl lUktll} 

II l•Y l'ln'l<n LlmiMI 25 100% Z5 100"/4 
I t f1l)111c-1IL.i 1.- Im~ ullinvdc huhlltii1. ~;•n'lfUnvl 

Pnnnnr.:r nitml' A!. ft l Mnrrb Jl.1015 A12t~hrdl31 l 024 
~•1mlu:iof '/,lmldln~ % t hnnll,, 11'.hunl«r of ¾b•ldbiG ~a ctulng<' 
,ho.-., (lo l,klu) durini:=. th t Jc.11t chardi On h1kh~) t.lurlnc 1bc. yc:nr 

KBJl!J fiul£C IV ltmth:d 2.S 1111~. 11'/1, 2S IUU'~ 11% 
1 t imn'k.'<liMc Aad 1J 14 ltnnll.! holdlno C'('lmnrutv) 

rn.r1kul11n 

Rd11"11.-d lliml~J=!!• r11.'Jlf~~ Ow:- JU..,._;J,1u1&Q1\;j .~·,uo11,/ilv\~"\ I lliill IIM:-t.:'.ut ™'R\t ln1.a l11t 1llltl' 

l1artlct1l11f'J' Arnt Mu1•c:H J It As1;1!Mi1t"t'h"Jf, 
l0l5 lO?< 

Opcnm~ bolan<c (34J6UI) (J~,l()(J 4~) 
Ncl proOI/ (lo5') (<1t lh< pcrit,I (1{,.7(,1.7l) j15.J6 1113) 
Prcmimu PAkl <m 11\C rttdcnlf)lkln of NCO orSuhtjdiru-y (14U2) 

Tnlul lttila1ntd ~ 10 1H11 '--'- 111,46,.~. ls~.56?.ln 

()lht:-r cnmprchl'nilil\'t' l n.cnme 
'r fn:\I r!.:!pr~nbi ll'.l'll\s ofillC!IMfll.!sml mt"L"fl!II.! rhur iirc not ft.•~1unr<1.•1J 111 i,roti1 2'1ntf l(ll;Eh1Jt ah! 11,how11 fit 11"'-• _."1,:11..,,nl '"rprnt'l1 .1t11d lou,: 1111; "Otlk.'r co,11ipr.:hc1ishi..• ut.:tl nh) ~ 

'l'hk (?Olflpritt:J 111~1\Jonal ~cilo / li.,sson tl.:ITTl."ASur~u~l'II lJf 1.kflncd lx:ncflt pl:lns """ rhe Ineome no~ effect 1ht1oon. 

PArjlc:111111rJ As at Marcl1 J 14 Al af M"rch .ll, 
ltll.S lOld 

One:riW11t. D11lancc lO 98 1261,8 
Rernensu,emenls ofrlcfincd M:ncfo liahitltvl {1t.~) 71 74 l'IS.70) 
Faiteinn Cuuc.nt.'I' TrcilWahnn R.cttf\'t! 10,SHI 
Ctos:inc Unlilnce 102.14 )ll.9H 

. 
Pnr1h::ul~n /\S :11 ~lare:h JI, J\ .s :al ~hn:h :u , 

1625 10l4 
()punin~ balam,."Q (,9,2S0.00 ◄S.750 00 
Atk1: Arlrlillooi. 1lurinR the \IC.Ill d,1.070 00 2.1,.100 OU 

Cln,; ln, bal•t1c:a 1.12.JlU.ffU 6~.ISU.UII 



O•l• l ►1,.,.,. llu llh !Jm11011 
Noli', to C__._1t{olld11ttd Pln,nc1J1 I , 111 1t nltnl_j tnri ,ti, Y1lt"r c:fldrr:d M urch .n , ! 0'25 
C/\ll 1n.011111tl1, t h•kh~. ~,11iCC:t9t 1ilwire.tb1i 111111I Wllll!ll,oli11C.':f"W111t llnttd) 

PH rtl~1l~r, ,l\ t. ,t i M1h d ~ ·" · .20?:~ ·\ IOI Mml1 Jl,ll!H 
Currl!nl .Non-cun\•Jlt T uJ11! Ctm i:mt 

Punnvion fOI l!OfUl>CPllll«i jNtf,c:CI! l:,75r, )nl n is, ?I IJ~,14 
r1,wl111;10 rnr w~wirv 7J5 143 42 15577 
Ptc>"lt~Joo It cl,1lffU" f.ftl) 62 - 1,61362 
ProvatOn for Wellncn sc~'Ncs .LIQ7 J; - 1,1,nn 2.15H 61 
TDltl nrn" lJJeni 5..116:30 SM.n 5.7U.U7 .J,196.1~ .. 

ltro,h lon rwr Wrllnus ft~f~,1 

ProviYlon I" m1tde-fot ~dr,\illrd ll.htli1ie,~t11!1'11'1('1t1G \.."U!\.IOfllCI~ frK d li.~hfl.\lK: lieJ)dtit,, ~I It~ ~11tJ or1ht.rtfkmlll,1f ~liod M.-11:."lg,amahl t:11~ t1IU lttiJ 
rtto\'l llion baA.'it (111111y 1~"\,1.."'1\1 (fl:'fltl.s 1h11 IU~C.Cll r,pL'ci.(!d (l,,h.n» 

I) Ocnnt d hH ~i pl1ntJ 

Gn,11,u,1 (fondtd/ Unru1uJcd> 
<11"i11nily Is t11P.JCdied 1H Ot•linc:U lknc.f'll Jll-'" as Co111pany's 
1:1blltco1ion ~ to p,cwitlc..ue,mlbc:ncliti. 5\lbjcd ru 11,10]m11m betlcftlS" 
.._ ' ttb~ribcJ by lhc Pt1yn\tm1 or uru1uny Ac1. 10 plart mc-mbcu 

A- t"' ttPTtLHI fn ifc-nar11 tu H flt etltll tulw .. 9 

1,11,c lrulNn 

1,.,n, .. , ....... r, oblipllOtd " 1 .. b<fm•Olll! of '"" )'\:at 
/\d1llllon due- to bu.uncu cnmhlNlfon 
CL1rm1i sen•ioc. ~• 
t111<'t1 , on t!dih\td bl.ll"IC! li"I obh~t on~ 
Rl.'m1:1t.1mrtmel'd dul.l HY. 

"' ru.uL1l luu~11j11) ~l.sflJQuo IICCOUnt uf ti 11.:11~i11I M1un11miln 
,•1u1n J kifs/f;&ml a.rl:rin~ on-t£tounl ofd,ttfnUWJ+phn: U5'4)111pclun 
e:1111\r,W li11,,'l'.h;;:11 n) ~rh.!111; on iK'C011ot of ci,ir,er)l!ncc thni tgl:'I 

lk:..,li1<p,IJ 
LI Mli110 ~ I ~Htd 

~ tA 111nt•n.l n nlut •t•t b 
i-.,,1c11f•r, 

r i.rr \'4fll0 •• , rl.u1 ;'U;M:'l Q~ fl t t{)i: bcginnir,y, c,:-'"U~ )'i.W 

IAl!Jamfl,..,Jur ,o bu fflt._411 cumhmn1lo11s 
1111m 1011 plinmm 
f'1,imlh11t.h.! to 

/\~111i1l 1c111m ~ 1 pl.tu •~b lcu lntcrnr o:i plnn-ou.cu 
h,n,114,r,,t!J 
"1 ~11if\1 in ll,iJCI « illni:i 
A,\(!, •• .♦ l\NhCd 
~ " ' ' \'ft fo;,. ~flil,i; .iind ,lh .. , lt1~ i'1111 .. r1hr l"!lf' 

lhru~tlll 1t11" A( Nel H• t1UUH i,-,~ 

r,rucurara 

Ntl d<On<d l><ll<fit ji,hJll1y~IIJ5Cl) IQ Al lhc bollin11l11~ oflM Y,:.lf 

.\c~h~,. ~kk Jti ~1.+4fej11- ,U!'l,t,,,l(Hioo, 

C\pen•c t'k.t,i;cd to ~ll'lich,0111 orprnlit nrnt lnu 
AmQu1u-re~~ \':I\HSl!Ju f?rolir illld JwiJ 
En,p'°)'fi~ qonO'ibt.111ari 
Oei,•11,. ,,_tJ 
Lir1~ili1b 11uuml"llt 11i:11k.-'il\ 
Nd dl!ftntfl IH!nt111 lh1hlll1y/(DJulj u I t tbe. end nC 1lte- ytn 

A~wutt I lni:v(Jpdn) IU ir.in~ 00 ke.COIIJ11 nf fi11;tinci1t 4 UUtl\(llinn 

,\cru.art..1 ~;uil~in} Mi~l1,g on &;oMDl'il of 1Jc,n.1Jt in1il1ii. .os..-.omotmo 
,\e-tt,ariai.l Jcu-1'(~) ,,~Jng r.1t1 .:wcu1m1 ~ exr.LTknt'l" L'h!.ln&e5 

ci1..111l ·lurn on l"'o ;:,~ll b., fflt.c:rat mt lnn 1mtts 
,, ts • ~111:me ; ur oc1 

l tttonru rl't lk.•td,\lilld tu n :1lant'.f ~tl rN fRrfM'- ru,1r fH 

l1•rtlr 0Jan 

IPftie.m 1 nhJi: o.r f\Jnd!!d <1cllnc-d r.cnofil ' "'h,1:..:::1Jof1 
Pi"\l1 vnllleor"1on MSets 

l"ict 1h•n~,.dJ trM m ll\"11 h\ ,, •i,b nl fii 11 11111111: r S-1,r: I 

f< l•\' •rm:.rtlll l 1 u,11,i l l kJn1, 

l'11rflrul•~ 

Di!to1111I ml('. (11 P.) 
Srtlof)' \:)l;lllrlh>n r tm1 t1, u) 
r,100.iny1ao1o 
W hhdrnw1tl nnu 

Pa rOrul11n 

\•nt \bl f\.h l ,JUM ·"' •l f\'hrd1 31, 
lJIU 

,U _(,I j/Q88 
/,14 7N UIJ,!l 
in 10 ll9 I~ 

Q 28 40,67 

(~'/ 11} 1J86 
(77 llll ,11., 

,1R21 Wh ~, 
,~, -1 1 1MK1 

#I.lilt l,.fll!) 

I.SYJ.!I !WM l 

,\ , al M.nrlt :u,.lf)lS i\li at M:1tc.h ;11, 
:?IJN 

141~5 139 )(, 
J57 l7 

94 lR ,125 
4,U 15 

(ll HJ ~ .. w 
(1)311) ,~.9li. 
~$~ C)O<) 

- M1J,1! 
l ,600.U 7>1.!"i ! ~ 

,U , 1 "1U'd1 JJ , 1015 !\Jal lli11ur..b:J I . 
IJM4 

HJ" (lt.HJR) 

ll1.•0 000 
:??I 1U 136.57 

117 ID\ 95 70 
,-1~5 I.f l 000 

(SS•6l 
061 000 

(R.Kl ) ~uq 

\ i 1111 l\l i.rthll.10~ , 1\I J\ lnr,hJ 1. 
ID4 

m . lO J4'l I~ 
tl~ll 1~1'1!1 

A,t1Mor,:t,;r1,2tns !'"•tMan:hJ t , 
lOZ◄ 

(JO.I ll JJII(, 

(77.lOI 1100 
3R.ll 
I I. I I 

Aillll\llttn::hJ l. l.&25 

l,5~741 
f.llOolJ 

AJ of M,r<h JI, l0l 5 

615,C. 10 6 RI% 
7% 1u8 . 

IALM(20l2-14) Ull 
.lM-.1v.1l'Y. 

.- ... 11 , "'111rrh :n, 
2024 

Xln<hl 
1••~.i.; 
j6J.JH\ 

As af M arch 31. 
! Dl.4 

710¾ 
1000¾ 

IALM(20 12- 14) Uil 
1<.00'14 

M:a.tM1u·c:hJl.1015 Asa t M11rc:h )I, 
l:ill4 

I fill<l,25 

N orl-1mn t nf 

2R4.64 
G.l .39 

-
.,.l,IJW)l 

Tohl 
~22.17 
b)Jg 

-
2.ISU I 
1 111.s, 



8.JaJ Jj"s~fT H~•llh UrtlUC'd 
~U:1 ,,, CaRlflHihftd ►'tq ... ,1,1 s1111ert1u1h ru,. lh( ye,. , ~ndtU ~,u•c:h .,1 , 202--. 
tAl1 U.n10IUIIS In ( IJkJK. ext pl dt"rt dra1.11. am! wlrort-. olh~twit:a.'!llf11tt'rl) 

Nott' IS: Lcuc Lh1hllllfoJ: 

Followin~ is tJv:: brtakur ofc:UTTtn111nd 110ntt:u1rcu1 Jtiue ll~l~llirie., ;is.it mnrc.h JJ~ 2.UlS ::111li l\◄ 1Hth ll, 2'>2◄ 

r1rtkul111t1 

01" tt\t 'le1t1e li.1b0.1l~ 
Nun-t1m-1 leR:u:. lialhlltlca 
I rn1ul 

r1.t1lcuh1fl 

lC'd1t Li1b1lltl.r,1 ln II~ bl;'F;1Mll11~li!f )'C'11 
J'J,r ,o due 10 husim::ts cumbiftlld1,11 

/1,/d11k°"' 

M~luri~um1l1U'ot'lcamlli.ibl1it)' 
:..r.,, ~. lt, •ul,~'li, l.tm1'111ih1JI tnt;1.l,tt1 111'1I C!d ar,n nl'I"\ 
r nrtle-"''" 

(.',1.•h !IYPI Of\~ )Wf 

~lnflW!)"~rs 
M0t'-'l 1"-,e nw o,a1J 

Tn4•1 

M•IM~r4=ft.1l1 AAi11t'M1ttfl J1, 
ZOl.~ 202, 

s~..-.ss 51,8.4) 
} ~J.0 IQ l._989,07 
IOci, 7,1 l.~7-111 

i\ ft l 1-l'C'b U. \ ~ ut i\frir-t-h ~•• 
?OlS 10.!,4 

l..15U~ 1.lU-'!S 
!404~ 

27JI~ 
(12.lO/ 
J➔•JI 

ifu i.l Alnrit, )11 
llljl 

Ool.< 
:!.Hn 19 

JAl•.7J 

A• ■ r ,\ll1rth ,I I 11 
Wl~ 

'"" J) 
,,~89 07 

HS7.5U 

tit., Mar,1, .11. M&I Mmh JI, 
20?5 lDZ<I 

7l 7H 
T.1.1'1 

Notur4i 11f SH.urJUti 0,fftrtd fn rcapt.cf or nrur cd 1rnrklng caplrat IHn r, orn RnL B:mk 
IJ Prim,•rY .Sct"t.lrtt)'- F""'1d p-1fi r,~111!1 cn.,f.SC! 011 cm~ ~um.11! M)it.i~ nf lt~ co111r,1my, br;,th ~u mid t',uurr,. cnure mriw1 ,1~ 
fl:llt"d a:sr:.1:1 consisltngo<omeeN\u..,1c:nt. fon:i~un:- ori tic (lOfflftllflY, b~lh pt\."fcnl 11nd ruo,rc 

U) Gu,ttnlt'c- - Unco(1Ul\lofli.1111nd lr1TcvoubtcC0(})0ra!e1 Ou11rnntco.ur Mhi Vid1tl lfoi, lihen.reSc.ivk'n Pth,-,1c U1ni1ed. 

NOi lT: TAl.ktpliliy■bk., 

r1t1lr1111r1 As ~I M1uth 31, AJ9tl\hnh ::n. 
lQl:5 iou 

Nort curnnl Tn1 1J• 11a)',1)1~ 

Currtnt Traid~ P•~•11bft.a: 
·IOl•l cnil•Wn-1.fWu; d~!! or ,nicro Crl4c..-pr1~-t OilU o-mall CMUJ'rh~ '.l)J i 

~w,1111 ouutsndin,t: dues ot c.rcdtw,11.vthcr 1h011 mtcrn W llrpt~Hnt\cl iwn111U 1o.'f\fftpl~ 0,JS7 l1 S,145.r.s 

Tu111il lr•d, 11,11 .. l)k, ~.JAD,7P !tJ:l.lli.tiS' 

r, ,o,oi.o A.1 af Marth 31, /\s 11• ~•~nkl1. 
2025 202'1 

l•"•kf'1)-A' S,S6! n1 S,IQH< 
Trw.k: O.,..tib Ill 1¥1.itoJ P-J'I..UC.\ ◄ Kuft._'1 11~h.• .!J) Kil ~7 401u 
' I m;1:I u•ad,r_ ,ninbtu 6.lHD,10 <.14!,..115 



Tin, dlo<lo"'« pnr,u,nt to 1tic, Mi,10, Smill ,1,d Medium llnl•q,ri""' ll<l'<'lo,,.,,.,,11 l\d. lllCl~ (MSMell Act) ,sot M•r,:bl I. 
~OlU"'1 M•"'h j I. Z02-4 lu1 und...: 

hr1rt1d1tr, A11 ■ 1 f\111nbJt, ,U:.tM1rctl~l 1 

1015 20,. 

(al Pr111d1"t •mou,~ 1<llt1ining Ull(lllld 
(b) lntetcs1 Jue th~tmn ~1.--11l11nn1, tmp.ad 
\~) lnlc.rtiel p!!h) hy1lle Con1p1.11y io lt:l'\l'l• rifSec.111.111 I(, uf1he MSMEP l\ct, •l"11J; 
wilh lho 111rnoonl or1he pll.)'lnt!.n1 -mt.Jc ttt rlle :rnprUcr b!.:)'md L!R•ri"oif!ltd d.i)' 

l~\ Interest dut and ~)'lbk ror 1hc ~rlud ord,:hr_y in mft~ihgpa)1'r'l~I (whldl 1111~ 
been t11i1I bu\ b11yoo1.11t,c .appofo4,dd•y~lurint;the ~titnll twit wuknul i.11dlll£ lu,ete&I 
q1ccilled unuef ltk: !SMEDAcl 
(a) h111w;1 acctUcd 11rtd rtmo nlnR u1u,11W 
(f) f'\1MM.!t inJcre5i l"C!1flaitf1ihi; dut 111..d 1myil1ilc CV1.11t 11111\.J ,u«cci.lmgyc=OJ"lli, u~II -.,ch 
dutc: When U10 rhu:tcs.l du~N :u ■bo'fC~rc 1K:h1any p11id 10 lh!l 111,,1! e.ri,crpfi1>e11"or Ille 
r,Urpusc.orJidUo'w!llt"C e.s II dcsJuttiMe c.,r,:nditure under -"Cciion 23. 

fltrtlnah1rs 
1<01 ,.,...,. Lt.u lhon I }lt'nr 

MS\lf 1J m 

°'""" •US"-30 l.114.18 
m, OktttUcd dun MSME 
,v, Ou:nutc:-fJ due,. 01llcu 

P11riltulan. 
Notw1 due T.~ lh1u1 ivl•1rrl 

MSMF. 
Otl,,n 4 7K9..SJ JS6 ti 

IHID"-•""11!1.. MSME 
Ill'\-) DIJ:P1.netl tlu.:s • Otl!llf".!. 

' P11rllr,1laq A.s ■fMucb.:IL f\So1M1u't'h~1 1 

lilt$ 102• 

E"tt'lo)'l"'h<ll•fitspll)'l'bi< Mlt.95 1.,m.r,1 
Ctnin\l Floe.I fimcl 465 38 
Ol(,inal ~ih~r 41 o, 91 4~ 
Co11lt11tl lllblli1iu 5.~o, .. , -
()t~c, ·•"""la JS9 ll RG!OO 
'fotll ,,fl,.r MUr-r:af t hlJlutl■ I ll.tbiUlft\ I l.S70 .. ll J.1!10,(J 

Nol• 191 Cllhtr t1,blllllt1 

l•1r11cular1 ""'afMort.hl l, il\J"'lllfi\1111f'tf\31 , 
101."i 11124 

Statula!)'•oJ ud1cr li,blllli<s WU9 I.IJSJ7 
R,fuud fi■billty ss 1) I• '1 

11\<i fl' 1Hlfl~d0tt1'111 421~8 1,013.26 
lJncnmcd ri'~flUI!' 11,70, '' 
f-le,i11h 01<®111 U:trle'fl5U r~hlei 1Ct22S 
Enipki~e-a:1J Olh.,..,.. rayab 9366 
Othor libl1i1io• n:,.,i -
Torteal tlll,N lbhllldrt.. IUO,.JU J, l (tt1,,U 

tJua11u1dlnL• '" 1l ~' l M,1u,•f1 lOU 
l •l 1Ltnr.!1 l-Jyr..11n ~Inn' that1 l ,n1;1.n Tol•1 

lllll 23 l7 
JS l 6 .n 10 1 qo 6.J'IUl 

tl11\H11uHn • •\Hf J I M1,1 ,-rlt 1111.a 
1.1 't-iH, 1-.J \,(SI"\ i\l tu 'lt 111•11 J , c-•" 'h111 1 

-
S 145.U 



Bajaj Fin erv Health Limited 
oles to Consolidated inaneutl !itatem nts for th , e· rend d March 31. 2025 

(All amounts in ~ la\(:bs, except share dat a nnd where othcrwi • stated) 

Qle 20; Rcvcnu From Operation 

Th CCHll an 
Particular 

R venue from contracts with cu.~tomers 
- nle of servic 
Tfll, I revenue from 1 ,rulion 

Tho Comp ny collects G T on behalf o 

Rcco11ciliatlon ur revenue,. ,co •nrs •ti I lib contract >rlc,: 
Portico tar 

as per contracted pri e 

liabilities- Insurance premium 

ration · 

ote 21: Other inc me 

Particular 

l111crc I income from fixed deposits 
Int r • t income on loac 
Profit on Sale of Investment 
Unwinding of discount on security dcpo its 
Refund retained 
Interest on income lax refund 
Bu:inci Support Charges 

i ell neou~ Income (includ'ng reimbursements) 
rrofit on sa le of fixed asset 
Piolit on ale of Mutual fund 

ain n derecognilion of financial liabilities 

ota1 othc.- income 

otc 22: mployee benent expen I! 

Particular 

raining expenses 

·ovi<lenl und other funds 
•nt to employees 

For the year ended For y~ar ended 
March31,202 M,w~h31,2024 

8,463.59 61, 14.63 
88 46.3.59 61,514.63 

T is not included in Revenue from op ·rations. 

Notes 

27 
IJ 

For the year end d 
March 31. 2025 

79.733.03 

I J ,207.33 
1.901.87 

66,623.82 

or the year ended 
March 31, 2025 

27l.90 
0.08 

.00 
30.62 
57.03 
77.60 
96.43 

l SO.OS 
2.24 

20.28 
1.46 

712.69 

For the year ndcd 
M1m:h 31, 2025 

21,579.25 
41.90 

802.29 
j, 41:1 .19 

2 1.10 
1,446.75 

25,989.47 

For yea r ended 
larch 31, 2024 

7 l,638. I l 

S 525.62 
1.597. 6 

61,514.63 

For car ended 
March 31, 2024 

261.70 

184.79 
380.63 

14.27 

20.15 

861.SS 

For ye r ended 
M rch 31, 2024 

10,084.20 

369.10 
1,350.74 

136.57 
1,0 7.71 

13,028. 1 



DajaJ Ftn~ r II •llh ln1 iled 
Nfllc• lo Con nJJdJlfed FIHn•l•I 111l•m-,nts for rite yea r e.nded , 1 rch 31, 2025 
(All mminls i,1 , lnkh~, e~cepl shnI d~I• and whert'-ulhcrwise s1111cd) 

Notr 2:1: FlnYnte ro u 

Panlcul~r 

lnlcrcst Expemc: 
l11tc:1esc c~pen3e un leased linbilitie~ 
l11leres1 e~penOlffl 

I Loss cm derccognmon of lindnctnl hab1I ues 
Oihet b!llt'\lWtllM COSIS 

ITolnl 

Ohl 24: Depredarlon 11nd amorllJ don eq,ons 

Particular 

D~pr,•c1;11m11 of prop~rly, plonr and equipmenl 
Dcpreciolion on righr-of-usc a.sset 
IA111111h<111io11 uf'lntanulbli: a,;seLS 
T111~1 deuredullon u1d amnrttsa1lnn l'Tneru,e 

Nf!IC 25: Ott11r expense 

Partl ular 

Prorc:. sional & Ketul111:rship recs 
11s\or11Ct Scirv1cc c!J\im,;/provider claims 

Brnnd ~nd mark~1 i11~ 
Commu11iC11ti n charg,!s 
Mis~ellan~ou~ e pen~. 
Tr"vel and con )'anc~ 
omce cxpcnN!s 

Legnl und pl'Qf·s~ionul fetl!i 
B, d dchts ex1,ense. 
~tCfllllnl<'ntC~J)i:nscs 

R •p31111 ll!ld maintenance 

I 11ym.:11rs In nud11on1 

Rmcs and taxes 
£11pee1cd credit los, for tnide recoivablc:; 
Oonnrion 
O ll'<'Cl 

1ltlV 

Notes 

3 
4 
j 

F'nr the yur nd d 
Morch J 1. 1.0?S 

344,!H 
'l0.1'19 
54. S 
)8.18 

928.li0 

I F'nr the )'Clll' "1d d 
Maren 3 1, 2025 

605,:25 
1.194.4 9 
5.131.16 
6,930.90 

For lhe year ndl!d 
'\Ill ell I, 2025 

2 ,l86,24 
2'.17.84 
,317,58 

J.2.071.42 
19,4()3. 8 

J, t2~ .NO 
6.17 .73 
(,4 .35 
,l')C,40 

1.21 .7 1 
1,497.411 

122.65 
Jl.02 
2 ,42 

20 .Jl 
l'J .60 
36. IS 
07.82 
sooo 

120 
Sl.71 
I5 -M 

For . car unded 
Murch 31. 2024 

25L92 

151,92 

For ur ended 
March .11, 1024 

2<J3.85 
639.76 

1.740.15 
Z,673.75 

For year nded 
Marrh ) l. 2014 

19,204.57 

1(),978-47 
11,802.2 
1,742.51 
1,(,10,89 
1,225.32 

276.46 
1,473.42 

427.09 
()89.14 

19.89 
20.31 

IS. J 
5.49 

51 ,01 
-28 1.29 

61,78<1.U2 
arc not cllg,blc for cepilnlisntlun have becl1 

U .j)C.115eS 

c~pcnscd in the ~orind i11currad and rccogm,cd In other 

nl 25(a); l) 1:1111 11 pa m nl, to auditors 

l'arfkular For !he )'ear ended For year ended 
Mar•h JI. 2025 March 31, 2024 

p mc:nlto udltor 

IA~ uditor: 
Stu!Ulory !ludit foe )li ,00 4.00 
OIiier Service.~ . 
Tax aud,t ree 1.00 1.00 
Out 11fnn,"lt'( , . .1..1"11•1t\l:Q, 11.ftO 0<19 

T111,1 ox~meoll to n11dltor )960 5.49 



lh}li f ht~Wfll 11,-uk t htill~l 

,,...ii('~ fG Can~llfJl'!klt lrl",inth1t ~u•lu,1rntt. fer•hV)'c11r· t11.dtd Mnl'C'h JI, ZO.Z'­
jl\11 Hl"IIMJl\t1. In l falh:i. ~m,111-llllu,and 'lili)ei~olhwwUc:11tDtt'iJ) 

... . 11\f"lllffl'l'lt lJ t-r rl II I b I ,n·•--
t'11rtlcul•r 

f'\'r l. 

flih-11il'l • l 1111,,lt 
hwot1,,io,~ 

"'1Jtu1llm11!t .\tlXH 
h1i.1k rro:1v.,hii::i 

l 1"lli •t\d'.~J~l\.ec\ih.;ilni~ 
11\1 llnrtnd'.11~ 
r1t.~"1-llllk'tll•itl\..,_.1o 
I Nhll l f1.und■I a .-1tH JAx.,, 

.. , .. .-,,llbtlb111rru• .... 
T~cfl!~•:,;Lhlei 

~i.!li.llt,ltt1M 
U11rM¥tfo1.:-

Oih"" nlllJflcl1u l□bmli~ 
•r,i1 .. I fl.!11ntf11I 111,ltllhlft. 

Note '2:7: Fa.Ir- Va111c Hlrnin;hy 

A,.HM Jtd11lt !(IU, 
r,lr' \ 'itlUr 

VVOCI ' "'"'•lnt•FI . 

. 

. Ji,l!O) I.~ . ';: r;I0.71• 
- 1.l 44 tlJ 

n•o1 . 1, :H9.2.I!: 

~J6fl.l0 
l AW,lo4 

Jl ,UI . l l...~"lfJ iti 

zur.n~11 

,\l -• Matrh .HI 1.0 1', 

<.'l'tttylni,t Vl'tl11c- J a.lr\'IJe • 

rrv1•1, w ,,C'I r\nturllM'.d 
"- · 

,1n1C,l1 .N'i(Wl 

~,lltu.l! ;\,IUSM7 
71Mn 11'1 1.~,t,,9 ~'H 
l.l•~ .111 . ,..is s~ ,, .. , ll< 00 

l:N "'JIICllli "l'lS•n i ,_.11.,,..11,.eQ 

G.JSIJ10 l 14S,r.S 
3.UiJ~ 3,SS7.SO 

n ,~ 
IU'l'OJl't . ).lll'J L1 

lJ ..tft0._11114 . 11"1.ll 

The Cft.mpan)' u.11es the followln~ hierarchy for defcrtnin lni; a11d dl!i~lr,sln~ the f"ir value Qf fina11dal irutrumc·u !J hJUet1 Qn tht h 111u, ll11r11 l :11htnlnc111n1 f.n lh(" f•ll••f'.ufur mtusurem~nt u a whole: 

l,c,·d I: 
111.:-~'C' iDp4l1S 111c quolcd prii.:~ t1.mn.d_ittJtcd) in a crh·~ 1uarlc<!'LJ fo1 idcnilcu l ll:i:-t:ls.11i.nbi1itie~ dn1I Liu: cnll1y c~n l:l"-'1:--:"~ 111 111 • ~nc:.J liolH'(.lm.;:111 d,UC' 

Lo,-el 1: 
Thc.-sc inpul!I. arc- other thttn quolcd prices iuchidcct wi lhin LcYCI I thot nrc ohscr-...ablc for the ;,.;.$Cl er lfabili1y. ci1hrrdil'Ccilyor incfocctly 

LC\'CI ,1; 

111L's-: lnfHIL'\ nl'O unnhs.i!lvnhlc i n1~1l"t fo1• o..-.s~l!'Jlinbil iti. .. ·! Uin<1bic-rv.1blc inru ls- nrc u&ed lo tTWi.l:t;Un.: F11i1 Vnluc lo th~ .,;!(l~tll 1hnl t~ft,·o\nl rths ... ""l"Wllrk 11\l'U ~ tm: rmi r1wilJ\hl1;1 

Thl' ddnU.s of'fln11ncl1 I lnstrumenu tll:!1.t •re meuund at fRlr \'alul! oti r-,m, rrl nfit ba.s-11 as at MarL"h 31, 2025 ~nd M11r-th ') 1.201:4 -u, ,1v~T1 btlf'W: 

11 QunnllOlfhie UflthJr1t1irt1 

I'• Q11q ntlf11tln dl1ck>.surr-of fair \111h1e ,n.:.au1 rtmL"nt hft'n1f(.h)' for ~-5strs 

\ t •I \hlh l,.Jl ,Ul..!i ~ l-■f'th -11, !BlJ 

t•ILlr-t•llllf"ftl,tolltlU! ... - \ IJili.• Fo1fr , ••11-.- 1ur-.,,,..,."!In! 111.lnl: 
P11rtlc11ll'rt 011,MRlfirtc'C'fl ~nlJ'IC"l'lnf Qoel.l llp.r~ ,~t~1111lr-t1 11l l 

h111,tl,.~1Ut11iich 11IHc,.....11)1lt littJ UU- In .tfli"t: ,,,11r kc1, Ott\llf'U!Jlli ~11pwt, 
ltl -t':W rrl I ,1Jllll'\"i:U I •• l'\'l I L ~ lrn-t! 

t11,,t,:11111a1t, llldrd {pt 1111101 onkli;vrr1 JU."tTI "'0(tk\ -
fG1111I JMI' ' -~ 

-,1tC,110· 

C.:a rrylna 
V111l1111!. 

2")~ 90 
J,8 I5 8' 
7,)69 98 

-148 S4 
l 'HDO ,,_,, ... 

S, l<S 6S 
l .H7 SO 

l ,lMI,, 

I 111.17 

t la\i,: l;fS 11ff'IDOO!s ire Cllk'walal b1 di\'tdlr1g 11',e rror11 jh I~ )'-'!If t1UrH1lffAhk bl ili\1>1ly i'f\f'Ji:1--, llf ikl: f'Cl'\.'llil hj ti, w.!r~n.'\,f twer,Sl,'( 111\lnlllv •'tf l,"'11H) J011ftt!)UWru-Jillg JiW 111, lhe- Pl l>tlu1LJ R.11li 11tnU'UIIIJ 1111\! olcuhtetl by dhidi:ng lh..- rmt'it a1cribul.11bl;: l C\ 

t:-q\.111) IM-IJ'.cni n.tlliict. fl lll:Jll {allcr i.JJuiirltl}; lbr 111,,\trtsl m1111~ Ol.7:'.lnci.1 t.."Qllil)' , if nuy) by Ilk! 1,·dghr1~-.d ,11,·~~ nwnllli o, Eq11ity~b:m.-i (llilb l.:mdioi: ,l111i111:-1rn:" )UT Plus ,ht "''ri..1:l11L.J 1111ttl1£C numhf!1 nrt:.,11ti1y "'"''°" 1bn1 would be .U:u .... 1 on c;o,wffSion o r .1111 tl,c­

dJluflv•,r!!llrtnl~I Eq\ltlY"1t.11rtt 1"'6~wuy~~. 
l he- ~lt1Jwt11i; n.':Otttf. the 111C'.'MLJC eud ~I'\!" dlui U3('d h1 1L1i:- 1,~,1\'. .,~ d1l11t<'d ET'S U:.lllfl11h1tt ,111•~ 

1• 111nlii:~ l:;i" F~r llit )"•' tllth·i:I f?Ul' lh11 ~C"1u· t ni,~d 

t'lhrrh..\11 tOl;t.: \1 ~r~hll, 2fl1A 

Al 11n11•1 n1111bti.lllNC! la lht: ~!,[! Llilv N;!t~ am~ i'.fltnlf""": (1(.1,7(,11]) lU.J<,18Jl 
flj W~ta,11,~l l1W:{IICI=" 1u11bc, \)[ tq\1111)' ~,, ~ ""'"b,dil: ~mines- pt:r 2.~ 00 2 .. \00 

&!tat\.' 
£11ir1 1l11 ~ htl i Sh~ I OHfr\Ubl !M0 .• 7i '""·"' C) Wt1ll,N~.J n~ll.l:'t- ,1uh'lbe"r'1or etl' ili)' 1~10 rnr 1lflu1rJ l:J.lnr~ !"l('.I'" l\nJ1111t '794V< 
~ ... 
J!:1ti rhfflll ft.11,-C.t,m- OIIL1tl'd\ 11b, .. ,,,0....111 ,.,.,An 

•'■ rtft-11 1 fll'S t"itM- tP.t ,~111r e,idtd ~n.- irii:- yc-itr 1~td 
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BaJa I Flnserv Htalth Limited 
Note,; to Con•olltlatcd Financial slolemonls for the year end•i,! r,hroh JI, 202S 
(All "mounts in { lakbs. cxccp sl.lnrc do(n and whorc.01hcrww: sletad) 

N0tll 30: Lisi of sub.ddinrle5" included in consolidallon of financial slatemcnts: 

SIJ'lo. Name ur lhc Company Parent ompnny Country ol 
•~cornorallon 

Vidol 1-!eahhcart> Servic,i,; Privnlc Limited• 
Bajaj l'inscrv 11 ... 11th Ind in 

J Limited 
Vidal Health Jn,-umnoe TPA !'rival<! Vidal llct1hhcnre Scrvic~s 

India 
2. Limited• Priwto• Limitcd 

YH Mcdc-•rc Private Limited• 
Vldol llcolthcarc Sc.-icos 

India 
3 Private LimiJcd 

VH lntornational Ltc• 
Vidal Hcalll1c:ir~ Services 

Qat•r 4 Private Limited 

As nt 31st M:i.rch, As ot 3 Isl 
202S March, 2024 

lOO¾ -
100% -
100% -
100% -

•Bajaj ri11scrv Health LilTlile<I ocq11ired I 00% of cquiLy shares of Vidal Hoalthcure Servi~cs Private Umiu:d (and its wholly owned 
subsidJarlcs Vidal HClllth Insurance TPA Privotc Limited, VH Mcdc.irc Private Lim,tcd and VB lnlcmntional LLC) on 261h April, 2024, 

Note JI: O1,clo,ure of nddlt!onol lnrorntollon us required b~• PotHgf11ph l of the C.,me,·al lnslrucllon, for Propornllnn of Con olldot,d fin•ndot· Stulomenrs to Schedule Ill 111 the 
Compenle3 Act, 2013 

As nt March 31, 2025 For the vear ended March 31, 2025 
Net Assets, I.e. tolol assets minus llabilltlcs Sim re In orofit or luss Shure in or her romn rchtnslw illC:ome, 

SI N11, No.me of rhe cnlit)• In the Group 
Ar% uf consolldeted As 1/o of consolidated 

As ¾ or consolidated 

net sssels 
Amount 

profit or l~ss 
Amounl other compre'1enslve 

lncnme 
Parcnl compuoy 
Baj~j Finscro He~llh Limited IU7.S7% 44.325 80 ~().~~¼ (I J,&28 , t4) 73.44¾ 

Subsidiaries 
l11dla 

I Vidal Healthcare Services Privato Lim1\cd 18.60% 7,(i.62.43 , .Q,98¾ 166.84 -9.KO% 
Vidal Heid th ln•urance TPA l'nvale lim1l<J 

2 7.63% J.145.RS 2.86% (4RQ. l 6) -27.33% 
J VH Mcdcar< l'rivute Limucd • .61% ll,4&11 ~ 1) 5,04¾ (861.41) 3.77% 

Forl!/gn 

J VI I lntcmn1lr;,nnl LLC -0,21% (8t>,21\) 0.57'1/, (97.99) 0.00% 

Subtot3! 129",98¾ 53,559.02 88,.1B% (15,110.87) 40.08% 
Less; Effect cflnrcn:0111pa11y sdjuai.ncnrsl -29.98% (1'.l..3 53 7.1) 11 62¾ (l ,9R6.61J 9,92% 
~lhninotloo~ 
Total IOU.00% 41.20S.19 1011.00% fl 7.097.4K1 100.00% 

. . 
Nolo; Net assets un1I ,huro 111 profit or lo,~ for lh~ Pllrenl Coo1pu11y und s11bs1J1~nc< a1 ~ a~ p•r l~esrnndaluac ftnunc,al slotrnients or lite rtspetl1vc eo1h11,, . 

Nute 32; Business Combinations 
On Ap, ii 26, 2024, The Co111peoy ocquirctl I OD~ of ih• igsucd enpilol of Vluul I lenlll1cu1<. Servic.~ l'rlvale L1111ited {'VHC') fonm upfrout cash tmnsiderot,011 or Rs.21\,874,JS',VHC 
became n sub,idia1y or Oajaj FitLscrv Heallh Limited cffcct1ve April 2~, 21)24 oo ,s111i~fo,1ory comple1ion of the dos1ngcondl1io11s llJld hos been ~onsolid~t<:d with effecr from that 
d~lc, 

VHC i~ among India's lurg..st hcal\hoan: ndministrnlfllli, VHC hnol~nif1can1 prc'SCl1cc io servicing Co11mral~ Gr up p0licics, Rc1afl 111,urooce •s wdl., (iovcmmonl Health 
,11hemc,;, VllC'! lnlemotlonal busiru:s., provide, l1•~tnicch ohuio111; and Knowledge Process Ou1.,ourcing (l(PO) service.< lo global insur~nce ,mJ he-allh admini~1m101•s,The 
acquisition nf'YflC il~nincunlly expand• Bajaj Finscrv's capubilitics 1n the hcallhcorc •11aco, empowering it 10 service cn11•um r need• for hoipi1,ili'ia1io11, one urche larijcSt 
hi:allhcore spends celngorics. 

The fo,r Wllue of the p0r<:hil.>f cousidcrolinn or R, 24,874.35 hos bQon puid Upfmt11. Th,• fnir vulueor net ••~cts ~•quired oo 1l1e 11c'lulsi1ion d•I" umou,uod fo R~. 13,524.04. 'Too 
"~"""' of pmclt11sc con5iderotlon o er lhc fair vnlt1c of the net •~••t• ae<1uircd h•• been ullribmcd cow~1·u., suodwill. The goodwill ao,ounting lo R•.1 t ,350.J I i&-oluibu1abl~ to th~ 
workforce und high 1n-ofitnbility ofthc acq11l~d hu$iru.•"'5, Ooodwlll ori~ihg on the aequisi!lnn is not dcuuctiblo for t•ll l'Ul'pQ!<C'l<, The intangible a~mi; urc amoni.scd ovc,· o period of 
3-1 O ~"' H! por 1no1lngcmcnl 's csli1nefc or lls u~f~l li fc, over which aconomic benefits ore c•pc•tcd to be realised. Refer 1,blc l>clow lbr s111n111ocy ofnc:t osscts ocq1llrc1l, 

Frol\l 1,h., da te of' ocquisi1ion, YflG l•aij contributed re.venue• ~mounting 10 Rs, 21, 41.'IS and loss tmounting lo Rs. 1,282,67 lo the Group'• p<rtbrmoncc for the year ended March 
31.1025 If the ••~11isillan had lnl<c11 pla.c< al Lile beginning or lh~ year. re.vonnt:$ would have ~con Rs. 23,252.46 a,,d the loss would have been lls.2,•IOS.51. 

Summe.ry of net ~Meis ncqulrl'tl: 

l'nrtlculnrs Amounl 

Property, pla·n1 and cquil"nenl 539.17 
rtight-of•11M assets 802,RS 

)111anglble.; asseto J~ .. 173.8\l 
1 'l'r~dc- reee,vubl~s 7,R(l5,6i 

Ca•h ~nd cs•h ~uivalcn!i 1,391.67 

BorrowinV -9,801,54 

UM¢ l!abilitic• -84049 

T111dc payables -l ,844,J0 

Prc,visions -J,642,72 

Olhcr ••~ts/(liabil ilies) -1,214.99 

lnonrn.c 1axc• asscts/(H~billU,~) 2,252.28 

Ocforred 1411 Liabilities 2.70172 

Nd ~ssels- 13524.04 
Goodwill 11,350.31 

Tolul purchuso ort«, 14.874.35 

Amounl 

115.27 

( I S.38) 

(42.89) 

S.91 

62.91 
94.04 

156.94 
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Bajaj F inserv Health Limited 
Notes In Cmisolidered Financial siatemeuts for lhe year ended M~rch 31, 202S 
(All amounrs int lakhs, except share dala nnd where otherwise s1~ted) 

Nole 34: Fair Value Hierarchy 

a. Fair value offlnancial Instruments not measured at fair value 

Fair va lue or llnandal Instruments not measured al fair value as et M~reh,Jl,2024 end March 31, 2025 
Management considers the carrying amounts of financial assets and linancial liabilities in the financial s1a1emen1s, except as per note above. 

2. Financial risk management objcc lives and policies 

The principal Iinandal liabililics or company co111pri~e lnu!t and other payables, lease liabilities. The m;iin purpose or1hcst financia l hal,,ililies is to lln~ncc 
the operations of company and to provide guarantees lo support i1s operations. Tho principal financial assets of company include trade and 01hcr 
receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations. The company is expos,::d lo market risk, credi1 risk . The Group's senior 
Market risk 
Market risk is the ris k that the fair value of fu turo:cush flows of a lin.anciu l ins1rument will Ouctuate becau sc of changes in market prices. Market risk 
comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk . 

lnterear rate risk 
lnleresl rale risk is the risk 1ha1 lhc !iii, value or fmu,e cash nows or a linancial instrument will Ouctuare because or changes in rna ,ket mlercst rates. The 
exposure to the risk of changes in marl<et in1crcst rates rcla1cs primuri ly to the long term lease paymen1s. 
The Company invests the suvplus fund generated from operations in short 1e1m deposits with banks and m111ual funds. Rank depos 11s arc made for a short 
term period of upto 12 months can,' interest rate as per prevai ling m arkel interest rate. Considering U1ese bank deposils are shorl tenn in nature. there is no 

Foreign currency risk 
Foreign currency risk is the risk tl1a1 rl\e lair value or fmure cash tlowi; of an exposure wi ll lluctuate becAuse of changes in foreign exchange rares. The risk 
or changes in foreign exchange rates for company relales primari ly to the opcralingactivities(when expense is denominated in a foreign ctHTCncy). Loss 
booked due to fluct11at ion i11 exchange rate amount~ 10 R, 0.52 lakh,, in FY 22-23 Rs (3.92 lakh~ in FY 21-22) 

Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk lhat counh:rpany will noL meel ils obligat ions un<.lcr a fi nanciHI instrument or custom er conlrncl, leading to a tinam:ial loss. The 
company is exposed lo credit risk from its operating activities (primari ly trade receivables) and from its fri1ancing act ivities, including shor1 term deposits 
wilh banks and financial i11stitutions. and other financial i11strnmenls . 

Financial Instruments and cash deposits 
Credit risk from balances wiU1 banks and financial inst i1utions is managed by the finance departmenl in ac<:ordance with the guidance from hnld ing 
company. Investments of surp lus funds are made only with approveJ.! counterpanies keeping view ofcredil risk associated with each counterparty. 

Prudent liquidity risk manog~ment implies maintaining sunicient cash and markelable stcurilies and availabi lity or runding lo meel obligations when due 
and to close out market positions. Management monitors forecasts of the liquidity position of company and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of 
expected cash nows 

The table below shows an analysis ofasselS and liabilities analysed (maturity analysis) according Lo when they are to be recovered Or settled 

31-Mor-25 31-Mar-24 
Psrliculal's Within 12 mnnlh~ After 12 mnnrhA Tulal Wilhin ll munlhs After I 2 month~ Total 
Ass~ls 
Property, pl•nl and equipmenl . 1,922.03 1,922.03 1.042.38 1,042.38 
Right of Use Asset - 3,190.49 3,190.49 . 3,566.51 3,566.51 
Goodwill 11.350.31 I 1,350.31 
Other intangible assets . 24,374. I I 24,374.11 . 8,058.83 8,058.83 
Other cu rrent assets 19.874.99 1,502.02 21,377.01 4,960.93 1,541.67 6,502.60 
C'urrenl tax assets (net) . - - 370.89 370.89 
Investments . 308.73 308.73 295.90 . 295.90 
Tr~de receivables R,805. 15 . 8.805, IS 3,815.87 - 3,815.87 
C'ash and cash equiva lents 7.610.76 7,610.76 7.369 98 . 7,369.98 
Deferred Tax asset & Cu,nnl tax asset 7.775.32 7.775.32 
Securi ty deposits - - 448.54 448.54 
Other balances with banks 739.07 7J9.o7 175.00 175,00 
Olller l"inanciel assets 750.62 493.67 1.244.29 45.69 - 45.69 
TolPI Assets 37,780.59 !if).916.li8 llll.li97.29 lli.li6J..V1 15,029.83 31,692.21 
Liabilities 
Provisions 5,216.30 509.77 5.726.07 2,296.76 348.03 2,644.79 
Other cu1Tem liabilit ies 19,297.P.2 19.297.82 2,166.44 2, I 66.44 
Trade payables 6,380.70 6,380.70 5.145.65 . 5, 145.65 
Current ta~ liabi lity 7.51 7.51 
Borrowing 73.78 73.78 
Lease liabilities 886.55 2,540.19 2,540, 19 568.43 2.989,07 3,557.49 
Other financial liabilities 12.579.36 12.579.36 3.209.13 - 3.209.13 
T<1tal Liabilities 44.368 .23 3.IB.74 47.491.911 L\.386.41 3,337.10 16.723.Sl 

Net (7,544.96} 16.453.IS 41.205.J I 2.992.31 11,039.76 15.032.10 -
. so.---, ' t 
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~ofc .,lS; C.olllll 11J1d •ltKr cm11mh~t, 
111Jtltlll:t C"111J.Uf1Lll l'IC'IIU. 
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'l'Y•twik-1 
TllC'fDit Y:ililL:! .. i;t'flNI \lilt (llrflf'llk'lfl~.,-•n1al ~ .-,r,,r/1211. 2021 w.1.., R,:: J,.1,50. I&. Ttu: r~i, .,.,Ull II\ ftH'll l~■ li: i,.111(1ie1m illeil u~IJ111 1hc blxlc :ldtolt11 motk:I. wL)di 111:c., ll'llb a\'\:OOft[ lhiC'cX~t dw: [lfltt, 1111'. ldWl nrq,1l<in, ltac-1bn1c f\l" lct!IIIJ .,-~l)I iblk 

~rid l'.llfl~"di.11 vnl.aeilil.)' oflh<' tH111Jc,Jyjnp lhlr(', ti1c.C"l(JI C"C:lcd dhidnid-yidd •nd rhc.rl~k: (1a:- Jnlcft:,111111~1 for tht. 1crn1 oftltc- fif11kin 

Thlllrlu- ,l 
··~ f:lir Y(ll(li;.'.11 sran.t d,i(C aroPJion,srnnlc:icl 1:111 AJ!fil 21. 2022 w:;i~ RII ~.09] 10, th,; fhlr ~ 111C11t gr.irtl d1tc- ii d,:11T11dr1(d n•;i(1111hc bfaci:. ~~ m t'ldd \\itji;.I, •~k('5.f:pl11tcwl1f\l lM C.•~i;-ik"f'rke.. lite l('flrl 1:1ropli.m. Ille ll'an:l ruH:c111 tr.nl ililk 

•ntlc.,1«.rill wl•1lll(tt1(1hc: ur11ktlyfn11h•1t. ,ti, Oflttl,:,I d.l~ ith-nd ytel rJ 1ml 1he rlsi rrccl ri li:"Jt.\l: uJc for 1'1r 11 n 1r r,t 1M:Of!Llo. 

Tnnidtc4 
The llllf V;'ll11i;: .tr ,ltfflllll date of arrkiiJI ;.,,111~ n11 AL1511(1 t12, ?02~ WM R< s,t1.f•. Tl1e tillr 1-,Jw 11! lfllrll Ll~tc, b dnctruincJ tra11g 1hc.1lbd: sdl~ i:n.r.:lei, ~iid1 Ulltu f.f'm :tcl'ttlltU IIW! i:~ Ill;~ IIW! la-110 ul oi-Dt, rli..u~1:1re tN"la! it 1,hUl l Liaw 
,JuJ t•rtttl!ll \l'uf,tUlllY ar 1111C IJl'li)Q'lJ1~ ... illrt. ,,1.- 11'.'1:~l;.'o,l iJ1~\ Y'(1J 11nJ I~ rli;k fro= Jtlil,i:.~I ral,c: ,L~ ~~ "'-"'111 l1fl":.: ~lit t"1 

1'ru1d1c-" 
T .. t t11 ir \tlllJL' 11 .,-,11, diik ~OfMlit;iri, e,r■-tw.lni1 ,\(v i1 l1.l021 \tH R:t<1•-U.l. Tho C.ir 1'1\\ucut v-tllld.\c is 1J1:1;.-n11ii1N 11:,11111- it- c- bb.rii .u::!JOlcil mo&:11 ...,.Ir~ u.ka h Ill:~ IIM=:a.tt('is.cpii:e;. 1lt-e mni ;;iiror-110f\, ,~ dM1n: p11cc- ■ I ,!11101 d11e 

undt,rt"l.'1~ m!Rlllilyo(ULc, 11111krlym1: mlti:. rh CX,j.CC'lnlilr.-i-.li.:tld )'ii:ld fllld 1he ,islL 6-~ •~-=C'OJ n.li;., lut thi:. 1crm 1{llg: nr' '"" 

Tr11Mh.:: fi 
'111c- l11, w1uir •I 1,1t111ll dale nfott11ffll111j11n1<d 11111 Af'ull '7.J[JH w:JJ lh s1i.._◄ I tlic ~i.r ,"R.1~~111 gr;i,il 1l1k l.i tkt~1mln,:d 11t.-ing 1bc bt.Jdt &dolct 1r,rwJ~t whld11111lrtfln111 llrt"t111ltll 1hc"ii;erc:bir pm:., lhc l,;:t~ nrwtlrin Ill( , h,1rc{W11C1:11l 1V.11'1I dM111. 
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a. l)J. rn11; lhc- P\ " 2014.f.J, D1e. 1Kome ·1 uAlilhorllie!!. ~ 1.n Or&.'I' l.h l,l}C"ltonlu:lm:om,T.111.,\ ~ . 11M I a111tnilv<11k111.-.i.l1,(K1- 11 ](,, f« A.\ 1011, 12: bytlfNIIO"timtil«11~rtll IC'\[X'l&:L 'lli.c.C('m'1l1m1Ji.u fiti.:J ~n ::flf!CDI DIDilHI lhc s111J 
Orlitr tN:krrc: ,he Ccin ti~ nf l[1,cu111r T.:i, (l\pp('lib) f"( rT {1\ f"). Thi' pt-,l w.;;i3 t.h:mun,..d by CIT {i\) ltl1 N'htuft~. ~I ~ Ttv, ,1 1.11l~Y' hg◄ 'Niril :nopp~11I lle.f~ c. llk.m~ T,ffl: ,\ru·lhlc- TrXml"l<II •QCh t~I 1hc- orcfcr ufC'IT j1\)Jrte1.lflll:: Tu 

/l(a:tJ:i ,-.· Trh;1m~ 111 r:mf\111-fYiUlO p1m1:d lhc11ik.'f P"flinll)'•U,.,.wmi,: 111..:.-ii r,al,..., CC't 1:1.in nmtcrs lffld \\1111 ,n dif\\hlni 'IU f\~1ir1U 011\i:t1 ~1• 1~ililo( di~.:iHo,, llm!~ j lkt -n11Ju lfan ror ilr~ oll1er La.i,Ll!t 11~ ~~;:I. 

1-. /)~11 Uni r ( !tll•l .L\ lhQ lnt;, -r,ie Tn\:A,1100r 11c1 r~dH ' lnll."I IJt,- 1·0 (11•\I c ho:o,n,c foi. .,,,, liMI • r11 i 11;1l...._'ll Jcna.w.i"°1'1t,._ 1._ Ul l-11 A. Y JO ll•ll l 'i ~illlitl0o1nt n:n.11111 i.:.~pr~. TI11.:f ""llf°•HJ hJi, ~. li.,J :u1 _.r1•i.: :.t:1)C11lr1.st lhc.,_..J 
n,d« h.'.koto"' 1-, u C111111~1 of h" ~ T AA {J'l.'1'fl~Ll;I C"'ClfLO•, Thr ~,-elf 1H• Jl~mlM.IIJ f,- C IT Ci't,1 ii!t h"•1i.lry, 104~ The !;,,n111~)' h ,u fik,.,.I M aii;,pi.:~I Id" 1•n.• l M.'tlU'tC 1 .1.11 Apdh1tr Tnht■•l •l'Dill'III 1L,e onb IJI' Cl T (1\)..1110."00IC Tu: 
Arl.!11 I' I ri!, ,11.1111 11 ~~Nt,: .'l\')l jlm14.~1!1C"nrd..•q ,~l',ii,1lr1111uwL1'1i, lhc 11a,,..,..f111H1i.1.tni11 M."IH~YoriJ w " ~1'l.fl to .A.,,...,~1n1,1 ~1n~i:r fot 1drtl'1ft or;l'.1,;dl,:iwftntc 3nn ,~11,i:;ttlun fiY Cht" ,eii:, 111/11.,"l'tiul~ i,JIPCaL 

,c, t;II•~ Ilk' 1-'Y .::0.1.12 . ,.,,, .... , mw r., Alll1t1•PitlA ,,..,..,LLI a OHM' lh Hij~} .. l"t,c l1n,tnicT11.\ ,\t'l, 1.1),1;1 IM1LI Nli\i:t11km11.1 oflC~. l:! fl'' f(lf A. Y. ~-In l1y ili~:'1.tl'owlliw: n:ri., in C'\'fli.'i~ 'l1k- Co11rrtm)'hM if k-d .>II ll!C'l'('ftr 111,::llrrd th1:" d 
n,111.T ~ nH' •ht: f'"'911•~~1••L'111/ lrp1,111'•10T,u r4pp::1,1~i l'T'llt AJ""J Cl t (A) ~ .21.1 npurl"-".1.W:,O .. , l1:11•~ 2011t,"i bct:iffh1it!I~ lllcdu11 llflfle.l.4hclu«:.l11t lh,_,.im.-,~ Aj1pi:l:tk Tr.hi.~111 ~1,;i l11sl lhc Ill'~~ urllio,: m ·.tn Orl J!Ol1U111»11K:"'f11• 
.A1irc:.Li%! Tfibm•wlllr1a~nddc ~ ■. 1,J n1ctcr, ,f1.' 1UA1 11t11df""'"'"~ ~nct r 1A1 un .,J;i.4111, 111fo1 •• 11111•r1 1,. 

J. 1)111, IJtt' ll' 11ll~A7. ftc: IIM.1 1o 1.t, ~lillmJ 1111!.f fWll."""anlllldn U• t ◄U.Hold l••~n ,14'" ' -'LA.l 11')(,I nJ 1.-, 14(l1IL'tlm'Jil 11f-M1. •~ _,.7 ,., "' \' !hi f,IJll)',1~.Nb,t.,il t.i:1l,1 tn qi'CMIClt. 11 .. t••'l'fl ,11•~ hn tU~l.1•11 ,,,rid r,_.i11q ll11f,~iiad 
~Jr4'rt ►,-foi fl\~(tl'tllllli....,,.1111'1 Ol lfl011t■ t' lt1, (A(llllll,:,-tJ... .. J t~c.'11'<1,\rl,. Jltc: 11,■ipr,cal ,.1b 1.,1W~ b\ f IP '4'l h J~ry, WJ• I~ c·u~ [, 1011·1'• •C'l:!II b:rorz. lr1cc. tu~ Afl('l kl.1C' hUi111J1I ""'liiu1 tl,\" •drt hfl"'II I/\~. ln.r:o)rltc T~ 

,\l-ll;11,• T ~"'-'11.if lr1 r'(l', .. l7lUl<J 1,~1ht N'1'.~r tw•lluJI) 4-'lnf,lhci a t+i,"llfnn n.1-..Jht n,i■IICO 11111f 11'\1h• .-.-n111, .. 1 ~NN>11•191U1i1n lm,kMlunt.., .,.~·.11llft' ,1!1(1 ...._,""" ■sic,, h11 tliwnlwr m ,111!.:1 lll¥i"" .,.~ 

.;..1J,aa11'i' ~ )V •'''i'H.j , lfl, k r,,,nm 11C f11 • ~V1~1'111 ll.6;'- J' ,'1oK'! I .., ◄ lr-1,0 L'"' J-1.,tl)o/ 11lc f, ,1·L•1•1c 11(1, /m. L~ll M11.1 l n•bc- ld~...,.1111d tll k11 ~lllll l., h.11 A. V ~J l1,I I l,y,l!-,_.,.tnv.,,. rl!th 1~•~rr-~ lh C~r llkd"' :tiT'-••r,;1111111l1C! 

•rlM Omt, J'(l11rl?' 1l11! C ·narn,,b:-1t1tn of 1•1N-iM 1 .... IAf'T""'l~H 1C 1 lf A)"'I I~ .J ,~•ti '60 tll11mlf,,.~ ,,,. ( U f.,\ I ~- l•rir11 IJ ~- J:lllll j l1d"C'1•1r~ ~, ~ .. Ultil "''"' rr,rtl !dt..: h.c~ JuiL .Ajllc:lllla T~1n.al ·~IIJII I itlc on.l a . re· l I f .\ J ln1Mt1•11' 'I'll, 
,\~littt r . .. , lit 11c+-i1111fy~I~ ............. M.!cr-,,..-n-.lJ) niiuw!.i,c lllt'lj lJI ,11 Ill\ u·rr1LUI lll olJ ta .. .alill w.l-. 1t ltffc,~tlel tu A-.lflWll: ()Olen 1w Lirlnllm wtJi,,.dl1\IUtf1 l,.O:.Ji.l"t '<ltrlrlii•lltlA kl' lltc- N~ wwn~, 111MVJ .. 

l r Ottf~ lhor rY 2tU~-20.kl11.comc'f11.-. A1dbortlb u.iti.."d .31b'lllll!: '"' Jls.i11HIW1"1-:al'c\ii; lllli!r■:~11'tt111bi"lllmJ 1."IC.!, 2(1(1 ~ ,~Mfi Ill t llM.lCJ A1,r11.~ rOl"' AY .?n l.\-[ I :11'1 1JI l!ldjlllk-d •hl.1,,'or\UlC DIM o(lufund cLc Iii' AV lOU•IIC 

liil • [Jllrle~ rl)r,; y 2021-!2,lliic lflCOO"lt: I aJ: A1.1lh111ilk • hi 'L' ,C p.,s~dardr:r 111'1. I ◄ / rm:! wall scc:lioo 1 ◄ 41l of Ille A d fof A'( 1014~15 rilis l!Jll a dcm~nd ofMst.240_2.) 111001, •vith I l'IOIICt' li:lrf1~t.lllt ) prON!IXfffl&J lhc C"011ilf'IJ11yb:::i~ l,kJ 1111 11,pJ)c~ bcfC11: 

1tic ColtVl,,m, II\'( o rl11c~ Ltt 1~,p1,rt1IS) al hP.J; ~p~c-d 1'.i:ir:t ::fl:t)'nf1lr111und 01Wlft8 lhf fl,' 10~:!-23. ,"ft -anJ.OU III Pl"R~ "I .-II ~ btti, rttOW"r~I LOYl·!l l'lli iht fl•l>C , 

n. ,,,..'hl!C !he F, W22-1J. lh: •nfLlffli:Tn ,\nlh■rili::s p:»~ :m On1C1 IJI~ l,tl(,O cfltii:' lllfOIRC: l ll.\ \ ( t. 0(,1 J1111 >dJtllt-~ .:.d,J il((Hl :11 tQ~ of R~ In ,\l Olli or M.e[ond Out ru- A , , 20!1-ll :imr.n1 r;J,11 nr c-r•l.11111 nddillon., in lt1t0Jne Thi: 
C.ll!'Wl"'jhlU r,ried ■ II ~f1tirul a11:1ln,1 lht' 1.S (.)rdL"I" hrfr,1: lh-.:C-n1111111~~rk' r n(lai:0ti111::T•~ tAJ111fllb) 

I, "lhc C.'1mtp,my h11.t lileo •r(U' IM wfll1 ITAT •in t CJl,a lr1 di.t:illn"'JncU tu r\!C' C':1.lml or R. :,; 41 .,5 r .... tl•c:A \. l Olll-1 \1 l lit~n IIJ ric:u1rfi11, bdilfC' h1n1mc- 111,: Aprclllc 1.-111u11,il r.v lin.lf dL~ 

II.Vil P.lt:Llt.r1tC' r rhlfr (..l111llrd 

I . ll>S fkt1.ll'ID"'1 l hl1'1R1Cd \t inriand 111Jl6CC. ltl Vtl .fl.fl;:~c fu- aot.1 dc-dl.lW!Jn ol'llJS (.,- A Y 2011- llt (er It,. IJ..JI C.:of11f1:iny h"°' lkd 111 Arf•cal wnb t , 1 (Appeal q 

••• b,11 1C:1:l't•lll'IMU-11 a.fC' 

if.SIC: hn1 M11111odt'LI :1 ,;um nrR■.Ji ra rl"U"ln V111al 1ri::1tth l1m1111,1t c TPA J'tW:.1c Uml11:1L 111\\1'3111~ l!Tln r ;1~m• l-•' 1-.SI c. ,1.llrl"111~111 ol ihe cinpl\1')'1:1:!-~ 11fN111h,:i: UrAl'ICti l(U Llt,c- (ll't~id l:ll Mi11cl1 ~t:ll• l In 1,11h Ap.-'il lOJlf rl1r: C'm,lflunynrit~Pil 1l1"1.,. 
r,tl(l '4111tihtnll."tn ii~ f\llliJ IEl!dtt a 1'1ilTfO'c-ol Jh11nc• ceJ,c.-ail(j b, ~11t)I' il 1cctinlt1d ,:.~ "Tht c·onrl/'I) b:a mi,:.:. f1lcd:u1 A(lp..:il bd<w-. ... ilic °"Pl"i~c: Au1horC.'i, ~ ulla p&)iine, 2YYa 0Hl1,e drnimwJ u4 l~~ UC 1111 ol'dck1ic,11Qt1kc(bnllllil 

"l he Suj,if'll!:r."rn,lU L~ l ,ul1.n ii'\ ll1e nttm1h 1-t Fd~r') 2019 bilil pli:'-~ i:1j(1~,:"1e-D4 rdl'llltq;_li \l.ltlhliC•l11 11! ""-1111,-(~ lll~t'l li'i..:- rruyrcknr Fllni.lA..:I 1!1.5.2. lli:rwn v, ..:•11"15,••fnM; lifllt tl1,:-1; 1t1,c-11mnc,1111t iiiLI.C"rp1,i1J.ll•"•c ~ .diiL"llll lo 1hbj1d1;~1L 
111il11'1 1t~ i:iltie-~lf't1frdiJ.1111!1ll!'Mtw t,n,, i:11ttlf 1bl! ri,O'n$#VI lli,e Gr~ 1t:il e, °"-t11i: it$ ftOSIIKNI nrid ~1PiMpt'l)IIJ.l011. • ,tqtiiud.on,~111111 fon lk'!rri..u ill an 1~ Wll>Jed lhi!tr1:1M, -c-1n.e l"'ldoeA 111~ e,.r,a, IM)'m:imioil irur,:i.cl 0rt lht fi n~i"d~I 
111Wkmcnlt1olthc Oour 

~?t,h•.~ t ,\1l• tllh1 ,uil lln,-l•lt1n N.u11kt1HC'IIU 

0 Rtl11lln11,hlp "M-1111 l ll'Uc\i; 1'11h11mp11J1ltt 
r:11,,.11111 !Y't 

... .., 

•"-■ lllH nl ll1lawe.'l1lfltfntrl .,. Kf'l.1tMilidrfip, fflttti 11.c 
1r1111.111tlh1111111Ch '\jt V<k 1111' ~omp11n~ 

, 1,.nc1t.. 111 n c"fllof'II'" 

'1111:r c•I Hll.a,tte 111rW1111di11~ Rtl1dM~hip ,~i1b lhc: 
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kkc & associates Up 
Cl·i;:1r·t:(in,1d Account;:1nt~ 
(former(y Khimji t<:unvwji & CQ LL.Pl 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To, 
Thi: Mi,m1ber:; t,il, 
ll,1jaj Fin~erv Health l.imit1id 

Report on the audit of the StaodatoM Finandal Statcmems 

Or)inio,1 

l. We havci audiltd thC1 iH:comp,inying S\';,r1dak>11e Fi11andal Stat()l1lenh: of Baj.;ij Fin!;trv Ho;;•ltl1 l..imittH.1 (tlw ·company'), 

whid1 compri~P Hw St.,11Hfato1w Bal,H'l<:l! ShN!t ai; ,it. 31 March 20;rn, tht\ S1aii<falo1w S\at(mwnt ()f f'rnfit and l.o~s (induding 

Other (ornprellt•n!;ive lnconw), $t.:ind,!l\,rW Stal1'JlW1H of Change~ in Equily and Standalonr! St·atmn(mt of C,ish Fl!)WS for 

t.hc y(!ill' (md,id nn th,1t d.{te, and note5 to the Stan!lal!)n11 Finarn;i.i! St:Wimer\t.S, intluding ~ &llmin.1ry of 111:ltcrial 
,KW\llHing po(ky in,Mn·i,Hion arid otlH,r expl;rnatory i11formaticrn llht~ 'Standaloiw Finand,)l S!,*'.1'111~11t•;'). 

2. In our opinion and to l.hc b~'~l Q/ our inlonnaUon and ,icconlini~ to the expl.inatlcm~ giv1m tc) u:;, tlw ;,iforn~akJ St,rnd,il\i1w 

FinMcfol Sl',)hWWnl:; give Orn infrirm,1tion mquirnd by the Companies ,~ct, Ull.:J (t.hll 'Act') i1\ the 1Mrnne1· so 1·equired and 

RiVt• a ll'lH,1 ;)11d fatr vt1~w In conlon11ity wlth Ille lnc/i.an Acu,1untin1~ St;indMdS pr~•~c.rib(td un1fol' ~fii:-Uon l.33 of I.he A,.1 rtlild 

wHh th,~ Cno·1p,wies (lndi,in At:c()unt:ing Svi1ldi'Jrd~.) fa1k,, :IOJ.!), a~ ;mwndHd, ('lnd AS') ,ind other accounting principles 
gt'11Nally acc.epwd in lncfo, d th(: S\,llQ of Affair"~ of llw Company as at :n March 20✓.s, ,,m.1 it:. Loi;!, .incl Otlwr 
C:orl\pl'ehen~ive 11\rnme, Ct1a111-:0~ in Equity Mid it, C,H,h Fl•)\% for the yc•11r endr!cl on that dalft, 

8.l$is for Opinion 

:t we conducted our audit iri ac;cnrdance with tlw St',1ndard1. on Audit.inc n:.At) srwdliNf on/11->r s(·'f'tinrl 14:~(lO) of thr Mt. 

Our n:isponsibilitic5 under thost1i SA~, ,in~ flirllw1 dl•&uibed in tile Audllof'~ Re~pun~;ibilitit:!:; rot" the Audit ()ftht St.:rnd,ilon(, 
Financial Statenrnnts sc!;tion of ~wr n~pnrt. Wi• am in<Hwndent or the Comp:rny i11 Jc;:{;<ml,1tKc: with the Code of 1:1.hk~ 

issued by thi) 1nstHutt1 of Ch,\rtered Accountants of lndl.i ('KAI') togNlwr with lhti cthirnl r<!qulwnwnts that ,'H't' r(ilr.:vant 

ro our .iudit of t.lw St,-mdillone Finarn;ial Statements. under the provh,iom; of th(• Ar.I., and t.hc ruk•s lherNmde1·, ,ind we h,iw 
!ulfitl~~d our ot.trnr (ilhical n1spr.1r1sibtliti(,s in atcordance with the-s{I rnquirnments ,md th<,i Cod11 oi (;thin:, we believt• th,Jt 

the audit evidr,111<:(~ wt~ have obl'ainc1d h; suffi(;i(rnt ,ind ;ippl'opri;Jt(' to provide a basis for· out opinion ()11 th1~ Stand,1lon~1 
Fin,1nd.il St;:ito1n1~nt·s, 

Other Information 

4, The C<m1p,:iny'& Board of Directors i$ re~p1:H1$ibl<\ for lli\~ ot·hoi' tnformMion. Tht• other informatkm c<impl'ises the~ 
inlor·m.iti()l1 itKluded ill the Con11)aliy'r, ,innui'll r<:-p()rt lHll do1is not include the St,indalone Flnand,11 Statmnenl!i irnd our 

,ludlum;' rnporl. th0rnon. Tll(l Other Information i5 exp~)c.ltid lo b,~ milcJ\I avail,ibl<~ t.o \l& aftN the date of this .~uditor's 
report. 

!l. Our opinitrn on tlwSl.irndalorw Ftriimclal Statements docir; not f;overUHi ()t:twr inlornu1tion ,Hld we do not express ,lily form 
of a:;:;urancc conch1~illn th<)reon. 

~}. 111 c:orn1ection with ()ur ,Hidit of t.lw St:iHHfalone Flrlilndal Statements, our respon~lbilily is to r(:1itd 1:h1~ 01.her i11fo1·1i1-•linn 

idt•ntHi(~d abOV(' whell it becomes availablo and, in {j()ing S(), wn~iclN whether the other information is mat~rially 

inconsl~;tent with th~! Stanclato11e Fin:mcl::il St·atimw111.(: <.)!' our klltlw(Nlgo obtained in the ,1uclil or ot'h(•rwh:t' ,lpp!J.H:; to ht: 

matNi,1!1y missl~it.ed. If, ba:;e(I ~lll 1he w<1rk WfJ h,wo pt•rfornwd, vm u1ndude. that tiler(;' i~ 11 nrnterial mj~st11tc!nw11\ of this 
other itiformM.ion, we aro reqtiinld t() rr~p()rt tll,H foci:. 

~AJil:e s:i. Bornb,iy M1H1,ral l~uilding, Sir Phinm;hah Mehta Ro,icl, Fort, Muml:iai 400()0.1., ln(li;; 
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Ch,:lrton•d Ac;couritanh 
(formerly Khimji l<unverji & Co LLP) 

Re~pon~lbilities of Man.)gement and Thotc Charged with Governance for the Standalone Financial Statlmrnllb 

8. Thi.' Comp,iny'$ 13(liHd 1)f Direl'.tor~ is rn~pM,ible for the n1,ith!n; stal1id ln 5etlion 1J4((i) of llw Ad, with m:;p(•ct lo th(: 

prep,lrntion ol tfl(l~tl S\dndi1lo,w Fin,-inda! St,1lPrn(:nb \11,l\ giw ,) tru;·) ,md foir view of the .Statt1 of Alfain;, LN:i; ;,Hid OIIWI' 

Comprnl1~}nsiv0 lnrnme, Clmnf',(!S in Equity ,rnd Cii,h now~ of Ow C.omp,lny in ,.1i:.<:t)f(,IM1c.(; wi\h tt1e lndia11 Account.i111;\ 

'.,t:111,fard~. pm:,cri!.H.'d uncfN section l:l'.l or th(~ Ad re,id with the· Comr.1aniH~ (Indian Ac;.r;our1(ing St;1nd;.1rd:;) HL1l1'~;, 2015, ,\5 

;11rnHldt·)cl, ;rnd olfwr accounting principln, wrnrnally accept·t;,d in India, Thi. r(c'tponsibility ;:1bo inc",IUi:1(/\; mairnenanrn of 

a(kqu:1tE! ,H:counting H'UH(h. in ,Kcord11nn, with !111:• pro11lsiom, uf (lw, Ad for :,afoguarding of Uh-. ,1~:,tllS of tlw Conipctny 

and for prr::wn\ing ,ind ddc!ctlng frauds :rnd Nher inegul.iritir~s; sd(~tlion or t.hi>~ :ipprop1'ii\lc acr:01.mt·ing soh.wMe for 

en~;urlnt; compliM1(c with applii:;il)k law~ Mid rtt\uli\\iori:, induding l.ho:,1, rd,J\1:~(.l lo rel.t~nlion ol ,:tudit log~: !;1'1rc•rlion ,ind 

;.ipplh.:,il:ion of ,1 ppropriatt? tH:counting pnlicici;; rrnJking jmlgrminl'$ and e~timo1(€!:i t.h,1l ,le'(: rci,1:;o,·1ablt' ;rnd prucfr:nl'; a11t1 

(it'~;ign, iin1Mnwr1t,:1lion ,Hld m~1iotr!n;)nci• of ,Jrlc,qu,Jt1> in((•mal lin,:inci;:11 controls, l'l1al wl'r(·~ OP<'·l'<lling 1>fkc1ively lor 

on:;11fing lhl' ,)ccuracy ,\nd 0)1T1plet1~!\ess of tlW'. ,l(i:Ot111t.ii1g rN'.01'1.h, r·d1:1wi1')\' to th1, pt"1:1pi.HMio11 ,111d prn'.,tmtation of ll1t1 

St',Jmfal(>il~l Fi11¥1c.bl $UHenHrnt=; that givo a true and bir Vl{lW and MC fr(•e from r11,1t.(,1'i;-JI 111it,i;t.:-it:1,!11\('fnt, wh1-ith1•t duf; l'O 

fraud or ,.,nor, 

9, in f.)rtpiHing tlw S.\andalone FIMncial St,1tt'me11H,, the Cim,pdny\ M,lll<ll{1,•iw10\' and t.lw Bo,1rcl cJf Direchm; are respom,ible 
for ,1:,:,1':if;ing lh1? (\m1p;my'5 ,,bility It) 1:ontitiU(! ;i5 a going Ct'.111CN1l, di5d05ir1g, ;)s applk,1bl1.•, m:i\.lN'.; rril;itf!d to going 

t:orKorn Jnd ur,ing !'he g()ing conc<~m basb of ,1Ccounti11g unless tht• Bo,mJ of tlirn(:\'OI':, tlit.hclr inwnd~; to liquid,:ltt1 the 

C(H\lp.iny or tc CN)St~ 01wr,itiuns., m h;it no 1'()8ll'.,(k. altcm,,Jt.ive but tn dos<). 

Auditor's respom-,ibitities for the audit of tlHl Standalone Financial Statements. 

.U. Our (lbjQ1;tiw=; ,lfe to obt:Jin rn,lr.on:ilM ,Jswrance about whdher (he Strnd,ilo,w Fin;lnt;i;~I Sl;i\c;_,1mrnt:s a~ a whoh~ arn fr(il! 

froin rn,1\mi,1! m1~~til\'tnwnt., wlwther du1~ !,Q fraud ur error, and I.() b'..ut1 ,ill audito,·•~ 1{\1)()1'1 1:h.'Jl inrlul1~% our opinion. 
R(1,:1:;on,~l,1lQ il$S1,11;1n,e ls ,'l high levi;I oi as~uranc.e l)ot i5 n,:it a guar:intt•e thi.lt :1n ,W<.ia cond1,H,:(c1!l In ,1<;rnrclance with SM 

will ;Jlway~ deh,ct a rlMlmfal mb~tat,:,m(rnt· wlNtn it oxbt~. Mi:;statenwnts can arise from fraud or t':r'r◊r .ind <It'~ (;onsidr!rC!d 

111atoifol ii, indivi(11J11!1y or in the aggn~g11te, tlwy could reasonably be ex1wc!'l'd to influence Uw 11um1)mk dcfr;ions of 

\l$ers taken ori tlw b,ist ol tlwsc-) St;rndol(lM Finanr.ial St,~\enwnt&. 

12. As p~il't ol Ml IHHJit in ac;ccirdanc(;' with SAs, we exercise profes~ional judgm~111l and m,iinl,lin ;)rofe~,:;ion,1l ~kepticbm 

throvghout the ,1udit. W1J at~c,: 

)1-. l. !(km tHy and ,1~1.N;~ the rbks <)f materia 1 111isr,Wteme111' of the Stand,i lone FimHl(:l,Jl Sli)l.t:1m(:n\~,, whN.her du& to fraud 
or i,rr()r, d,1~ign ;rnd pNform audit procedure~; re;ponsive t.o tho~:e risks, and obt,iin ,11.1(!if. cJ11l<J(ll1Cfi that i!, suffichmt 
and 31)proprialo 1:0 provide. l'l basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a m,lt<.•rial rni:;:;,tawnwn1 r~:,ulting h'orn 
fraud is high(!r llrnn for one m:.ulting from l~rrnr, ,1s fraud rn,iy involv<• ,:ollusfon, forgery, ir,tention;,l 0111isslons, 
1i1isrepresent;Hions, or thi~ owirdd1~ of h1t<~rn;i\ control. 

J.2.2. Obtain ;m !ill(kr~l'anding of i11lei'11,il rnrHrol relev,uit to the audit in order to design ,)t.Jdlt: proci.idurn~. that arn 
,lppropriate ifl l'lw cln·,umst:.mc0:1 Und<•r s1,•rt:ic)l1 143(:i)(i) tht> Act, we are 11lso responsibk~ fou,x.prn:;sinr, O\Jf opini1)n 
011 wh{'\hor lh<i Cornp,rny h,i:; ,1,kq~1ate inl'erni1l frn,rnd,'11 contt'ols wlth rdorr:riU' l'o Sta11d,lli.in1,i Hnar11:ial 
$1:;.-\\l'll'H'n(s in pl.-11.:1) :-ind tlw !)!Wl"rHing 0ffo<:1 iwtm>:;s of such rnnlrol5, 

l:.l.3. E:v,Jlu.ik tht1 ,lpproprfat.i:>!1e1;s of ,1c.rnunting potkiN, 1.11;11d :11\d \iw r·Msonal)l111wss of acco1.mt.ing e~t.i11111le1; ,rnd 
mlatfJd disclo&w·0~ made by the Management:. 

l.2.4. Cc1ndu(fo <in the ,lpf)mpri:~ll'!1N;1; of the M:~n:,1ei~rnN,t.'s u,11 or tlw going i;onrnm li:i~is of ,JCcounting and, basi!d nn 
th0 1rndit (:Vidcm;e obtained, whether o1 material urlCflrlainly cxbb rdat~:d to (:V(:111.~ or condi1i<,1,s thal may caiA' 
signifkant doubt (J11 t.11(: Comp;my's ,1bility to mntim.1(' ,l', ,l going cono.irn. If w0 (.oncludQ I.hat a lll,ltfJ.rla1 
1J1H.'.<fft.1inly ~xists, wci are requirnd tn draw athmtion irl our ,Hsdil.()r'~ niporl l<) the) 1\~latHJ dii;cloi;ur(~i; ill the 
Srnn,,lak)ne Fin:rncial Statemeng ot', if such disclosure~; :ire im•tl~'qW~((', to modify m11· opJn:011. Our rnnclusi()l'lt am 
ba$ed on th(' 3trdlt 0videnco obtlinrd up to ttw d::itt1 of our nuditor's rnport. How,ivr.r, future l.:'V~mtt or a,nditi(,nS 
may rnuse the Cornp::1ny t.o oi,ht• to wntinuo ,J~ a g()ing ,onc(>rn. 

,•11•1••··••1• .. ····,·,----·'· .......................... ,,., .... , ...... ,.si .. 1 ... , •• '1."n\l,l,l>l.'.'•'nll,S .. '.''t1•.•,\\w.•,•.-.,M•1•11>11t1>'l,"NWIW\'l',,t1>W1'""""'''"''''''""•'"'"•"\"1''/,•m••,s--,•1•,•,i•11••··•1•,•••1•1••--1c•1-~~~----·""·'•Ml,I .... I .. IIMlll .... m1.11 •• 1.u,.,.,.-.1m111asu.-.S1Y1UIIIUllll'1mm11m1•1111•1m•••u 



kkc & associates Up 
Chart1.:1nxl Accountant~, 
(fornwr!y Khimjl Ku11w1rjl & Co LLr•) 

12.s. t:·v;il\!i-l\(' tlw overall pre'.;r,nt,,,tinn, ~tructure ancl content of t!w St.;rn(falorrn r:·1narld:,1I St:.n(m·1erlt~, i1\duding t.h(' 
disdowres, and whether the Stand.ilone Fi11;.rnd11! Stat(:rnents rnpre~ent the undt>rlying t:rilni;;ictions ilnd ('V(~nh in 
a n\a111HN· lhe11 achk•vt>t f,ifr pH'.'&f:'n(.'ll"iOll. 

n. W<• comrnunic,,lf:' with U-lOf,e thMg~d with govemanct; rngMding, i~mong oll·wr m<1tteE;, th(• plannti(.1 H.ope ,md liming of 
l.h(! ,HH.lit Mid 5ignifkant audit findings, incl\iding ,rny :;ignlfi-:;in\ ddidr,11\cies in in\t•rnal cont ml th111 W!? kfontify dufing t)t1f 

audit. 

14. W(• ,lbo p1ovid,? ,hor,e charged with govm·n,,nrn with ,i :.l,lttm1enl tliill we have complied with r(1kivant N.hi1;1.il 

r<~quirtment:; mg;.H•ding ind(!p1)ndenrn, ,rnd to wn11mmicate with them .ill rqlation:;hips ;ind ot.hN 111;ittNf, that. n,;,y 

!'li<1i.orwb(y be thought to bear im our imfopt.~ndl:'IK!J, ,rnd wlwn• ;ipplk;.ibl,;,, related sakgu;,1rd~. 

Report oil Other Legal and fhigutat:ory Requirements 

1.~i. A5 r<'.quirell by tlw Comr>:Jniw, (Auditor's R€·port) Ord1?r, :1020 (rhe 'OrdN'), i~;~;u(;'(.1 l)y tlw C1mtr,il GovHrnment nf lndi,i in 
term~ of sulJ·s<•dion (11) o! 1Hictio11 .143 ()! the /,d, we give in the 'Annexurt~ A' 11 :;\;,1\()lll<Jnt: o,, I.IHi 1T11,1U:ers ~pedfied in 
p;iragrapl1r, '.land" of Uw Order, to thn (:•Xh,11t applkable. 

Hi. A, r"~iquirod by $<,i(t ion 143(3) of tlw Ad, wrJ 1t•port thdt: 

HU.. W€• IMW sought and obt,)in1;-d all the infonn,)tion and t•xpla11,1tion:, whkh to th,i hfi~J nf our knowlc!d(',P 11r1d b1'"lif!I 
WN!) 1wcc-ii;s<Hy for tfw purpoi;e of nur audit. 

Hi.2. In 01ir opinion, proper boril<s of accotml.s a~ req1.iit,H:l by l,iw IMv(' b<1e11 k1ipt by the Company so f,:ir .1s ii apixt:•irs 
Imm our' Hxami11,1l"ion o( thosc· llOoks. 

HU. 11,(~ ::.t;rnd;iloM~ bi1la1·1('.1~ d1l1e\ 1 tlw st,md:1101,1J statement of profit ,ind((!$:; induding utl1er compr1;1lwnsive incotn(1, 

U1e :;r.,it.emcnl" of ch,-mges in equity and tlw s1.,mcl;1kinl;' '.it,1kmen1. ol Cil'.ill flow d('all wl'.h by thh; R1~port. are in 
ar;.1·1?(111w11t wit.11 the book:, or au:ount 

lG.4. In our opiriion, the: atore$;iid Stilnd;i(Qrrn 1-'inanr,al Stawments comply with th(' Ind AS spedfic,d und()I' S1:1cti<)ll LB 
of 1:he Act r(111d with Uw rt:•ll'Vant t'llll'S lhi:'rt?Onder. 

16.!j. On tho ba~i5 of the written rcwc5c:n(,1tion~ ni<.:t)ivmJ from tho directors, taken on rnc.ord tJy t:tw Bo,1rd ()t"l)itwJors, 
none of the directors ls disqualified ai; nn 31 Mard, 1M5 from b(•ing ,lppoitiwd as ;1 director in L(lr'ms of SecHon 
Hi4(2) ◊flhti Act. 

HU\. With r(•1;1rntt to the acfoquacyoftha internal financial control:; with r1.•fer1-~nce w St.1nclalo11e Fln,111dal St,Hmn1ml"s 
of t11e Com,niny and the opef,itlng dfe(t:ivrness oLwch conlrnls, rc~for to our separate Re1xirt in 'Amwxurn 13'. 

16.7. !r\ our opinion and au;.ordlng to tlHl infomrnt/011 and explanations r,ivc!tl to us, 1"11(! re,i1Lmeration p,1id by the 
Comp,my Ii) i1.~ directors durine tht' cw·rem year is in acco.-d,in(.~ with lhe provi~ions ()f Sc•r.tfon 19'/ read with 
Sc:hed ule V of the Act. 

l7. With rnqx•ct to tlw otlwr- mat:tert to l.w included in tilt Auditt)t''s Report ii1 l'lCC(>r<hinoJ with l~uli! .l.l. {)f the Companies (Audit 
;ind Audltors) RulN;, 2014 (a:; ,lmrnd('.d), in nu.- 1lpinion and to the best of our infonm1t:ic)r. 311(1 ,Kcmdlng to the 
11xpl.::tti,:rtiow, giv~m to us: 

17, l. Tlw Con1p:rny do,:s not have any pe11di11g litig,1tion'.; whkh would itnpart it:. financial pnsitfon •· Refer Note 28 to ttw 
Standalone Fin.mc:lal $(";1t11mi!nts, 

17 .2. The Company did nol haw• ,my long•l:('fm tontr:-,cti; includinr, deriv,1\iV() (.01HJM:h rorwhich then~ wt•n~ ,lny matmial 
forl"SHH,~blH lof-~t•s. 

l.7.3. Them wern no amounr., whkh wr~r.• n•qoit\~d to bt' lram;fi~rred to the lnvi:,-&1.0.- liduc,l01)n ,rnd Prnl(t1:l.ion Fund by 
the Con,parv. 

l'l.<1. 1"tw Man;.,w-mwnt has rnpn'tNlted, to best or their lmowli!t.1gc• .1nd l.wll~'f, th,1t no funds havt• bl.:'en advanced or 
.,-;;•,;:··;•::-'\~\:·:_::\\-'::.:•·,·;•,. lo,1tHl(l (lf inwfsted (either from bon-owcd funds (ff sh.n-1) prnmhim or ,rny other source:. or kind of funds) by th(,' 

/V ·i>ift ~'?.:~\ Company to or in ;rny oUwr pN~on(s) or t:~ntily(i!!S), including foreign entitit~•; ('lntiunwcliari1,,~'), with the 

(
/ '\.'i / ._ :i'i,-..1 !,'::,,) \(/_ \ \ u 11derst(l 1ld i11g, wh<~l lwr' i"l;·COr (fr•d in wriling or othHrwh,e; that the tritermccJ i;.1 ry shall, wlwt hN, diH~(t ly t)r ilufi rN:tly 

~. \f )~::''.'' (), i I'•)_.,. 
1'.,~~:ji)) ; ~ ~I~ i !~:;l ~t~ Vl:; ~l :•;i ~ ~:.~;·1, !~~-t~~:1~11~ ~ 1: ~l~~ i :~J ;~!.:i~ t\~1!~:('~:J :i~: ~l; ~;~;ri'~: :~ 11:~,~~~I' 01:t11:: il;1i f~)~:

1i;~ I~;.~ ;;;~i ;~ 7(::.p 3 rl y 
~• •••• •• •••••••••••••,/l-••,••,••••,•• ,•••••••••"••, • •• .,.,.,.,. •• ,,.,,,.., •• ,.., • .,.,.,.,., """"'"•••"'-"''"""""'"" """•••-"••••" ...... •••'•'•••••••••••••••••••••• .,.,. •••• ., •• .,, •••• .. •••ms., ... •••••••'• ... ,., .... , •••• ••••••••••••••'••s•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••wrn• 

·,~\;, .. A .... Sµfishi1w 'l CM(ll, t.evd 19, Senapati Bapi!I M,;,rg, Elphinslotl(' l~oad, Mumb,li 400013, India 
•••• ,,.,.; ••• ., ••• i: +91 2? 6VG 7JB f:: infof,)kkcllp.in W: www.kkdlp.in U .. PIN: AAP-V.67 

$ui((,: 52, B1)111b,)y Mu\1,1,ll Building, Sir Phirozshah Mehta Ro,id, Fort, MtmllMi 4()()()0l, lndi,i 
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Chart(1rl:'d Accountant.<:> 
(formerly Khimji l~unverji & Co LLP) 

U.(>, Tlw M,Hlilgi:l'n(~nt ha!; rcprese1W'd, to bct;t C)f their lmc,wk'.dge ilnd bdid, tl"lilt no fwi<:I~, have! bc~en ,w·.dvNJ by 1-lw 
Comparly lrnm any p(monM or ~ntlly(ies), including foreign tmlitit•s ('Funding Parlh,s'), with lhti under~lirnding, 
whNhN rw:onkd in writing or o\lwrwh(\ l'h,!1. 1'11(1 (;()rnp,.iny ,h,1ll, wh11l.lwr, dir(rclly ()r' indirr,:t:!ly, l(md o,· inv<~:,\ in 
other pcirson$ {)r enUt:11i~, i(t(~nt.ilic-id in any mam1<:,r' wll;;it.~,01NPI' by (11· mi br.h,1lf of Hw Funding Parly ('Ultlm;1h~ 
B1mdkiMk-~,') or prQvid;, any gu,H,Hllct, ~noHily or llw like or\ bd1;,H of l.lw Ultcmaw lfonefrci,lrfo:;, 

J."/ .0. Bn~1)d on StJ(:h ,'H1dil pr\)(:('dtH('~. thil1. haw b~l()li -::on:,i1fored m,~:;011,1bki und ,ippnlpri,it(! in I.hi:! (:ln:uni:;lMK,~$, 
nothing h,1~; come lo <)ur notic(1 that h::1~; Grn5ed o~; to IH!lieve that tl1<:1 n~pt'e~Nlt.,Hio11 tmd<:'t' pM;i 'l.7.4.' ,,nd '.l 7.5.' 
cont,1i11 ;my m;;itc•ri;il mii;f,tM.c-)1'l\frnL 

.1.1. '/, In our opinion ancl at:i:ording to information ;ind i~xplanalion giwn to us. the Company ha5 not d1~dared or p,1id 
dividt•nd during the ye<1r, ac.rnrdingly complianct' with ~ection 123 of tiH• Ac.l by th~• Coll'lp,,1\y i~ not .ipplicdbl1.;·, 

l'U/. Batf>'.d 01) our examh).,tion wl1ich lndw:Jcd trst. dwi:I<~,, the c,ompany has 1.1s00 ;rn ;icc.oruHing !;oh.wam for 
m;1in1;-1ini11g its bool<:·, ()f ,,1;.munl whith hM,, fi foiHurci o( mcmdirig i)udH \l',lil ((idit log) facility ,)nd llw :;1,Hne h;-i:; 
<l()Nt1Wd thmue,hnot lh(' y1;,J1' for' .'111 rdt)vilr\l. l.r',H\:,i-1(1.iu11:; r[.)(;(.\ri.kd 111 t.11<'! ~;()flv,a1·1,•. Fuflh('ir', d1.1!'11\G IIH) c::ouf:;<:• <ll 

(Hir" ,n1r.H1 \W did 1w1 w1wi ,Jcro~:-; ,+ny in:,t.111(.n of ,n1dil tmil hMturi:-i b(1in1!. l,irnp1lll'd with, 

Additionally, thci audit trail has been prnserv0d by tlu~ Comp.my ai, pcir th~} :;t.atutory rnquircme-nlt; lor /'C!cm"d 
ret.(~1\tio 11. 

For KKC & Associatcis LLP 
ChMtNed Acu.11.1111:.l!lb.; 
{fonr1ol'ly l<himji KunvH}i & (.o 1..1...P) 

firm Regi~tr.Hion Nurnbw: lOfjJ4(iW/WH)0621 

Soorcj t<ombaM 
Partner 
l(AI Membership No: 164366 
l/DIN: :!!i164:Hi6BMNUMD!i'f06 

Pl;Jce: Pun<1 
DaNi: 21 Al)fil iWW 

Sunshin(l '['()W('Jf, t..\Nd l(J, S(rn,~p;iti B,~J)i·)1: Marg, Elphin:;tone l~oad, MwnlMi 40()().J.J, lndii,l 
l: ·<9), n. ()l4:~ r:cq C: iflfo@kkdlp,ln W: www.kkcllp,in LLPIN: AAP.,VG'l 
... ,,.1; ... 1 .. 1,1,.•1.,1,1.1.,.Sl\,\I.ISl.1'tll,',•,•,1•,•m""'""'ldlltll'.",'l,"ll,"l,\\>l,l'.l.·.··--'·"'·'·'·"''--"••l•l•l• .. 1•., .... 1 •• \l.l'1.lh>,M,s\tl,M\\.ln\\•I'-'••''•''·'"''"''"'"""'"'•'•"·"'·'·"''" .. '"'"'"'""•"•'•"•'••··"'··'·'·''"•""'"'•'"•"''·"·'--"""'"'"•"'•'''·'·'·' 'WIM,mw •• w.•.1'w1'w.111.•,•11.-,w•11w11',"lll,"l,',"/'1.1••1•1•,•11',"lll,',',"ll',"I',"•'''''"''''•"•'•'•' 

Suhe 57., 8c,rnb,1y Mutual Building, Sir Phiroz.shah Mehl.a Hoad, foft, Murnbai 400001, India 
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Chartered Au:.c)u nt::11lb 

(formerly t(himji KunV(•!fji & Co LLP) 

Anncxurc 'A' to the Independent Auditor's Re1)ort on the standalone Financial Statcment1; of Baj.ii finscrv Health 
Limited for the financial yoar ended 31 March 2025 

L (,l) The Company h.1$ mainl,jinNf proper recor&; ~.bowing fuH particuk,rs inducting qu,.mt:italiVQ dehiil~, ,ind :,i1U,1tion of 
Property, Pl~nt and equipment ('PPl:'L 

Tlw Con'1p,111y b m:~inU-1inlr',g pmpi:'1' n~cords ~howinr.; full pMt:it:.1.1IM1> of int,mgible a~.,;,•tr,. 

(b) l'hi:, Cornp;rny h,1.1, ;,i 11:•gul:;1r progniinmt:• ol physk'~ll. Vl:'fi!ic:Hion ol it:; Pf:'E lly whirh all PfJE are wriliNJ in ,1 pllaia~d 
m,llim!r. In our opinion, this pcdodidty of phr;ical vcrific,ilion i~. n~,1sonabl(1 h,iving r"t/g¥d W (lw ~;iw of 1hc0.• 

Company and tlK) nalurn of its ar;st•b, PtHMunt to tlw progranrnw, C(?1t;iin itcirn~, of PPE wccre phyi;ic;illy vc~riric)d by 
t:he M,ln.igc,:rnent during t:ht• ye,ir. In our opinion, and ,iu:ording to tho infonn,~linn and m!pl.,n,;11 lt)f\S giv()ll to IJS, nfl 

rr1atcdal dlSl'.l't'.'fMtldi.>S Wl'.!1'(~ noiiu~d 01) ~IJ(h V(!rifiuiti()ll. 

(c) In our <lpirlion ,md acc:ording to the information and explanations givt>n to us and on the b,i~h; ()f l)Uf ,•xamifi:-1lion 
of the rN;Qrd~, t)I tht) (omp;rny, the Cump;iny dl.l(':, not po:;'.;w;:, ,~ny :.uc.h immow,bl(• 1HopNtk•s (ottwl' than 
properti% wlwiH) tlw Cornp,rny ii; lfw le~~('(' ,HKl the l(~:iS/i' ,)gt1.?1,1me11t& ~n? cluly executed ,·n lavour of the lie5~;ee) 
which ,lrn not h!:'ld in the name oflhe Compa11y. Accordingly, rnporUng undr,r parngraph 3(i)(c) of 1:h(i Off.It'!" i!; not. 
,1pplii::abk to tht~ Co1r,p,1t1y. 

(d) In our opiniQn and ac<:(ir<ling (() the;: infonn;Hi01) ;.ind 0xplan,1(i<m5 giwn to us, llw Cum/limy ha:. not. rev,.11twd its 
PPE (lr1cltrdlf1g l~ight ot U$1~ Jssets) t'.>!' lnt:i11glb!e as~ets Or' both during thi! yc,1r'. 

(el In ouf opinion ;rnd iK(:ording 1.r1 thti infornliition ,111d cixpl;in,11ion$ giwn l"O 1.1:i ,\r1d on tlw ba~ii; <.if our ex11111ir1;1tion 
of the 1l1t01'(bol \lw Comp,my, no proreNlings havt'> bee!\ initfated or Me pending ag,;1h1;;t the Comp.my /or hol{.ting 
,11w b<!f\iHl'li propHrty under the Prohibition ol B<~narni Property lransactiom; Act, HJH!l (as amended in Wm) 
(foHl1Nly lh1? l~(m:imi Tr,ms,)(.:\io11s (Prnhibltion) Ac.t, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rule~ made thermmder. 

11. (a) The Company is engago::d ii, the bu&iness ol providing :;ervke~ in cornwctkm with he,lhh nw:;y:;Wni. T1w Comp,iny 
do(~:, nm IHlVf! any inwnt()1y. Acc;t)rdingly, rqwrtlng undN pMagwph 3(ii)(a) of t.lw OrdN is not applkabk' w tlw 
cornp,1r1y, 

(b) Tlw Company has not b0Qn sanction~id any worlilrl£ c:;ipital limiti; at. ;u1y point ol l:in1,• dt1ring th1:l ye;ll', h'o1n lx1nl,s 
{H' ftii::rnrial inslitutio11s. 

iii. (a) In our opinion and according to the il1forrn,Hion and cxpl.:i11atk111:-. giv<:n to u:;, tlrn Cr11)1pany h,is m,1d(\' investment::. 
in ,J11d has given loan to its iiubsidi,iry Cornp:my, UH' cfotJils tlwrnof am mentioned below: 

r·""" Pa rticula.rs , •••••••• , •••••••••••••••••• , •.•• , •• , ............. , •.•• , •.••.••. .,,.,.,,,.,.., ........ , .•.• ,, .... ,, . .., .• ,.,,,,,,.,.,,,,, •. w ••••••••••••• , ........ ,.., •••• ,., ••• ,.,.. AmOU('!.~../..~ ... ~~.h.~.~ ... 7 .. I .... ,, .. ,, .. 

!
' .... !.'.<.615.~!!.B•lhi loan amount granted/ providt•d ~J.uring the yf:<,lr t,? .. ~.~.'.!~~.i.?,l~.!X. .. , ... , ...... ?t~!.!.~.?..: .... , .. ,, ......................... , ... , .... ,.,.,,, 

B,ll<lnre ~?.ut~tanding 11s ,it b11lanc:e 5heet5!.~.t~ .. !..1~.!.:~.~Et.:.~.t. .. ~1 .. ~.bove rnse f!.l~.~~:, ... , .. , ..... ,., ...... , .. , .. , .. , .. ,,.,,.,..,. 

"The loan to Subsidiary .v~ in natul'e of C(1mpound in~\l"L11ne11t~ wht)rein it i~ co,w~irtibl1~ iflt11 ,iquity :d,,m:::; o( th11 

$ub5idiiiry ;it the end ol the- tenor, 

(b) In our opinkm ;:ind ;icwrding \Q llw info,-ma!ion and explanation~ given to u:-;, the investm1mts made and the t~nm 
and conditions of the grant of ,ill loans ..ire not prejudicial to the Company•~ int~r~)!.t. 

(c) ln our opinion and according to tll!! informat:iC}n and (!Xpl,rnation'., gill(m l"C! us, in f!J~p('Ct (~[ loans ;u1d adv;,ir·1u1s In 

thr nat11rr cf loans, t.h!' sch()dulr of r('p,:1yn1rm1: of prlncip31,;ncJ pnymrnt of lntcre.st h,i'.; bce,1 5tipulatcd. 

(d) In our opinion and according to thci lnfor1m11.iun :mc:I (expl,rnatlon'.i giv(m 1.11 us, no Mno1mt: it, iwerdue in l'(~sp1Jc:t of 
lo,in~ and ,idvarn;(,'S in Hie fl:JHJm of loans. 

!n our oph,lon and ac:cordlng to the iMormatio11 a11d exp!a11atio11s glwn to u$, r1dther kiJn, or adv;,11lC\?!i in n,1t1.1ni 
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Cl1,1rtl•n:1d Acr.:ountanl:s 
([()(11lN!y l<hi1nji l<unvtrji //., C(J Ll.P) 

(t) Tlrn (oinp,1ny l'l.:1~ 1wt gr;mtcd any !()an'.; 01 ,)(.lvanr,c,1~; in the natwe or lo.in!; h) Promotc:r~/R<:l~ted Patties (:.1~; ddi1wd 
in MicUon 2CIG) ol Ow Ad) which iirt'./ Pit.h11r repayalM on d,mrnnrJ ()r without :-p(K.ifying any t-11nns or 1wr"iod of 
n'p,,y111e11L 

iv. In ()Ur opinion and :.icuirding t[) lhi.' in!on\MliOJ'I ;,ind ,~xpl,11M1.ion~ .• giw•n t.o us, tlH! Comp;~ny ha~ 1iol granlt•d any 
lOill\~, (,1r givim ,.my 1',!Jill',Hll1,(, i~I' provid<id MW ~r.1( urilic,>s ;:i:; tOV1)r~,d un1for th(• pmvi;;ion:; of '.,e1;tion W!i of the Act. 
In rn~;p(,ct of t!Hi Imm grnnwd and invl'~;1nw11ts m:.1dc by tlw Company, th" prnvbic111s uf ~i('c.tion 186 llf the Act IMVI:' 
!wrrn compli<1d with. 

v. !n our opinion and according to tlw inforrnalion and ,•xpi.inations givim tow;, the~ Company h:;~. not dccepted iiny 
d Gpo:,it, or,, mounts which ,He ffor~mtd \•:> be dq.w:;it; fr()rn , lw pub I 1c du ring t.he ye;ir in kt'm~; of direttlve~, is~;1wd 
by tlw Hrif;Hrw n,inl, of 1ndi,1 <>r llw provif;il.H,i; of S(•Cl.ion~ n tn ·u; nr .iny oth(!f" n:ih•?v,rnt prnvh.;iom; ol the.' Act ;rnd 
i.lH~ rnl1/1; lranwd tlwn• under. /Kcordineiy, r(•pr,rting undin pal';1gfi.1ph 3(v) of the Order i~; liOt ZIJ)plic.abk• to the 
Company. 

v1. ·r1i1~ C()mp,rny i:\ not. 1·(~quife1! t.o m;iin!.,)in co:;t re(i)r"di, undc~r Senion l.'IH(l.) oft-hi~ Co,11panie~ Act, ).Ql.J r6°1d with 

Comp:rni(l!i (Co:a R1icorch and Audit) Hulcis, 2014 ancl hc,1Kc! reportinr,, urnfor p1Hagr,1ph :3/vi) ()( t.tw Ordt't i$ rwt 
~ipplicable \o thi;- Company. 

vii. (a) 1n Dur opinion and according to the infonnatior\ and expl,inati()n~ givwi to u~, Mn(Hlllh <fodud~1(.l/,1,r.n,1l~d in ~h~ 
bnoh of ;;1i:<:cHrnt. 111 n)~:p0ct. or undhptHPd st,lltlt(}I')' di.if!~; i11dudfng GotHh and Se,vic1!<; ra~, prnvlder1t fund, 
(;)inph>Y<·'(!S' st a Hi if\$ll/ MKi), in<".()fll('•t,ix, 1:ak1s•-l<1~, f,(•rviw \i)X, dut.y of 1;1E;lmn~;, duty of 0xcii;c•, vahH! adcfod tax, ccss 
;ind ,my olhN qa\utory ,h.1<;•:, h,iw br:ron n;-gtilady d(!l)O$il<)d by t.he Company wfth the .~pprnpriah,~ :iuthoriti~);. 

According to llw inforrniltiCJn and r;xplanaHuns r.iv(,11 to 11:;, no u1Hfr;pt.H(•d arnmrnb p;iy;Jblc fn rt•~pect of provident 

fund, 1:1mploye1,,.•.,' ~1.,HJ' in~1ir:~nC1i, in(.()1111:Hax, (,oods and Sc>rvic;,!S Tax, duty of custom5, ress ,md otlwr m<1tNiill 

starutMy d1A'S wern in .w·N1rs as at 31 Marth :.'.01.5 for a peri()d of morn th.in :-,ix month:; from the d,Jt(: tilc:y blicarne 

p,walll11. 

(b) lrl our opf11i<>1, and ;icrnrdii1g to Urn iriforinMion i.H\d 1~xpl.u,ations giwn \t) os, w1• r;onfirrn th,ll: thti following due!, 
of g<)ods i!ncl r,c•1virns tax, provident fund, employees' state insw,mn:,, inwme-·hlX, salHS·l<iX, ~i,!'vi<:t t.,ix, duty()( 
1: (istom:;, duly of cxrbe, v,ihJ(' ,1d<kd t,,ix, (%S ,rnd any othr.r ~;t;l tutory dues, which have not been dl'posit<:'d h,/wit h 
tlw appropriM(➔ authol'Hy on au:01.1nt of any dh:putH. 

N .irne of the Statt1I!'. 
Nature of the 

duos 

Mah,Ha~htrn Stiite T,,x on Pmfo:;sion,ll Tax 
Profr~tsio115, Tr.:ides, 
Calling and Employment 
Ac,) l'.n!l 

Amount 
(:tin Lakhs) 

Period to which th~ 
amount relates 

f"Orutn whern 
dii-;pute is pending 

PT OHicer 

, . ., .. , .... ,, .... , ............. , .............. ..., ........ , ·••u,•.·································--1---········································································································································ 
lnco1111-1 Ta~ Ac(, l.%1. lnrnnw T,1x f'v ✓.1-22 lnc:onwTax 

OfficN 

....... , .. , ...................................... , .... , .. , ........................ , ..... , ............. ------~------~--- ____ ............... , ............... , .. , .... ,11 .. , ....... , ... ,..,,_ ... , •• ,.u.•11.,,,,1,m,., . 

•Niil of amotinl p,iid urnfor prott~tt ,ll'M.Hmting to~ u l,il<h!i in r(!:,pcic,t: of interc~t penalty dcrnar1d of~ 54 laldis. 

viii. In oto· opinion ;ind ac:cordi11g to thC'. information and 0xplan,i\·ions giv(;n to us and Dn UH, bai;h; of our examination 
of Uw roc:o1ds of tlw Comp;rny, we confirm th;lt W(• have not corne acrof,t any 1Ji.H1$actiClns not rnrnrdHd in UN books 
c,/';iccount whit'.1'1 li,Jv(• btlc•n '.;ufn:n(fornd or db:lo:.ed .,~; 11Koll1(~ during Uw ye;1r in Uw t;ix ,is~;E?5<;nwnii: 1indN i:h,,• 
tncomt~ Tax A(.t, H~(il. 

.,, .......................................................... , ............. 1.,st ............................. , ...... 1 ........................ , ....................... 1 ................... t ... • •• M ...... 1, .. ~ ..... 1,, ... 11 •• 1.,• .. \,l"-1••••1•.1•i,u•.1•1.•,.•,•1,•1•1c••1•;,•.,•.w, .. 1;•1••1'",••• \11•,.,; .. ;•1n,i•.•1•••"••,"•••••--•1\••1•.111•••11••••\•1 .. "••"•"••l'"l'"l"••,.11•11•1•n1•'1"1•'"l""""••m•• lm••1 1 --•1 •1 m• 
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Cl1;.1rt<!rt,~d At:counrnnts 
(f:)rmerly Khimji Kunverji & C:c) LLP) 

(d) In our opinion and according to llw lnforrn:Hion and (:Xpl;rnatfo115 eivl'n to us by the m,lnilgcmt'nt, !he Comp,my 
h,n not (Jbt;Jin~)d (Jily t•mn loan during tile year dml there are no outstanding term loilns at lh<i b11ginning c)f llwi 
yr1;:ir. Ac(ordingly, r1±porting undt,r 1)ar:.igr,,1ph 3(ix)(r.:) of l!w Ordor i.:, not ;ippti1:,;bl(i to the Company. 

H !n our opinion ,ind according to the,• informati()n ,rnd <ixplan,ith:rni; giv('l1 to u:-; by tlH1 rnan,igeme1H, the Company 
ha5 Mt raised any lo;ln~ on ~lwrt hl1'1)'1 b,,~b- f\(;n"rdrngly, H~porting uncfor pMagraph 3(L~)(d) !)f tlrn Orcfor i~ not 
,1pptiu1ble to the Cornpany. 

(f) Ac1:ordinr.. t,) tht' information and !~xplanalions given to us and on ;rn ov(,ralt ()x,1mir,,'i(ion of tlw St.indalo111~ 
Fln;-ini:i,11 Stit1~m1~nts ()f the Cornpany, we repent that the Cornp,1ny h;.)/i not t,11@\ any fond:-; fr()m any t1ntity m 
pcirson on .~ccmrnt of or t.o nwet 1fw oblig;Hions o! l\s Subsidiary Comp.my a~. defin(Jd undN the AcL The Cocnp,my 
doei; not hold any in11(1'.;t111~n\ in ,my ,l%od,il(• or jointvN1ILm1 (;,s delinNI lll1(1N thii Act) during 1:h(!ye:.ir ttnrfr~d '.:ll 
M,1rc;ti 20~!\. 

(g) According l!l \he information ;in<J r1xplanations given to tis ;ind prote(1ur(~:; pt•rfoniwd by u~., w(~ t'(!p(irt that the 
C.ompany tw; fl()t raised lo,rns clurln[1 llw yo¥ on tlw p\QdW.i or :.tcuritie~; hold In it~. Subsidiary Company. rile 
Comp.-wy dotis riot hold any invc,~tm(ml in any .issoditlt! ()t' joii1t v,1,1tu1·1,, (;is d1~fi,1t•d under the i\(t) d1.1ri11g the y(:M 

ended 31 /'.farch J.02'i, 

x, (;.) Tlw Comp,rny did !l()t 1·alse ,noney by way of initial public of/er or fvnlwr pubfk olfor (incl11(Hng (kbt lrn;lnmwnt5) 
during th& yedr. 

(bl In our npinlo,1 aritl i\('.C(it'di11g lo the infonnation .1nd explanat.iqn~, giwn hi u:;, tlw (:()mp,iny h,i'.; Ill)! ,11;,dri ,i11y 

pr1•ft)10ntral ,lllNnwnt / priv;3te placement of ~hares/ fully/ p.~rtly / op\i()n;.1!!y WrWl!rlibl,i 1fobimt.urt:)~ durinR Hw 

xi, (,i) In 011.- opinion ,,n(! ,Kr:Nding lo llw infr>rrnaU1.1n ,:ind c:~xplanalioni,; givpn (() o:,, llwro h,,,s 1),,,,,,1 no lnwd by tlw 

Cornp,rny many fraud on tlw Comp,111y th,it: h,15 t.w,;~n notkNJ or reported dudng the year. 

(bf In mir opinion and ,Kc.or•ding to tlw information and explanillion~; givtrn 1:0 u~, 111, tl'POt'I: 11,1der wb-51;ction (l.;?) of 
~(iction 143 of the Act ha, been filed by I.hr audil.Ol't; in Form AIYr-4 a:, pr0saibed wider rule 13 of C.omp;rnies (Audit 

.-1nd Auditor,) rhMs, 1014 with the (qnu-al (;ovornmrnt 

(c) As repr~!)Hltet1 to u:; by the M,rnag\~rnent, there ;ire no whhitlc blower rnmplainb receivcid by the Cornpany during 
the ye,lr. 

xi!. In m11· opinion and ,KC.O!'(U11g to the informatiM and expl;')n,itio11t, giv,~n to us, tile Company is not a Nidhi Company. 
Ar.:cordi11gly, pMagraph 3(xii) olthti OrMr Is nol. applicable to Hw Comp<Hiy. 

xiii. Ar:cordin1~ t·o Uw infonnatio11 ;md expla11atio11s given 10 us arid bMl'!d <in 001 t%Jrnlniltion of Uw r~icnnh of tlw 
(onip;,iny, 1.r,rns,,nions with Lil(! fflatNJ partf(:•S i.irt) ln compliar\c;i~ with Sr:ction'.; lU i1nd um of the Act, where 
,ipplk:~bii~. Mid th(~ detail5 of such tr,msaction$ h,1vc bel'.)n db:;lositd in tlw slarnfolorw hmmdal :.taterr1ents as 
rnquirnd by the ~PrJlicabl~i ,H:c.ounfir,g raatHlar1k 

xiv. (,1) !ti our opi11ioi1 Mid basc,d oti c)ut' ~1X,lminatk,n> th(1 (ornp,rny ha~ an intt•mill ,H1dit i;ystem cornm{,n!;urnte with Uw 
size and nature of iH, business. 

(bl Wt• havt• con~i[lerri:l llH' intiml,ll audit H!po1·ts of th~~ Comp,111y issued till d,1te, for IIN p(:.-lmJ umhn ,)udit. 
xv. Ac:rording lo tlHJ infonnatfon and explan,1\fom; givcm torn;, in our opinion during the yein Uw C{)mp,Jny h;is not 

enH:'Hid into any non-c:ash transactio11:; with lt:; dirc1;.wrs ()f p(in;.,ms umnectcd with its directors. Accordingly, 
pMagrnph 3(xv) of the Ord,:,r is not applicable to tlie Company, 

xvr. {c1) In our ()pinion, (h11 Comp<1ny is not icquircd to be rcgistrmd undt)r .%(lion 4!'.i,IA of Uw Rt'i,<~rw f~ilnk of tndiJ Act, 
1()34, Accordingly, paragraph 3(xvi)(a) or tlw Ot·dc1r is nut appli1:.able to Uw Company. 

{ bl l!w Company has not conducted any Non-Ba nklng FinMcfal or lfausing Fi n,111ee ,Ktiviti1~s v1ithout obt:1i 11i11g a v;llid 
Certificate of Rogb;tr;itinn frc)m the lhi~E'rve 13ank ,,r India a~ !)1:'I' the Rese1ve Bank ol lndi;; Acl, 1934. A1;mrcfa1gly, 
parngr;iph 3(xvi)(b) of tl1t.• Order 1s Mt applicable to the Co1l)1lany, 

Sulk S:.l, Bornb,'1y Mvlunl Building, Sir Phirozsl1;1h M,,ht:1 l~oad, Fort, M111nb:1i 40(l()(ll, lndi;-) 
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Chartor0d Accountanl:s 
{(onm:rly Khhnji Ktmvtrji i~ Co ll.P) 

(cl) According \'o t:11(• h1fnnn,,1:k\Jl :ind l'Xpl;1n:Hlon giw,•n to o:,, in \lw group (in ,)CWr(fanfl? with Con~ lnv0stnwnt 
C.onipilnt% [CJC'~) (f{eserw Hank) Oirettion~, 2016) th1:<re are .l.8 tompanies forming p,Ht of tht< prnmoter/pmn·,oter 
woup d the Company which ,:ire ctCs. F1.1rtlrnr", a:, inforn\ed th0.'.;e CIC'~, ;ir1,• unmgisllm~d Cl(.~; ,11; w:r P.-i-,1 9.1. of 
Notificatior\ No. RBl/2020· 21/24 d:ned 13th August 2010 of I hr:, Re'.~etve Bank of lrn1i.:i. 

xvii. The, Comp:my llil~; incl.lfn:1(1 c:d\ lo~~~1J$ in Uw !it\i\J·,,:i:Jl yii:Jr 11nd in \h(~ i1·1·11n1~di:j(dy prN:wiing firMnd:,il y(•:-.ll·. Tlw 
,l1nount of Gl:,h los'., in the finan(:lal year f:; { •),\JS') l,1khs ;md in tfo:'. imrn(!di,it.dy pr1~cetlin1,: financial y\~ar" it wa:, ~ 
12,708 lakhs. 

xviii. TlH:ifl' IMS lK<)n no rt•r;ignati011 of tht• i;t:1tutilly ,n.,ditor~ durillg the yt•ar. Acwnlingly, reporting unc.1,~r par,.lgraph 
.3(xviii) of Hw Ord!~r b no( .:ipplir,',•llM to Ow Company. 

xix. Ac.cording 1.0 tlw inlonn,,tion ,rnd ('Xpl;mation~.: f~iwn to us and on th(' bM,it; ()f' the linM1Ci;,1l rn1ioi,, ilg(dllt, ,lnd 
e>:p('Cted d,1t111; of rnillization nl li1rn11cial a~;~;('.lr; and paymrn,t ol lin;rnclal li;ibilitfos, ot'h,•r inf-orm;Hion 
;J(((11l\pM1ying the ti11,rnc.ial ~tatenwnt.s, our l<t1(Mk:dge (>I th~ Board of Diri)nor:i ,md M;rnag1irnent p\;rns and ba:~ed 
(Jll otff ex,rn1i11,ition of the• t:vicl~ltc(:• r,upport.ing I.he ,i~;:;un,ptions, nothing h,11; conw to tltJI' attention, whicl1 c,)Uf,(,•i, 

us to b(!lirw th,lt ;.my rn,Hedal uncNtainty iixi:;11; a~; on the date of the audit report that. the :::m111'.>any i:; not cap;•lhlt~ 
nf rrH'"c,1ting ih liabilith:·s existing at: tlw dale of b,1!,mi;e ~!wet ,i:; ilnd wtwn t:1111y foll dU(J within ,1 p<>riod ol orw yt:r,u 
from the b;.d,inco :;lwnt dill('. W~'. how~'vt>f', $!.,H.E1 Uwt. thir, b not ,m ,h:.,urnnn, ,is to \lw hllwt~ viability of lllll 
Comp,rny. W(i fur\1wr stMr:• tharnw· rnpot1.i11g b b:Jiwd on lhH fans up to l'IHi rfaw ()! Uw audit H,1p,H1: tind W(:' 111~illwr 
givt• ilny guarantee nm any a!,sur;rnui th,.1t all liabilHic!s falling duf! within a period of one ycrnr frnm I.he balance•~ 
shh'l (.late, will gc•t dbchMR(cd by the C()rnp,:1ny ,1~ ;ind when \'hey fall d1m, 

:-:x. 11<:t(H ding to i t\format ion ;md mipb n;i1fon givN1 t () u:.; ;ind l)c1'.;t,d on 01.11 N1,J rn i n,it.ion of the) ,w::o r(b of 1:h11 Com p;lll}', 

\IH.' pii:,vision of Sec\lon .ns of the Act b not applic.\ble to the Comp.:wy. Aco.mlingly, rep<ll'ling untk'r pa1';.ll,ll'aph 
j(~~)(a) & {b) o! llw Order h; not applicable to the Company. 

~xi. In our opininn, mporting undi>r p;;r;iv;iph 3(~)d) of Uw ()rdifr d<w:, nl)(' apply to Uw St,;ind,1lotw Fin;,l'ld,,1 
St,l\lmwnL. Accordingly, 110 rnrnn,cnl in rc5pett oftlw :;;lid p,u,igraph h,i:; bO{'rl includtKI in l:he Heport 

For KKC & Assodlltes: LLP 
Cha(iered At:tountant~ 
(lornwrly Khimji Kunverji & Co I.LP) 
Fhm f~11glwaticrn Nwnlmr: l05l4GW/Wl0062l 
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l\irtrH~t 
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Chart(1red An::ountant~, 
((ornrnrly Khiniji t<.:\J1Mit"ji & Co LLP) 
,•,• '+,1/•\':~r.': " '~.·A', .. ~ '\'"d 1,1-....,u '\" ,. ,,, ,1,) ,1,1" "\1\•U'. ;,; 1•1•1•1•"'1tll'l',"l',",'l',l .... ll.l't",'l""{U{'II ",• 'll"l,',',','{,.,l,',H,'t.,,\;.,',l,',\,<.,•1 .... , ... , ...... M .. ',{,; .. ,•111 ....... , ....... , ........ , ........... 1.1 ......................... , ............................... , 

Anrwxure 'B' to the lnda:pendcntAuditors;' report on the Standalone Fin.:1ncial Statements ofBajaj f'inscrv l-leatth Limlled 
for the finandal y~ar ended 3l March 2025 

(Rdi,rrcd to in parngr.:iph '16.G' umfor 'Report' 011 Otlrnr l.c.-g,:il .iml Rng,1IJtmy HN1uirn111en\5' section of our report of even date) 

Report on tho Internal Flna11d;1I Controls with refel'(mce to the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statort1cnts under Clause 
(il of sub•sec:lion 3 of seclion 143 ohhe Com1>a11ies Act, ion (the 'Act'). 

Opinion 

l. W1,, h,ive (1uc.HtJ>d tlw lntr:•m,il fin,11"1Ci;1I coritmh with fi~li!rence to the Stand,l\011,;' rin;rndal Sti,H!mf:nb ()/ 13,lj,1j Fimorv 

Health Limited (the 'Comp;iny') a!; :it :n March 207.') in conjunct.ion with our audil of11H,' S1andalNw Financial Stah,nHmh; 
of I:h¢ Comp;rny for tlw yri,ir entkd c•n lh,il d,ll(i. 

2. In our op111km 1 th!~ Company has, iti .:di 11rnrnrial rw;p(1t.\:,., ,rn a(foquMe inlernal financial control); with mlerence to the 

St;.rndalorn:: Fin,rnc'ial Statcwwnt~ and ~uth internal f'inancial controls were opNating effiict.ively ,% 21\ 31. M:.\r'fh 202\ l):.w,•d 
Oil l lw i 11\wna I ton 1.rnlr. Ovl~r fin.rntiill r'l.'port i ng <:ritt'ria establh,hcid by tl1fi Company rnniddming Uie 111:1:pn\.i;.11 Wfl)p(HHrn( s 
of internill c:cml"rol st,lted in tht• Ciuid,mce Note on Audit' of lnlf!f"llill Fin.inci:-il CQnl'l'Qb Ov1:•1· f!'inan·'..:i,il H<~pMting issued by 
t.ho lnsUtutci of Ch,J1"!'rmid Ac:cotmtantr; of lndi,1 (tile 'Guid,inc1:• NotP'), 

Management's responsibility for Internal Financial Controls. 

3, lhr. Company'r, inan.lgement. i5 ri:'5j)Onsible for e,tablishln~ and m,1ln1.,1ining 1nwmal fin,'l1Ki,01I cont.roh lM5ed on the 

intt~rnal rnntrob over financial reporting crit,~ri,i ll:,;C)bli~,li(Jd by IIH' Company co11i.id(·1rin~ tlw e:;i;trnlial cornpotwnls nl 

in1~'tn,tl c(m\rol :;\,Hf.'d in the Goid,mn~ Not~. lhc,e m,pnmibilitiei. indude the !fo!:>ign, i111pk•m1~nt.1tion ;incl rn,iitHtmanu,, 

of adequate internal financial controls Iha! w1crr.~ np.,ral'ing (lift)i:livPly for f!nr,wing 1 IH~ Or(forly ;.rnd dlicfrmt c.onducl of its 

budn~!s:,, induding a(lh,!r,>nc1i to t:lw Company', polk:iPs, the safoguMdine of Hs. ,is'.;ets, tht') pr,~ventklt1 and d0k(lion d 
ft-,wdi; and errors, the accuracy and complet.en(~:;5 or tlw ;i(.wunling rncon.b, ,HKI t11e tim1Ay rm•piiration of r0li<1l>li, 
linMKi,11 infrmn,l\ion, ,i~ ff1quirnd und<H Uw Ad. 

Audit.or's: responsibility 

11, Our rcspo11SibHity i~. lo oxprO$S ,rn opinion on the Company's inwrnal financial controls with rnforcmce to the Stand.ilonr;, 

fir,anci.~I SUlhmHtrll$ basr~d on our audit We conducted our ~udit in ;icc<mfanc,1 with l'lw Guid:.rn1.:11 Not~• :Hld th!:' 

Standards on Auditing ('SA') prf/r,crihC!d und~r f.W'.Hor1 l43(JO) of Hw Act, t() the extem applicable to an audit (Jf ln1crn,il 

fill,111(:ial control!; with t'l>f'ilnHlCJf \() lhfi Sl:~ndalont' Fir,;rnti,ll St,ltenit~nt.s. Those SA!; and th~ Guid;rnc,(: N1)('(,• r'i~quirn I.hat 

we comply with the {~thit~'ll requireme11ts arid plan and perform the ,1udit to obt,lin rn,lsom1bl0 ,1s;-;urnnc1"1 ,1bout whether 

adoqu,HC ir1t.c1·n,1I fin,1ncial controls with rC"forcnrn to the Standalone financial Statement~. were1 c:stiibli:ihod and 
rnair1to1ln(~d .tMI wlwlhN ~udl tontwls or.wrated effoctiv{ily in all material l'C/specl~. 

5, Our ,iudit, invc1lws p<'dorming prn<:.1~dum::; to obtain audit t.1v1dence abc\ut tlw adequacy of thf-i imemal finimd:.)I co,itroh: 

sy5tem with tdtireno.i! to tlw Standalorw financial Stak•ments and thefr opt,rat:ing ,~fh>.<:livPnt:-&s, Our audit or internal 

fi1iandal ,;onl'rol:\ with td(Ht>nt11 l:n th() Shmdalork Ffn:rntlal Slale1w~nb induded ~ibtaining ~111 under~;t,1nding of inkrn,·•1 

fl11~i11ci;1I wnl'rnls with referenf(' to the St~rndalcnc rinar1dal Stcitrnient~. ,1:;:;(·Hdng the risk l.hill. a materi,11 wealuiel~s 
exists, ;1Mf u,sune, ;rnc1 ewiluating th(' de::ign ,'!11d oper,1tlng c:ffec(ivcne$:, (Jf inl\,rn,il COlllt()l l),j:,(id on t.he as~esst•cl l'isk, 

Tho pr◊cedurcs se(er;:t(;ld depend on the ;iudit(n'~ judgonrnnl, induding thti il5~es:.ment of the ri5ks ot mMNial 

mh;statmlil'11l of ttw Sta11dalo1ic• Fin,lntiill Statcmwnh;, whethet' du~! lo fraud or error. 

6, Wn bdi(:\l(i 1·hat tfw ,iudit' iNiden<:0 w~r haw obtairwd is sufficient and appropriate to provide• a b,isis for our audit' opinion 

on the Company's int<irnal financial contrnls with mfori~nuJ to th<~ St.;rndalon(! Fini.H1d;.,l Staternents, 

Meanfng of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the standalone Financial Stat@ments 

't, A cornp,111/~ ir\terMI financial controls with refo:re11rn to tile St1mdatonQ Fh,;111d}ll i;1;it1mw,1ts is ;1 proo•s:; d{'Signecl to 
, .. ,·:::::i:·:·:.:·::.•::::::: .. -::-,.... provid(• rni.lsonalJle ar.r;uranct' regarding 1-ht~ r(tliahilil'.y of fin~nclal rnpot'tin({ ;rnd t11e pn~p:H,ition of St;mdalone Fin;ltKial 

,,•:f\:;:'1,?~5:)Ki:::l~:~~,iternent& for external purposr~s in accord.~11te with v~11¢r,11ly ;icorpted /l((.Ountinf prir1dph•5. A rnm1)any's inlern;il 

«<i:i '>JJ, ,,, ,::<;-;)~,111ci,1I controls with rdl?re;-n(;t) to the S1;,1nd,1lone Financial StatemGnb indudt' those. polit:k•s and procedLmii; tha\ (l) 
( \.,H,,dd,,l-.,,! \ \. - . . . • -

'.:> \ Alti:-:;nt:·iltr). '.:r. /rt;i1n ,to the rnHmll'11<rnc(> of r'(:1rnnh th~!, Ill H:1,~~,orv1ble dr!t:a1I, iK.curat.ely and btrl~ refleu. the trnnsar:t,(Hl~ ;.111d 

\¥1{\···,,.,, ............ «:.,~;\l.~'~'.~~1'.1.'.'..1.~~ .. '.~~ .. '.l~.().,'.l~:i.'.'.~~ .. f~~····~·l:'.1,~.~~:.1:'.1~•:'.1it; ... !::l ... r.:'.~,'.:~1~J;'. ... '.::.'.'.::~r;:'.1~1 .. ~ .. '.:~: .. ~ .. '.1,'.: .. ~~r'.~.: .. ~!~.'..i~ .. ~1.:'.'.1'..=~·~~.'..~'.:.~ .. '.1'.:~ ... •:~.~~~~J.~~.,'.l,~ .. '.:'..('.'.:..'.:~;..'.'..'.~. 
,::::<::;"•.}:· .. , ... S9,6{hi11e loW<{f, Uwd l9, SB11,1p;Hi ft~r.n,t: Marg, Elphlnsto!1e Road, Mumbai 40()0U, India 
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Ch,.-lrt<:iri:1d Accounl,:lnl::i 
(formerly Khimji l<:t11wc:rji & Cc) LLP) 

t.o pixnlit prep,1r,1tion of Standalmw Financl,:il Stater-nr.n(~; in ;:iccord,rncc wil.h g1mi:!r;,11!y ,Kcc.•p\(id ,l(J;()unting principlr:~., 

.~11d U1,~t 1"t•1:oipb and nxpt•nditl11t!, of tll1! Company ,Ho being rnadt' only In acwrtlanrn with authnri\t:Hiom, of 
manr1gt•111ent ,lnd dirncl:or~ of the Company; and (3) provide rr:ar.onabk• aswr;incr. rng;udin[( prevr.111'1011 or timely 
dr.tectfon of u1iauthc)ri1;(1cl acquisition, use!, or dh;po,iticrn of llw Company's ,1ss1•t~, t.!v1I' could h:Nc ii m;Jtf)rl1,l 1~ffoU: cir1 llw 

'.~t;rnd,ilon<• Fin,1ni:fal Stilh'1\Hmtt. 

Inherent Limitations of lnt~rnal Fin11ncial Controls with rcfornnce to the Stand11lone Financial Statcmcmts 

H. Bec.~use of th1) inlH-:r0n1 \imit,Hi(ll\$ of intrrn;)l !in,inc:i,,t Wt\\f'Oh with rd,mirKf:' to Ow Sl:~ncfalone Fin;rnc;i,11 SIMGl\'l!~nts, 

including Uk po%ibi!i\y of collu~ion of impmpN' management owrride of co1Hrolt., 1li,-lh'tfal n1i~~tat1~1lH:t1ti; due W Nrnr 

or fraud n\ay ()(.(Jl1 ;rnd not b(! ,kte<:t(:d. Ah(), J.)rojtctions d .:1ny w;:1 lu,11.lon l)f tlw inl(•1-r1 ill fin,nici;;il cor1( rob with n;,fonm1;1;: 

to tile St,rnd,1lomi Finimdal Slalenwnt:; tu fulurn periods ,m,• subject to the rli;k that tlw inlern;;I fin,rnckil control~ with 

r~tfc,1mnm h) thr St~nd;ilono Fin,)n<:i,)l St;)Wmmk, 1·113y lwronw in,,1deq1vJ\l,i bf1c:-1ut1) ofch.ir1r1,% in (,'.01·1di\'ion!;, !)f th,,1l'th1~ 

t_1pg1wi of i:011\plidnte with th<:' polick•s or prou•dw·(~~ may th:•lNiornlt'. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Ck~ r(er(:d At:(OIJntci n I':; 
(fornwrly Khimji Kur1wrji & Co LLP) 
Firm Hoghlrntion Number: .HVil4{iW/Wl()062l 

, , _;)~I 
,.,,.. : • • ,l""-"I c) ..... ,.. _,..,,, ... ,..-" 

........ ~~ v~.. l ~~-~:· ~ 

Soornj Kornbaht 
P,1rtncr 
ICAI Mernlrnrship Nn: HA](i6 
UDIN: 25164366BMNUMD!,706 

PliH".\?: Pun~: 
D:11e: 21 April 2025 

Stm~hinri To1wr, Lewi 19, $(,napati 13;lpat M,·il'!{., Elphinf;lonH f~oad, Mumbai 400013, lndlil 
l: ·19) n 6J,l3 trn E: )!1f0Wkkdtp.ln W; www.1,kd!p.in U . .PlN: AAr'-'))J:,"l 
•.,',.1.1,,,.,., .. 1.11,.1.ss,,,,,.,.1.1.,.,.1. ...... , .......... 1., ... , ...................... ,.J, ......................... -~-~- -~-,, .. , ......................... ,,, .......................... , ........... , ............ , ...... , ......... ,, .. , ..... , ............... ,.,., ..... ,.,, .................... ,.,., ... ,., ....... ,, .. _,_,,_, ......... , .... . 



Dn1"- i Flmi:e.rv He11hh LlmUed 
Shmd11lont 811.lam:c ·hnl as at M.iri::b JI , 2015 
(A ll amounts in INlt lakhs, unless otherwise s lated) (~ In Lakhs) 

Particulars Note No A&o t M.llrchJI, As at M•rch 31 , 
2025 2024 

ASSl':TS 
Non•currtot a~:-iCt!i 

Property, plant amd eq uipment 3 1,305.43 1,042.38 

Right of Use Assets 4 2,779.40 J,566.51 
Other in tangible a,sets 5 10,519.18 8,058.83 

Financial assets 
i ln vestmen1s 6(a) 25,858.74 . 
i, Lo•n 6(b) 4,%1.95 . 
iii. Other financial acsscl~ 6(c) 157.1 3 448.54 

Other non-currenc assets 7 1.502.02 1,541.67 
Income tax assets 9S7.31 370 89 
Total non-current as,ets 48,041.16 IS ,028.82 
Current assets 
Financial assets 
i. Investment; 6(a) 308.73 295.90 
i i. Trade rccci,vablcs 6(d) 3,104.08 J,815 .87 
iii. Cash and cash equival~nts 6(e) 6,442 .14 7,369.98 
iv . Bank Balances other ll>an Cash and Cash 

6(f) 
275.00 175.00 

Equiva lents above 
v. 01her linancia I asset> 6(cl M52.79 45.69 
Other current assels X I X.49H. I 5 4,960.93 

Current tu assets (net) 
Total current as::sefs: 29,4RP.90 16.663.37 
Tota l assets 77.521.06 31.692.19 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity 
Equily share capital 9(a ) 250.00 250.00 
lnmumcn ts cnlirely equity· in na ture 9(c) I , 12,320.00 69,250.00 

Other equity 9(bl (68,244 .20) (54.531 .32) 
Other equity 44,075.80 14,7 18.68 
Total equity 44,325.80 14 ,968.68 
LIABILITIES 
Non-current llafllUties 
Fin@cial Liabil ities 
i. Lease Liabi lit ies IO(D) 2,JOR.14 2,989.07 
ii -Provisions 13 372 8(, 348.OJ 
Total non -current llablli tles 2,681.00 3.,337.IO 
Current liabllitlos 
Financial liabililies 

i. Trade payables I O(c) 
iotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and . -

small cnterp1iscs 
total Qut3l1:mding du es of crcdito r:1 other fho.n 4,885.28 S,145,65 
micro cn lcrrriscs and small cntc'l' riscs 

ii. Lease Liabi lities IO(a) 670.46 568.43 
ii i. Other current financial liabilities I O(b) 2,816.67 3,209.13 
Provisions I I & 12 3,544.07 2.296.76 
Other current liabi Ii ties 13 I R,598.77 2,166.44 
Tota l current liabilities J0,515.?li 13~186.41 
Total liabilities 33 196.26 16,723.51 
Toto l equity and liabllltil!s 77 522.06 Jl.692 .19 

Summary of m.leriu l accounting policies followed by 2 
1J1e Company 
The uccompanyin.e: notes arc lntc~r• I pure of the nnnm:ial ,tatements 
As per our report of eva1 date. 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chtu1ered Accountanls 
(former ly Kh imji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
ICA I Finn Registration Number: I0.5146W/WI00621 

Soorcj Kombahl 
P011ncr 
ICAI Membersh ip Number: I 64366 
Pune: 
Dale-21st Arri 121125 

On beha lf of the Board of Directors 
B~jaj Finserv Health Limited 
GIN - U85320PN2019PLCI R5286 

DcvnngMody 
Dir ector 
DIN:07794726 

~ -

Finance Head 

Date• 21st Apri l 2025 

Anish Amin 
Director 
DIN:00070679 



8•1•1 Flmerv Health Llnilted 
Standolonc Statement of P rofil & Loss Ale for the ye•r ended March 31, 2025 
(A ll amounts in INR lakhs, wnless otl,erwi se ~ta led) 

Parlic.ul•rs 

Revenue f"rom operu1ions 
Other income 
Total Income 

Expen,c 
Employee benelils expense 
Finunce costs 
Deprecialion and ..a rnortisation expense 
Other ewenses 
Total expenses 

lo._. be.fore tax 

Income tax expense 
-Cun-cm tax. 
- Dcfotlcd la< 

Total tux expense 
I ,11~~ for the vear 
Other comprehensive lncoroel(loss) 
fterru th3t will m~t be reclassHied to profit or loss 
Remeosuremenls of post-employment benefit obligations 

Othe r comprehen.dve income/ (loss) for the year, net or ta" 
Tntal cnmnrehc11slve h1tnmclltn .. 1 for the vcar net nflu 
Basic e3mi ngs per shore (In INR ) 
Diluted eumings per share (In lNR) 
(No111ina l value oer share IN R I 0) 

Summnry of materiol occounting policic.s fo llowed by the Company 

The accompanying notes arc in!cgrnl part of !he financial stolcmcnts 

For KKC & Associa tes LLP 
Chartered Accountants 
(fom,erly Khimji l(unverj i & Co LLP) 
!CAI Firm Registrat ion Number: I 05 I 46WIW I 00621 

Soorcj Kombaht 
Partner 
!CAI Membership Number: 164366 
Punc: 
Date- 2 I SI April 2:025 

('f In Lakhs) 

Note No 
For ycor <'ndcd For ycor ended 
March 3 ~. 2025 March 31. 2024 

14 66,623 .82 61.S l 4 63 
15 940 OQ R(,I 55 

67.563.91 62.l76.18 

16 14, 192.54 13,028.31 
19 315.03 2:51.92 
17 3.912.29 2,673.75 
18 62.972. 19 61 .184 02 

81,392.0S 77,738.00 

(13.1128.14) (15,361.83) 

- -- . 

- -
113 R2H.141 /15 l61.R3~ 

13 115 ,2? (95 .70) 

115.27 (95,70) 

/13,712.fl71 fl 5 457.52) 
(553 . 13) (614.4 7) 
(55) .1 ]) (/\,14.4 71 

2 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 
Bajaj Finserv J leall11 Limited 
CIN - U85320PN2019PLCI 85286 

Devaug Mody 
Director 
DIN :0779~72i; 

~ 
Mn11•~~h Shanna 
Finance Heod 
Date- 21 st Apri l 2025 

Ani.<h Amin 
Director 
DIN:00070&J9 



Bajaj Fh1Seni Health Limited 

Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended March 31, 20ZS 
(A ll amounts tn , l~khs ur,lcss othvrwi,c ~1n1cd) ,, 
l'artlculars 

Cash now from operating acUvllles 
Loss hefo1e income ta>: from oneralinns 

Loss bcrorc income tax 
Adjuslmenis for 

Depreciation and amor1isatio11 ex pe11se 
Unwinding of discount on security deposits 
lnlcrest income 
Profit on sale ofprope11y, plant and equipmcnl 

Changes in air value of financial assets at fair va lue lhrough profi t or loss 
Finance c:osls 
Provision for cxpcclcd credit lo$$ 

Chnngc in operntlng assets and llabilfltes 
lncrease/(Dccrease) in trade payables 
( Increase)/ Decrease in lrade receivables 
(Increase)/ Decrease in other financial assets 
Increase I (Decrease) in olhcr nnancial liabilities 
( Increase)/ Decrease in olher assels 
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liabilities 
lncrease/(Decrease)in provisions 

Cash 2cncralcd from oocralions 
Income taxes naid nel of rcfiJnd 
Net cash l!encrntcd frnml (used In) npcratlnl! activities 
Cash nows from Investing ocllvllles 
rurtlmse of prope11y. pla nt and equipmeitt and inrangib'le asset 
Sale of property, plnnl and equipment and intangible asset 
Payment lowai:ds acquisition of business 
lnvestrnents in other bank balances 
Proceeds from sale of investmems in mutual fimds 

Inves tments in mutual fiJnds 
Loan given to subsidinric.~ 
Interest received 

Net cash l!Cncraled from/ fused In) lnvcstln2 adivllles 
Cash nows from tinanclng activities 
Proceeds from funds from holding company 
ln1cicst Payment of Lease Liabilities 
Principle Payment of lea.,e liobili1ies 
Net cash l!enerated fronil (used In) nnanclnl! ac1lvltles 
Net Increase f;iecrease) In cash and cash cqulvalcnls 
Ca.•h and cash co11ivalcnt~ al lhc hcl1'inni11U oflhc r.n~nc ial vca,· 
Cash and cash enulvalents at end of the .veor 

Parllcul~r 

Cas i, and cash equivalents 
Bala11ccs per statement of ca.sh nows 

Summary of mn1erial accounling policies followed by 1he Company 
The accompanying no1es are integral parl of the financial s tatements 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accou111a11ts 
(formerly Khimji Kunverji & Co LLP) 
!CAI Firm Registration Number: 105 146W/Wl00621 

. ~\.,,/ 
.,..s.~~ 
Sooroj Kombaht 
Partner 

ICAI Membership Number: 164366 
Pune: 
Date- 21s t April 2025 

For ~ear ended For Jear ended 
March 31, 20:Z:S March 31, 2024 

(IJ.112R.14l (15.361 8]\ 
f13,ll2R.14l 115 361 .. 831 

3,912.29 2,673.75 
(\).54) ( I 84.79) 

(723.R7) (261 ,70) 
( 1.97) 0.00 

(20.28) (20 .15) 
J 15.03 2S 1.92 
(9.04) (281 29) 

(260.37) 1,60 1.11 
720.83 (1,755 .05) 

( 119.61) (183.39) 
(392.46) 82DI 

(13 ,497.57) ( 1,5911 92) 
16 ,432.33 1,498. 15 
l .,3~7.41 911.60 

(6.0911.971 /I J,1183.1171 
l:SR6.411 253.34 

(6,685.381 (11 ,630.53) 

(5,!!66.40) (6,327 26) 

7.50 
(24,ll74.2J) 

( 100.00) 
307.45 

(300,00) 

(5,IIR9. I 0) 
2113 .97 224 ,60 

136.430.112 l 16. 102.,66) 

43,070.00 23,500.00 
(J 15.03) (251 92) 
(:566_60) (454 .171 

42.188.37 22.793.9 1 
(927.114) 5,060.72 
7, J69Qll 2,309.24 
6.442.14 7.369:98 

As at March 31, As nt -tnrcll JI , 
2U25 2024 

6,442. 14 7,369.98 
6,442.14 7,369.911 

2 

Devang Mody An i.1 h Amin 
Dit'ector Di reclor 

DJN:0779472/i DIN:00070679 

~ 
Ma nccsh Shamrn 
Finance I-lead 

Date• 21 sl April 2025 



Bajaj Flnserv Heallh Limited 
Slandalone Statement of Changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025 
(All amounts int lakhs, unlcsso1hcrwisc sta ted) 
A . Eq11ity sh••·~ capita l 

\:'artlculars 

As at Morch 31 , 2023 
Changes in cquily share capital 

A• al March 31. 2024 
Cha1111.cs in eQuitv sha~ capitol 
As at March 31, 2025 

B. lmtrumenls entirely equity in nature• 

Parlieulars 
At the beginning of the year 
Addition durim, the vcar 
Closinl? Balance 

•equity component ofloa11 received represents loan received 
fi·on, Bajaj Finscrv Limited compul sorily convertible into 
equity sllllres at face value of Rs . IO per ~hare 

C. Other equity 

Par1iculars 

Balance at March 3 I. 2023 
Loss for the yea 1. 

Other comprehensive income/( lossl 
Tota I comprehensive lncome/(loss) for the period 

Balance al March 31 , 2024 
Loss for the yeor 
Other comorchcnsi vc incomc/(loss) 
Total comorehen•ive lncomc/lloss\ for the ncrlod 
Balance at March 31 2025 

Summ3ry of material account ing polic ies followed by the 
Company 

I Nole No 

9 ,~1 

Nole No 

9fcl 

Noie No 

9 (b) 

9 (Ii,) 

The accompanying notes are integral pnrl oft he lina01cinl statements 

For KKC & Associates LLP 
Chartered Accou ntants 
(formc1lyKhinij i Kunverji & Co LLP) 
ICAI Fim1 Regislra lion Number; 10514(,W/W l00621 

Soorej Kombaht 
Parmer 
ICAI Membersh ip Number: 164366 
Punc: 
Dale• 21st April 2025 

For year ended Amount 
March 31, 2025 

25 .00 250,00 

- -
25 .00 250.00 

- -

25.00 250.00 

As at March 31. 1025 As at March 3 I. 20.24 
69,250 .00 45,750.00 
43.070.00 23,500.00 

1.11.320.00 69.2S0.00 

Rese,·ves and surplus Other Comphrenslvc 
Income 

Retained eftrnings Remeasurement of 
!leflned benefit 
Obligation 

(39.2UU.48) 126.C,k 
( 15,36 J.83 ) 

(95 .70) 
(15,36J .83) (95.70) 

154,562 .31 } 30.98 
(13.R2R ,14) 

115.27 
/13 828.14\ 115.27 
(68.390.45) 146.25 

On bch~lfof theBoard o f Directors 
Bajaj Finacrv Health L,i mited 
ClN - U85320PN20 ! 9PLCI 85286 

Dcvang Mody 
Director 
DIN :07794726 

~ 
Mnue.:,11 Sh;mna 
Finance Head 
Date-2151 April 2025 

Anish Amin 
Director 
DIN :00070679 

Total oiher equity 

(39.U73.80l 
(15 ,36 1.83) 

(95.70) 
(15,457.52) 

(54.531.32) 

(13 ,8n.14) 
I 15.27 

/13.7l2 .R7l 
(68,244.101 



8njaj Finscrv Health Limited 
Notes to the fin11ncial statements for the y~ar ended M111·ch 31, '2025 

1. T he Contp&ny Overview 

Blljnj fllnserv Hen Ith Limited (the •·Company''), is n public company limited by shares, domiciled in India and 
incotporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 20 lJ. The Company was incorporated on July OS, 
2019. The Company is a wholly owned subsidia.ry of 'Bajaj Finserv Limited' (llolding Company). The 
Co11,pany i.~ opernting in the Health Ecosystem ~nd crenrcs integrated healthcare solutions to improve and 
manage healthcare outcomes with technological intervention. Tbe Company .is engaged in business of 
marketing, promoting and selling Healthcare plansJproducts including preventive healthcare, man;;igemcot of 
illness, loyalty curds, telemedicwe, through online and/or through network of provider~ / partners. The CIN 
nl1mberoftl1e Co,npany is U85320PN2019PLC185286. 

The Registered Office of the company is at Bajaj Auto Limited, Mumbai-Pune Road, Akurdl, l'une, 411035, 
Maharashtra, and its Corporate Ot1ice is at Floor no 40 I, 50 I, 60 I, Trion IT p11rk, Nagar Road, Vadgaon Sheri, 
Punc-4 I JO 14, Maharash1ra 

The financial ~tatemetlls were approved foT issue in accordance with a resolution of the Directors on 2.lst Aprll. 
2025. 

111 April 2024, Bajaj Finserv Health has completed acquisition of I 00% stake in Vidul llealthcare Services Pvt. 
Ltd, (VIIC) at an enterprise value on 307 crore. VHC has a subsidiary VHJTPA. which is registered ;is a Third­
Party Administrator (TPA) with the IRDAI and has vast experience in healthcare administration ir. fndia. The 
a,·quisition of VHC significantly augments capabili lies of the company in the healthcare space, empowering it 
to provide services to insuroncc companies, eniploy.crs and governments, 

J A Presentation of financial statements 

The Company prepares and pr.:sents its Bal an ct: Shed, the Staten1ent of Profit and Loss and tho Statement of 
Changes in Equily In the: formal prescribed by Division m of" Schedule fll lo the Act. The Statement of Cash 
Flows 11:is been prepared anu pt·esented as per the requirements of lt1d AS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows'. 

The Compuoy g~nerally reports financial t1sSet~ and financial liabilities on a gross basis in the Bala.nee Sheet. 
They are offset and reported net only where it has legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts 
and the Company intends lo either settle on a 11et basis or to realit:e the asset and scule the liability 
simultaneously as pennittcd by Ind /\S. Similarly, the Company offsets fncomes and expenses and rcpor\s the 
same on a net basis where the netting off renccts tile substance of the transaction or other evet1ts as pennilted 
by Ind AS. 

I B Basis of prepar ation 

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS"), lhe 
provlsionsofthc Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"). The lnd AS are prescrib~d under Section 133 of1heAct read 
wiU1 Rule 3 of !he Companies (lndian Aucounting Standards) Rules, 2015 a ;is amended from time to time ahd 
other relevant provisions of the Act. 

The~e firu:mciul statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain finnnaial ussets ar,.d 
financial liabilities that are measured al !'air value. 

The tioanoinl statements are presented in lndio.n Rupe~s (~). which is also the Company's functioncil currency, 
und 1111 valueo are roundocl to tho nearest loos, rounded off to two decimnl points unless otherwi~c stnted. 

The financial statements ue prepnrtld on a going conc<im basis !lS !he Management is salistied thattbe Company 
shall be ablo: to continue its business for the fo,·esecable funtre and no material unce11ain1y exists that may cast 
S1gnHicanl doubt On the going concern a.~sumptinn. In making lhi,; nssessment, lhe Man11g~ment hRb considered a 
wide mt\ge of i11for111,1tio11 relating to presem and future conditions, including t'uture projections of profitability, 
cash nows and capital resources 



(i) Use of estimates and judgment 

Estimates al!ld assumptions used in the preparation of the financial statements and disclosures are based upon 
Management's evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the financial statements, which 
may differ from the actual results at a subsequent date. Accounting estimates and judgments are used in various 
line items in the financial statements: 

(I) Revenue recognition 
(2) Defined benefit plans and compcnsa ted ab~ences 
(3) Useful lives ofintangiblerassets 
(4) Provision for estimate toward expected wellness service claims 

2. Summary of Ma,terial accounting policies 

i) Revenue Recognition: 

The Company derives revenue mainly from tl1e follow mg sources: 

Bundled Product 

Bundled Product under the nomenclature of, Swasthyacarc or its variants is a comprehen~ive offering in the 
Health ecosystem !Ind comprises \,enc fits such as lnsu ranee offered by insurnnce compat1ies, OPD, Laboratory 
bcnefit,Loyalty card, access to HealthRx mobile spp and website. 

R~,venue on product sales are recognized when the customer obtains control of the specified product. 

Revenues are shown net ofGST and cancellation of policies sold if any. 

Insurance component comprised in the product price is not considered in the revenue as it is sold under the 
passthrough arrangement between the Company and the Group's insurance Company. 

Company uses point in time uppmach to recogn.ize the revenue, since there are no unsatisfied perfo1mauce 
obligations pc11ding aficr sale of prodt1ct. lu mu Hi-year product6.lhe revenue i.s r'ecognizcd over the period of the 
product. Company recognizes wellness pay-outs provision oo estimate basis. 

Health Prime rider (HPR) 

Health prime rider is a comprehensive offering in the Health ccosy~tem which is issued by one of the group 
insurance company and comprises benefits S\lch RS Q~>IJ, Laboratory benefit, Loyalty card, access to HealthRx 
mobile app and website, The Company manttges these sorviccs on behalf of the insurance company. For above, 
agreement is directly entered with group insurance company, There are two products under this revenue category 
- Retail Health Prime Rider and GMC (Col'porate) Health pdme Ride1-. The customer segment for Retail HPR are 
the retail consw11ers of the group insurance company. The customer segment for GMC arc the corporates of that 
insurance company. 

Pursuant to the terms of arrangement with the insurance company the Company's perfom1ance obligation is to be 
obliged over the policy period, the reveime & contract liability emanating from the said arrangement are 
recognized over the period of policy coatracl. 

Service revenue 

Service Revenue under the nomenclature of Health Prime or its variants is a comprehensive offering in the Health 
ecosystem and comprises benefits such us O.PD. Labo.-atory benefit, Loyalty cord. wellness benefits, access to 
!-lealt.;~f!% mobile app and wc\l$itc, Revenue on prod11ct sales is recognized when the customer obtains control of 
the specified product. Revenue~ are shown 11et of·GS1i and cancellation of 1mlicies solu i r a11y. Company us~ 
point in time llpproa<:h to recognize the revenue, since there are no unsaiisf1ed perfornrnnce obligations pending 
after sale of product. The control of product is immediately transferred to cust-0nier at the time ofs.ale of product. 
Company recognizes wellness pay-outs provision on estimate basis. 



Co•Dra.ntltd Card / Loyalty card 

Cobrandcd card, Loyalty card or its variants, offer a srnull ticket size health managemtmt solution, en-compassing 
l1calth benefits such as discoun1~ al Outpatient department (OPD), Phannacy, Laboratory test etc. 

A refund liability is measured for all thi} products and services at the amount of c()nsideration received (or 
receivable} ror which the entity doo~ not expect to be cntllled and such ainou11( is deducted from revenue in 
accordance with Ind AS 115. 

TJ1e Company assesses the timing of !he tran~fcr of services to the customer as compared to the timing of 
payments to determiJle whelbcr a significant financing component exists. As a practical expedient, the Comp1my 
docs not assess the existence of a significant financing component wben the difference between payment 1md 
provision of service is up-to 12 111onths. 1 f the, difference in timing arises for reasons other than the provision of 
finance to either the customer or the Campany, no financing component is deemed to cxis1. 

ii) Properly, plant and equipment and depreciation Property, 

Plant and Equipment 

(1) Recognition and derccognitlon 

Prope11y, plant and equipment are carried at historical cost of acquisition less accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses, if any, consisteht with the criteria specified. in Ind AS 16 
' Property, PlanLam.l Equipment'. 
Property, plt111t and equipment not ready for the intended use or1 the date of Balance Sheel are disclosed 
11S "Capital work-in-progtess". 

(2) Depreciation 

Depreciation is provided on a pro rata basis 011 straight I inti method to allocate the cost, net of residual 
value over the estimated usefttl lives of the assets. 
The Company follows the useful life as provided in Schedule II. • 

iii) Intangible Assets and amortization 

ll'ltnngible assets, representing softwares are initially recoiniscd at cost and subsequently can-ied at cost less 
nccumufatcd arnortiE,.tion and nccum\1l:1ted irnp~inncnt. 

The cost of an internally generated intang ible as~et co,uprises all directly allributable costs necessary to create, 
produce, and prepa,·c the asset to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the Company. For internally 
developed int.lngiblcs, such as software, plattorms, apr,lications, expc.nditure pertaining to rest:arch is charged to 
the Statement of profit and loss. 

B~penditure incurred on development of internally generated intangible usgets, is recognised a~ an intangible 
asset, if nnd only if the future economic benefits attribuutble to the use of' mch know-how are probable to flow 
to tlte Company anJ lhe costs/expenditure can he mensured reliably. 

lhe intangible assets are amortised using the straight line method over a period or live years, which is the 
Management's cstfmatc of its useful life. 

J111angible assets noi ready for the intended use on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed 11s "Intangible assets 
i.lndi.;r development'". 

iv) Financial instruments 

Recognition and initial measurement 

Fina ncial assets are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a pa1ty to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. Al initial recognition, the Company me11surcs a financial asset at 
its fah value iocluding, in (ht! case of 'a financia l asset not at FVTPL', transaction costs 11lat are directly 
amibulable lo the acquisition of the financial ussel. Transaction costs of financial assets caruie<l at 'FVTPL' 
are expensed in profit or loss. However, trade receivables thal do not contain a significant final}t:iJ'!g 
component are measured nl transaction 1>ricc. ,1 1-~ ~, 

....,-



Subsequent mensurcmcnt 

Subsequent measurement of nnuncial o.ssc1s depends on the Company's business model for managing lhe 
financial asset and lhe cash flow cham;Lerlstics of the financial asset 

The Company classifies its finat1cial assets in the following measurement categories: 

a) those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) 

b) and at Amortized Cost 

v) Investments 

Financial instruml!nls mt:asure<l at fair vitl\\O through profit or loss (fVTPL): 

Financial asscls nt FVTPL arc measured at fair va~ue at lhe end of each reporting period, with any gains or 
losses arising on rc-ll\casurcment recognized in Statement of profit and loss. The gain or loss on disposal is 
recognized in Stalctm:nl of profit 1111d loss, hllt:rest income is alsu recognized in Stalement of profil and lu~s 
for FVTPL in~trurne11ts, 

vi) Trade Pa1·111Jl,c~ and other p11yi1liles 

Trade payables and other payables are initially recognised at fair value, and subsequently carricd11ttransact100 
price. For Lheso financial instruments, !he c:111-ying amounts approxi111atc fair value due to the short-tern, 
maturity of these instruments, 

vii) rmpairment 

1!1 Pinancjal ftssets 

The Compamy assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credi! loss asso1=iated with its financial assets 
carried at amortized cost. The impairment metbodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant 
increase in credit risk and if so, aHscss the need to provide for the same in the Statc111ent of Profit and Loss 

The Company uses 21 provision matrix managc1uen1 approved policy to detem:iinc impairment loss allowance on 
porLfolio of its ttade receivables and other financial assets. The provision matrix is based on ii~ hjstorically 
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivable;; ,md other financial assets and is adjusted for 
forward-looldng estimates. At every reporting date, Lhe historlcal observed dcl'llult rates arc updated for changes 
in the fo1ward-l0Qki11g estimate~ . 

.hl Non - financial assets 

. Assets nre tested for impainnent al each reporting date and also whenever events or changes in drcur'nslanctis 
inuicate that the canying amount may not be rccovcrnble, An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by 
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recovernble amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset's fair value less cost of disposal ~nd value in use. For lhe purposes of asses~ing impair111.:n1, assets are 
grouped a1 the lowe~t lewis for whicb there are separ-dtely illcnlilinble cush iuOows which are largely 
indcpentlenl of fhc cash lnl1ows rrom other assets or groups of asst:ts (cash-generating units). 

viii) Employee benefits 

a) Defined Benefit Plans 

The Company has the follow1hg eli1ployee bi;,.nefTI plans: 

a) Gratuity 
Pnyment for present liability of future payment of grat\lity i~ being niade lo approved gratuity fund, whicb fully 
covtrs lhe same under Cash Accumulation Policy and Debi fund of the Life lnsurance Corporati011 oflndia (LTC) 
and 8,yaj Allianz Life Insurance Company Ud. (BAUC). However, any ddicil in plan assets managed by LIC 
and BALIC' as compared to the liability based on an inJependent actuarial valuation is recognized as a lia~ility. 



The liability or ll~$et recognized in tlie balarit:e sl1ec1 in respect of defined b,cnefit gratuity plans is 1he present 
value of the defined henefil obligation at the end of the repo11ing period lei:s the fair value of plan assets. The 
defined benefit obligation is calculated annuully by actvarles usi11g 1he projectec1 unit credit method in confom1ity 
with the principles ii:nd mnnner of computation specified in hid AS 19. 

The Calculalion includes assumprions with regard to discm1nt rate, salary escalation rate, attrition rate and 
mor1ality rate. Management detcnnines these assumptio11s in consultation with lhc plan's actuari~ and past 
trend. 

Remeasuremenls as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in 
other comprehensive income. 

b) Defi11ed contribution plans 

The Company contributes to two defined contribution plans for its employees: 

Contribution to providenr fund !s ma.de to Government Provident Fund /\uthori1y 

Contribution to Employees Pension Scheme 1995 is made to Government Provident Fund Authority 

The Company recognizes contribution payable Lo the:se fond/ schemes as au expenditure when an employee 
renders the related service. Compet1sated absences 

The employees of the Company 11re entitled to compensated absences. The employees can oarry forward a portion 
of the unutilizetl accumulating co111penst1ted absences and utilize it in future periods. The Company recognizes 
accumulated compensated absences bnsed 011 actuaria I valuation using the projected unit credit metl1od. Non­
accumulating compensated abstmces Me recognized in the period in which the absenctis occur. The Company 
presents the leave as a .cw1·ent liability in the balance sheet as it does not have an unconditional right to defer its 
settlement beyond 12 months after the-repm:ting date. Remeasurements as n re.suit of experience adjuslme111s and 
changes in 11:ti.iarlaJ assumptions ate recoguiz.edln other comprehem,ive income. 

c) Employee stock option scheme 

Stock options are gnmlcd to el igible c1nployees under Employee Stock Option Scheme, 2018 as 1·ornmlated by 
Bajaj Pinserv Limited ("Holding Company"). The scheme is adn1inistered through Bajaj fitiserv E1uployee Stock 
Option Trust ("The Tn,st"). The mode of seltlemenl of the scheme is thro11gh equity shams of the holding 
company . 

.. Further, cost of stu.:h options i.e. Option preiniuni, whid1 is reimbursed 10 1he holding company is accoumed 
in line with Ind AS I 02 'Share ba~~d payments. 

The fair value of options granted under tlie Bajaj Finserv Lid, - Employee Stock Option Scheme (13FS-ESOS) is 
recognized as an employee benefits cxpen~e. Thih !lnlOtlJlt is reimbur~cd to the h<Jlding company and is accounted 
in line with Ind AS l 02 'Share based payments. The rota! amount lo be expensed is dc1cnnincd by reference to 
the fair value of the options granted: 

• including any market perfonnance coodiUom, (c ,g., the entity's share price::) 

• excluding the impact of any sctVice and noo-markel perfonnance conditions (e.g., continuance of an 
employee of th~ entity over a specified time period), and 

• including the impact' or any non-vesting conditions 

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is U1c period over which all t·bc specified vesting 
conditions are to be sa1jsfied. At th.e end of ea~h period, the e11tity revises its estimate$ of number of options that 
are expected to vest bt1sed on the nou-rnarkel vesting nnd service conditions. [t recognizes the impact of the 
1:0',!i!ion to original estimates, if any. in profit or loss. 

!rl case of forfeiture/lapse stock oplion, which· is not vested, arnonized portinn i8 reversed by credit lo employco 
compensation expense. In a situation where the 8tock option expires uncxcrdsed, the related amount is recovered 
from the holding compuny. 



d) Short-term employee benefits and defined contribution plans 

Liabilities for salm·ies, including non-moneta1-y benefit:; and accumulating leave balance in respect of employees' 
services up to the end of the reporting period, are recognized as liabilities (and expensed), and are measured at 
tbe amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities a.re settled. 

Tbe Company also recognizes a liability and records an expense foe bonuses (including petfonnancc-Linked 
bonuses) where contractually pbligcd or where t11ere is a past prnctice that has created a constructive obligation. 

ix) Provisions and contingent liabilities 

Provisions are recognized when lht! Company ha:; a pr,csent obligation (legal or constru~tive) a5 a result or past 
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the umount of the obligation. The amount to be recogaized as proviston is the best 
estimate of tJ1e consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, 
considering the risk$ and 1mccrtai11ties sun·ounding the obliga_tion. When the likelihood of outflow of resources 
is remote, uo provision or disclosure is made. [f the effect of1hc time value of money is material, provisions iire 
disc01mted using a current pre-tax rate that reflect~, when upptoprinte, the risks specific to the liubi)ity. When 
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the pas,~agt: oftin1e i.~ recognized as a finance cost 

Contingent liabilities are disclosed -vhen there 16 a p-0ssible obligation or a ptesent ob1 igation that may, but" 
p1•obably will not, require an outflow of resources. Wl1c11 the likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no 
provision or disclosure is made, 

The Company accrues U1e estimated cosr of provisions of wellness benefit al the tulle wh.:n the revenue is 
recognised. The accruals arc bnscd on the Company's experience, benefits offered in the product and industry 
practices. Provision amount for OPD, diagnostic, teh:imedicinc or similar healthcare is derived based on th_e 
TeSpective component~ considered in product pricing. ll'rovisioning amounts are tracked periodically and actual 
utilisali.ons, if any, are adjusted against provision amount. lfthccustomc1· does not utilize the benefit, the unused 
provii;ion is reversed once the product period expires or al the end of contrnct term. 

x) Other income 
Tnterest on fbced deposit recognises income 011 accrual basis. 

xi) Income tax 

Income tax comprises cummt and defen'Cd tax. Jnconw tax expen~e is recognised in the staternent of profit and 
loss. 

a) Current income tax 

Cun-ent incomc l;i)( for the current periods are measured at tbe amount cxpec,cd to be recovered l::y the taxation 
111tthotitics based on the taxable income/ (loss) for the period, Ttic lax rates and tax laws used to cornpole the 
current tax amount are those that are enacted or s1tbsta11tively enacted as at the reporting date and applicable for 
the period Current it1eome tax relating to items reeog11ised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or 
loss (either in other cotnpfchensivc income or In equity). Current ta,~ items a!'e recognised in correlallon to the 
underlying lra11sactio11 either in OCI or directly in equi ly. Management periodically ovaluates positions takl!n in 
th~ tax returns with respect lo situations in which applicable tax rcgulation.s are subject (o inlcrpretation and 
establishes provisions where approprilltu.. 

b) Deferred income tax 

Deferred income tax il~sets 1t11d liabilities are- recognised for deductible ai1d taxable Lemi,01-ary diffc,ences arisiug 
between (he tax base of assets and liabilities :1ntl their ..:artying amount in financial statements, except when the 
deferred incom.e tax arises from the initial rec.ognition of an asset or !iabtlity in a lra11saction and affec1S aeitber 
accounting nor taxable profits or loss at the time of the tram;action. 

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable lhal tuxable profit wi ll be available against 
which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused rnx losses 
can be utilised. The oarrying amount of deferred income tax US$el$ is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent !ha! it i!S no longer probable that sufticient. laxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the 
dcfcrreJ income tax asset to be utilised. 



Deferred income tax assets arc measured at the tax rates 1hut are ei<pectcd to apply in the: period when the asset 
is realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted al the reporting date. 
The Company offsets defo1Tcd income tax assets and liabilities, where it ha~ a legally enforceable righ.t tooffset 
current tax assets against current tax liabilities, and they relate to taxes levied by the ~ame taxation authority on 
either the same taxable entity, . 

xii) Leases 

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract 
conveys the right to control the use of an iden.tified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

Company as a lessee 

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases. The Company recognises 
lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying 
assets.The company leases comprises majorily 

a) Right-of-use assets 

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date !he underlying 
asset is available for use). Righl-of•u~e assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets 
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs ihcurred. and lease paymc111ts made at or 
before the commencement dale. Right-of-use assets arc depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term. 
The right-of-use assets are also subject to impaim,cnt. Refer to the accounting policia~ in pnrn 6. Impairment of 
non-financial assets. 

b) Lease Li.abilities 

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value 
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. 

The lease payments arc discounted using the interest rate implicit in ihe lease or, if not readily determinable, 
using the government yield for the average lease period 

The carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modilieation, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to fulure payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used 
lo detem1inesueh lease pr.ymeiits) ora chang-.: tn the assessmentofan option to p11rchnse lhe ttndcrlying asset. 

xiii) Fair value measurement 

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 
1,~n·ity takes place in the accessible principal market or the most advantageous accessible market as applicable. 
_._ompany uses valuat_ion techniqu~s l_h~t :are appropriate in the circ11msta1~ces and for ~h_ic~ sufficient data 
-m available !o measure fair value, max11mzrng the use of relevant observable rnpuls and mm1m1z1ng the use of 

unobse1vable inputs. 
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized 
within the fair value hierarchy into Level I, Level JI and Level 111 based on the lowest level input thai is significant 
to the fair value measurement as a whole. 

3. Recent accounting pronouncements 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA'') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under 
Companies (hidian Accounting Standards) Rules 11s iss1.1,ed from ti111c to time. For the year ended March 31, 2025, 
MCA has notified Ind AS - 117 losuranee Cont\'ll'.(;1$,ahd amc11dme11ts to Ind. AS 116 - l.eJ1ses. 1·elating to sale -·· and leaseback transactions, applicable to the Group w.e.f. April l, 2024. 1l1e Comp/llly hos reviewed the new 
pronouncements and based on its evaluation bas deter111i11e<.1 that it does not have aoy significant impact in its 
financial statements 



Bala I Finst-rY Hl'allh Limltl'd 
Nol~ to Flnanclal tllllem~nf for !ht' PN"lod codt!'d Marc.h JI, 2025 
(i\ llamounls in l lakh,, unl<5so1hc1wise slilt<d) 

Nate 3t Prol)('rty nhml and cquiumi:nf 

Parrltulan; 

Gro,s C•rry[nt Va1ur 
A3 lll M"'h JI , 202l 
AdJilicns 
0'500S31sl adiulofJnet\l.:i 

A, al ~hr<h JI, 2024 
Addiliom 
Dkoowl,:/ adiustm,nLs 
Al at March JI lOlS 

Accumulal<'d Dc-p,.-l'cladon 
As ,1 Maff-11 l I, 2021 
1Dctm=t:i11ion fru lht yea• 
Disn0Sals / Adiu!lfl1t'nt5 
Asal March 31 2024 
D~ptt:c:5.Ulun for lhc yt:i,1 

Oisf'lluals I A<fruslnlcrat!I-

As ot March JJ.1015 

Ntt carrvine. n luc as at M11rch JI. HU 
l\'c1Carrrlfli!! yaluc as al M•rth JI. l02S 

Compu1ers 

6't9% 
1127? 

76-l .72 
182.49 

945.10 

307 81 
210.~5 

$IU6 
18Hl 

702.JI 

IH.06 
141 ,90 

f,""urnllurl' and Lcasr-hold 
fh:lurcs lmprotiern~ts 

27.01 
24.80 

SI.HI -
37 23 111 24 

-
K9.03 111.l• 

1.97 -
4.31 -
6.28 . 
6.20 22.20 

ll.48 ll.10 

•s.Sl -
76.56 K9.0• 

fil ThC'rc arl' no r~lrlctJon on lhc me: of tbl:' aboYc mcnfionrd aisrll 11nd non~ or •heslf' H.!liell ari: pr.tdcc.d as securih' 

Note 4: Rtth1 or UsC' Assel5 
(All amounls in t lakhs, unltu 01.hc.rwi51: stlredl 

Partltulliln t..cut"ho ld 
Prt:ml.SCS 

Gron Curyi:n~ Valull 
As ,1 M•rch l I. 2021 2,26~,52 
Additions 3,825.90 
Oisr,osal~ / Adiusrrncnls I 76'154 
4' al Mar<h JI 2024 4.)11,&9 

AddirtOm 
OC!ioosals I At1(us1mco1s llJO 
A., 01 ~hrth JI, 2025 4.JO•l.59 
Accumul11rc.J Dc,pre<-hnion 
As •I Morch ll. 2013 495.99 
Dcpt\."Ci.a1ion fQr the }~3T 619.76 
Dii-... ... 1!1, I Ad\~mi:nl.S lKO j~ 

A, al Mar<h ll 2024 75~.)7 
Deprcttalinn for lhe )'\!ii!! TI4 Kl 
D8110s:i l.s I Adiusrments. 
As •t Mar<h JI, 1015 I.SJ0.19 
Net C•r-nlnr: value a$ :a.I l\1lilrch 31. 2,)24 l,566.S I 
Ncr Carn•h1!! l'lilUC:lilS Il l l\hrt.h JI . 21)15 2.779.4-0 

Thcn:11.n.: no leases \:ntcn:4.1 hy 1he i.:omp:my for low VjjfllC 0n..:ts 
The comr,.any d.oca not ha~ anyleitsc rcst1ictioos and comminm:nr iowa,ds \rl1lahlc1'l:nt as per the eontr:):< 

Unnr d .\s,~• 
Eft-c trlt'al 
ln Ut ll llioo 

0.90 
S 71 

9.61 
90• 

IUS 

0 31 
0 29 

o.ro 
181 

U I 

9.01 
16.24 

l'he a>mfliiJny ha5 c:Ptcrcd inlo IC"oitiC agrcc-menls, priffl13ri1y for ollicc building, which is Ulill.Zcd in \he ordinury course: or ils businc:1 opc.:1a1loos 

orr.,c cqulpn,c,. Vohklc, l'folll 

60.)9 307.SK 1,045 84 
110.0J 400 47 6S6n 

-
170.41 701,05 1.702,61 

1K 6l 279.94 62S.58 
9 ifi 9 g, 

179.0. Q7¥.IJ l.Ul.ll 

IS ll ., 04 366 JR 
2079 57 60 293.Bl 

J6d).f 9H.6< 660,22 
J~.53 11 1 60 )~9 9K 

4..ll 4.ll 
70,57 IDS.OJ J.lll!i.89 

IJ• .37 ·609.41 1.041,)1 
!OR .SO 172.20 1.WS.4l 



■ 

Bajn] Fin fll'V Heal lh Limited 
'otu la l'lli_aoci1! >t~l•m~nl.J for lh es puiod ended March 31, 2025 

(All amount ln lw.:11:., Wilm Oth~is,:. stated) 

Note S: latllnglblc a ets 
(All amounrs int lakhs. nnks.s otherwise smted) 

!>:orticular~ 

GrM, Carrying VJllue 
As at March 31 , 2023 
Atlilitiv1o:i 
Disposals 
As a.I March 31, 10?4 

Additions 
Disoosnls 
A• at March JI, 20?5 
Acc umulated Amortisation 
As al March 31 , '.!02J 
Amortisation for the yeac 
Disoo,als 
Ala at March 31. 20?4 
Addikions 

. Oisoos:als 
,u.,.t M2rch Jt. ?OZS 

Net Carrvin2 >'a\11eu at Ma rch 31. 2024 
Net Carr yinl! v&lue a~ »t March 3 1. 2025 
~No revaluation m current or previous year 

Computer 
softwore 

15.06 

-

15.06 

15.06 

14,90 
0.15 

15.05 
001 

IS.06 

0.01 . 

lbteroally Tolal 
geoeriltl-d 
intangible 
u11Set 

6,272,88 6.287.94 
5,595.49 5.595.49 

-
11.868.37 11.883,43 
jJ3t5o 5.33756 

99.7 1 99.71 
17 11)6.22 17.lZl.27 

2.086.41 1.I0UO 
1,723.15 1,723.30 

-
3.!109.56 J.824.60. 
2,792,63 2,792.64 

15. 14 15.14 

6.58'?.04 6.601.09 

8.058.82 8.058.83 
10,.SlY.18 I0.519.18 



n.1.,1 lllnmv 11 .. 11h 1,111111,d 
Nr.ttn tn lifMntl:111 ~11-ll~l)Jtnh tor lht?: o~riod end~d Much J I.1025 
!AH nfflQUf11.J. ,o lNR lukh.,, \JUl(!Q 11Uicrwi,c stalc(ll 

I Ole 6(ft}: IIWHlln~nu 

11t1r1tcifJ11t.~ 

h!\tlltld~ril in S11b!WI~ [Vlll11 I Hi:.JIJl11:111c rvt Lu.I) 

T l')IIII 

rar1rcvr.111rJ 

,,n-1..."'llln;eaf m ·inulwl li:mili. 
i\1UHud r.1u:uh {i\l T-11h· \ "a ll!~ 1hrt1t;_1.1:h l'&.L} 
Quo1tit 
1'11 CM•<<~ .ll ,20'10 1 ◄3? ~~I •M • in SBI i.jqi,ld F!lnd llir'<I Grow1h 
.,,~1 10 (MitJ<Ji ,i. :?OlJ 7.l /1 HH unLh I~ IISUC", C1b1h f11nd .. n ,nwih IJ,rc>.1 
4,(W'it',.~fl (,'for(h '!, l , ~023: -,,0(,6 ~HJ u11i1:, 111 O•ndht111 l.ht1dd Fund• Cimwch •lllN-:1 
11tl)fl 

22-499Ll: 1S (Morch J. t '202:5: 224991;,7S)11t1ll!1- in Baj~ f~1:1c, v (IJic.-- F'und-Oi1t-c.tPIA1)-. 
Grow1h 
44771.S ~March) I 20:ZS: 4477 7.S)Uhil,( r •• Od_i-.tj ~111l)l!.r ll t\lotli:)I M111,~L-:I l•rn11l~ 
Dln.·1::IPlo,__ Growth 

I ,Uli!I '1:HUtd.al lluuM 
Ag~u.:~IC honk "alut ~r qm,~d lnvcStmcnll; 

AlUJl'Cl,l,."11i:- rn.:ikc1 'Villlic- tlf taUhl,d 1~s1mcm~ 

Nnn ,ehr'rent- Oth!r fin11n,IQI ~nie:t.:­
tUrm."-!u~. Citn~c1cd Goodl 

l11r-UtulIIM 

~urify ~Qi 

1 l:l t•I OtMr tiln.tu'tll ••'llri 

01h.1:r fin1111CUIII l\:,.n•ci - -rur~t 
(UMUdrrd, r,11 .... fflcl ·i:d'. Qood) 

1r-arUcul11u1 

0 tp{l:f:i1 wilh GovL AultwIil'1 
IL1ttrc$I Rt.u-ivntilc 
Unbilled Rc~'t't1lK' 
Accrm.:t.l lnlcrc1:c 
Otbc.r llllllllt.W :w.i:ls 
'fola.1 Olt11Y' 1-"'ln1mcl:al lllii'l 

t11r1!c111~ 

Sn:~ (1:J, t.oritiJ.:Tftl gF;JO"J 

U11'f«1,r«J. consldi;irtd g1;1od 
'rt.00'1 tlcreiwN~1. ~h1l.:h lw1t1! mt:rttas-.1 m c:1cdh ds k 
't'1ik.lv ~l.."tl!.tvabla..-- ut.-Jl\ I•" J11111Nl 

1'Uun,1ut(jl" rorh111d 1u1d dra11h1rn1 dchbi 
~;tl.~tm~I. ton"'kll.'r-.:J ~atJ 
ft,itl~ tl1,1rel..,,,t,l~ wt1'4:1 1 h11i,,1: tlif111r..- 1111I i,u:rw,i:c 111 crcdU f"llik 
Tt~~ Rcn:lvahlt1 - a;d11 hnn:ilro! 

I 6lal rndl n:a-l\'2hlc, 

Trnd111 rMelvAhlH ril!tlne 1thfdul• 

r 1n"CIC'ul B 

Iii\ U 1d i!llniHL-d Tr.;w"ti:: 1ct~¥dile\.- t!t1t1:11Mci!:d r_nt',jl 

iil ll~li• ..... - T,o,tlt'. RL.ltl"i'ln!bld-- \11,'hMi lutv~ Ii 11l(rceinl i1~ru.ir in l' rctlll 1isk 
lh \J11~d1u,ukJTn,Jt 11 - t,.ib"-'• Cte1,!i lhtL\ll.l•b.l 

(;rlllS T.-ude ffQ'fvublts 

I_.,..: hl\O:wma1l Alinw•nn,C.~ao rm bod md dilUblfiu dclll<I 
1n.n .. rA--i1. .. 111,.. 1111111 .. f .fm 1•ll'•t11""P ,l, l!(·u,1<;111,ct" 

f-'1u·1lrnl■n 

It l• U1.lll~t...-J I 11,lid l!! recd~ •hie. - c-0i,11«JN\.'.U .tll~ 
ii1 11., .. ~1Jtd Tn:ul CI R~"ttl\'!llllt-jl[ • 1.11tl1~1 ~' c 1-ia11llii:~.1.1ut lt,craK tll L..tlllil 1.ldr: 

Gr.ru,; l'l"ld~ m:tlnblc:r 
U ~t lnimirrntnt Altu-..n« ~4ftMi'i4 1,•u U,1r 004.1111 u.l ~lunlt1 fiil c"1bt 11= I 
l t-a.:\I• ,-to:h~fltl 11{htJt1A1.,sun,nl A U11 1r;11m,r 

!',~.al l\l~relt 31. 
1111! 

ll.RSS 14 

!~~·-•N 

Aiu,/ M•rdi JI, 
l(US 

!Sllfli 

jOQri 

Jttlt.l.l 
JOO 00 
30K ,:l 

A• nl ! l ■rth 11, 
znM 

157 ll .. , ... 
.-l,:U M:m:~bJL 
llllS 

1~8~ 
JM.l'l 
197 ~-II 

$3.40 
I~ f.j) 

~~l.10 

Ai1ll !°!ltrrl1 l l , 
tr"-< 

. 
imoi~ 

IR4 'I 
. 

J.IOUU 

HtCl 

Ml 
.1.IIM.o• 

1'(-.t due 
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. 

1"(,11 due 
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IHUI 

. 

IA, II.I ';h,.-cl. :.", 
20H 

. 

A~ ~l i\hnb Jt , 
2024 

177 2S 
I ISM, 

lt:1.5.!10 
.1)1i~II 

&lil"i'-111 

1\,11 ,n Mrirt1r ,lt, 
!CN 

~, •t M ortli .II. 
lOU 

il4Jl5.;I 

~.!!W 

As 1.1t ~forch J t • 
101" 

OM 

-1,-, ,r\l} 

All Ill M i rc .. . 11, 
701' 

-
l,~, I "22 
IOI . 

.!.NI..S_'4 

9M 

!M 
tll ~.•1 

U11•th•~ 6 
UUll1th, 

l.1Jl0.J'9 
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. 
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HJl.ll 

-
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-
-. 
-. 
. 

6 Jnontllj,-l,),'Cll t' 
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. 

.\h! \11.trfll ltl.1~ 

I .J yun !.Ji)'~'! 1Ahlr~ lh&n :, ynn Tqt1111 

2..92fU9 
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. . . 3.64 1 lZ . . IM/4 \I 

. - . l.ll1U> 
- . - 966 . ].R l 5,NV 



BUJB.f Finsel'Y ll~~llh Lhnlled 
Note., to Fina11dnl •lntemenu for 1J1c period endetl M~tch 31, 2025 
(AU nmount.s in !NR l~kh.-, unless otherwise staled) 

Not• 6(e) C11sh ond ca~h equ!valenh 

P~rtlcutan 

l:lalances with baQks 
• •~ current nccou11ts 
(lepo.,il~ with OdBill~I m"turity of less than three months 
Ch~<jll"-'1, drafts Oll liAnd 
Ca.sh un hunJ 
Total •a~h Rnd cnsh equi,alents 

,\r,u March JI, As al Morell JI, 
20.Z~ Zll24 

987.78 1,909.79 
5,454.36 5,460.19 

-
6,442. 14 7 369.9R 

I. Tllere are 110 reslrlctions wilh rcgnrd to r.•~h end cash equlvolen!s as nc the end of die cuo·rcul and previm1s repo,ting periods, 
2. Th• deposits 111ain1,11i1wd by the Cl)inpa11y with bn11ks compri~a of time depo~11s, which uan b~ wiUtdrnwri by the C~111pnny al miy r,oi111 
witl1nul prim· noUoo nr pcn~lly on the principal. 

Nntc 6(0 Bunk 8,lanccs olhcr than Cash. snd Cash Equlvnknts above 

PntllCU!a.rs [Asal MJ1rth JI, Asal Mard131, 
2015 2024 

( I ) 1:lalnnce wlth Banks 
o) in depoc.i1 uccounts due for marurity within 12 months of the repOrtfn15 da\.! 
b) Earmarked balances with ba□ks 275.00 115.00 

Total Bonk Balances ofhl'f· than Cash nnd Cash lsnulvolcnb abnvc l?S.00 l7S.D0 
Ecmuurkcd bal unccs with bank.,q p1'11lL!:111ly l'CJak lo·rm,rg1,, rrn111\iy fnJr hank guartmlcc~. 

ote 7: Other non-current assets 

hrUcul11n 
As st Marcl, 31, A~ otMorrh 31, 
2025 2024 

GSTcr-cdit receivable 54&.53 1.mJo 
rrepttymem to gruluily fll1ld 
Proouvmcnl toward &hare based auvmcnl (Refer note 27\ 953.49 U4J7 
1'otal olher non current u,cts 1.501.01 l,S-tJ.67 

ote fir Other current us~•'-~ 

l'nrticulnrs 
A~at Manh 31, As at Mttrctt 3 I, 
2025 2024 

Prepaid cxpcn.1c~ 277. 12 4-09.42 
Prepuymen1 rownrd share based payment (Refer note 27) I ,248.92 ~Bl.I 0 
Svpplier advances 1.6 7,82 3,474.92 
c'npl1ol Advonces· -
OST depoiit~ 30.67 J ~5.49 
Commi~sion oaid In ~tlvancc 15.253,62 -
1'01al olh~r current • ..-ets JIM98.IS 4,91iU.9) 



H11lal t,i1ur,n, Ht1Ilh LlMtltd 
ole:, lo r-inanci:d st:ii temenb: for ~hep rlod t!nded Mcn:h 31. 202!! 

IAll 11mo11:uts in I Nit lakhi;. unln~o1tu=rw~ i;lillcd) 

Nok 9: Ec1uit)' :1lt11n caph11I 11 nd c-the r tq lll fy 

O(.n~ t.~1111 .Jh• l npl11t1 
A uJUdti!,(d h , ut:d., Sull~l'tJb~ Clt11I n ttM u n tlU.HU , ha.tt nnU:11 

P11rtlirUlan A, ,11i f Man-11 JJ. 
l ltiS 

Aulhorl1NI 
so.00.000 equity sh:iin:-,: orR, 10 c:11et1 (PV '-O,oo..noo ~on.no 

lc~:mil!i' duitet) 

IS-SUt!d Il4b•erlhut ond ruiuv n ::abl IU, 
,j,00,000 "'1Jily ,h:il'Cll of R• 10 e:,ch (Pl' 25,00,000 llOOO 
l.'!LJUi ty ~lfln,I 

2,0.00 

Al at M1rrcJ\ .1'1. 
101' 

~oo.nn 

2)000 

2511.00 

IR k rttmdll:111011 nf 1hc- ir;h.lirn ou1~tk i11Uott Ja l ll1t• hr1 ln111nu. 111d 1Ll tli ll' OfLd ot tht'I \"f'fl t!' 

r "tlh:·ll'l11n. ~!Hlill#_. t), ~f, .e t Eq11Uy\ t111irl· 
(lflh1td ,s, C11ptl~I 

tp11r ~~U1t:J 

1, I Al J\ l■relt :I,. ,l(llJ l~ 2511.011 
(1quily ;t~,~ l.',l{'i\11.l l1t1tt"d. suN;criP-:<I :ind rully r,:tid up 
tJttriJ11.1. tho \oar 
A.ir; RI MRrch JI. 2014 l5 2~0.0D 
fiquil)' .slo~ e;,p~.il l~ucd. $uhscrib :d .1nd fully p!i.id nr 
duriuM die 'W!lll 

IA, iii! \l11tUJ I 101! .!5 l.'ill.00 

TClhlS ind rh:h1111lht.C'hcd lo ~c:iu:lty Shilil f(.'$ 
TI1c C"ompany hat. 111,lymtC (:lass (\f ~harC" rcfcrrctl 1fl as; EcJuily Shares havin.g II par value: ofl Ill~ Thi: 1-f,kkr.,; of Eqnl:t:y ,:; 1io1 a.: arc cnLiLlctl Ln n.11e ,·nlc per ~h:m: In 1hc 
~""11' orttqui&1tL0t1 ortt1~ t:-ornru11y, th~ etl\l ity:i.hi:irdLnldet,; wilt b~ ~,1it l~J w h!'t.~ive! 1cn111i11i11c ="(!' uflt•.c.- ..-ump•ny . .ii.All:', J i,:uibntio11 bf1.1H ~fd·tml i.ii.1 brnou111s, 'f~ 
c1ls-1rlbt1tioo will be in propoct~ 10 lhc nnmbcr orcqniLy dUir'Cs he.kl by,~ :i.hnn~holclers. 

A1. pf, i'Ol.:otds ur llit Cilinjiany. includ ing illl. rtci~ltf or ~hntch6klei/rfiC111btts end 61hct decliirol&ii r6.!c"tt1 rrt:11n lhc sh11,,c.holllc1s rc&5idlnf h.cm:Rtiol 1i'ih::idll. 1t;c libo"c 
.c;h.;rchaklinc rcp1c::u:nis bo1 h tcgJl ~nd hc11i:::.riei.il owm:·rshirs ar5.h.'.lrc.c; 

fo1 lhc (ICllod of"f1vc yt:11rs 1mmcJi1J1ldy p,r«cdmis lhc: dm[c- al which the IIBlnncc Shoot 1s preJl-lrcd !here 1111:: oo s~s ttlk'IUcd 11.,;, lullypaKI up ru™Junl la cont1,n,:;:f w11bout 
p.1)mcnt hcing r~i\·t<l in ~h; no sl1111't$ h.1vt.he-en sl fC)tfi:d os folly p:iiid n1> hywayofbonw $11.'lrC:S:; t1nd 1hcrc Rr'C no shirrr,; bought hack 

Pnrlll' lllciri A.:.1111 Mun·h J I, \t 11t l\1flrcl1 31. 

~Q.lll 6l11tJ~ 

ffold. Cllmmm1r 
2,.'i ,001000 c:qui1y sh:trcai tiC P... lO t,M;:h !l'V l5,1Wl.(.r10 
eno•~ ,tw..-,l ,._ hekl h• lffli<r F=N l,im~/!11 

2025 in l•kh,;I lllH ht l1k,ili 

25 

IDlt Ott .. ,, or 1rouu:ioi or.1 ffld 1.•11f't!h••hlat•1t ltAldu1t, Ulfll'( th•tt ' "- ftf thl' llfll 11I cnu ·~ ~ 111.'A "' ,twr ro ll"illl'r\ 
Parth::nlen ;h lll t M~tdt ;\ I lO!.lf ,\ ,11.at i\l.or-h 3 1 iz~:-1 

"' •h11 hcr 1, ft.lott·tl 1% tlr11l1hmt Nu1J1l1H"nf %b,nJ(ll1111:, 

lln i•~h•I sJn1rn lfn l111kh!l 
OuJUj f",rucrv l.tunLcU "I tnD% 2~ 
(lmmtt.ltltle1ulft ullim.n,re hnMiM c:<t1■nnn1.i} 

I I ~r ow111••u u·, Ht~Cllt1,.h,11thflldlin 
fl'rft'mQtl!!r 11amt" lu.Jlf Mlt,.;h:U .:nn 

l;,.iumhc-r Bf 

100% 

,h ol \ lu •,r11 :H.1014 
~ .. lmldlng N10,,~ r or atuu•~ I" 11oldfne 

lib lakh<\ 
I,~ Clltr(J tC' 

1h1rfntt Hi, V"-Dr lburtii Ho t•tc fJ") 
l:.,Ac.f1Rnlt,t 
1b1th1tt 1llntii1 

o~jaj fi1.serv Limited 
limmcllUltc and ult1molc t,oklinl! carnnol"l'I) 

R,cht.lnrd tl'lrt1lt11!!S 
l:ze.blfi,,,--J F...1,1rtlf n: m.=i!r::hf ihc .sttu111ub1~ l C&t11Jl1 • 

P rih:·ul:aN 

l}a11.l11"K,b.ibntt 
Ne, ,mr111 llft.-.) ft11 ll1!t k.iJ 

Olhtr rornnrthtnslvt inirome 

,\~ill Mi11-.:h J I, 

lfll!li 

,w .\ 

isl , 11111~1 o~-. 25 1om~I 

This rcpo;:~ iicmii: otiPCOmc 1:md l::'t~l'JC! tl1.11 !ZLfc Ml n'!~i}}t,.Jll,cd f11 p1,,fil nnd k1il ~.v .11n:. ~~wn 111 thl· ,!bLc-mml of pmliL and loss llii "Olh!!'( comprcJu:mivc income;"'. 
1'hl~ rompt~ 1Jl!ruari.il pLl'.1 I los:s l!ll rci rJIC".1.,1.irern,=ul c;if dt:fi,ttJ bmiellt pl11n, 11111:J lj1( itlt'omc fq orlh'1 111.c:rcoia. 

rar lknlan ,lu, CH Marth .1 I, As~, Morell J:I, 
,nzs lOlA 

(h~nill!'! ll!abnei' JUQ:M J-2h.4~ 
ltnDC::1M1n:111cnl;; ot lkiino.l hcncfo. U.1hllll YI fnlil~d) I IS "7 •~1.10 
Clu.h1a. lb.l1oc:.c 146,l.< J o,, i 

I-tem elll11uremenlJ orr,inst•emolny1•rn1 htndil o!J lfl!lllla11s 

11% 

Rc!m:-osurcmcr'lls of(IW!·e1nploymcJ1! be:r:olit Q\lli.t;~!Lons c:otnp~'S ofJ;1,cl1,mriol 1;3iM tti,r.J ICl;5;.,ctc on cnl~uln1ion of dcfi111.-d ~fK obllg.ilion.t.i aim.I rt.lini:1~! ~lwcen the n,ir 
\l':IIU1." nf plan :'IS.~Ct~, return on pbn N-Stls :1m:I ech,1,111 intcr,:;:s! income on pl.iJ.n J.'llS:CU.. These rcmc.\surc-rm1Ks !Jl't rt:eegniscd In 0U1cr cornp1chcn!:1\ e incmnr :ind wJII I\OI be 
ft:t"lll~ilkd lo Sta!entcut of Pro#il 1111.I loss. 

?Ul lnt.lrumrnb ~nllrtl v In mull\• 
11'11r!icul,r$ Af Ml\brcllJ t , ,.\s 111t M111rc.h 31. 

W2S 201◄ 

Opcni~ l:i:,:t:m« 69.250 00 45.750 ~,II 
/t.tkl: i\dilil~ llunr1e \he ...car 4),070 00 ;u-.,0000 
C'hulnl! bul■ n,rc- l , f l.llO,ifll 69.ZS.O.OD 



Onlit l Flr,1tlrv l(u tt t. Li11"1ll1!d 
?'-la,~ fa r,un<:1111 !IOUr:OOtllh fot tlle ,..t.r'l1rd Ln,kd M:•rch JI, 1025 
I A II l'lnX111n1iht lN R iliilJ;.bl!, \mlt.ss olt•n!fYill!IC Ml,.tcfl 

r.11ir1h:uhu·, 

O"mu li>iSt llabfllio, 
Nou C11n1r1u ~~se lil'lblhtl't:.• 

"lulifll 

/U 11t Mnrd J1, .U 1tl M•f"h .H 1 

1nu IOU 
0704~ 5~ ◄] 

1 10~,LI 29MQ.n7 
?.!i7M_._"4Jo .l . .',S'1.~II 

Tin: OJmfl"TIY JOt:i 1m1 rr,.r:c JI ri:ignUl1.-n11i l~t1IJII)' ,M .. with re,1tMJ In h~ !t:tisll li11b1liflt.; ru. 1hc i::,ninu 1K<l'C-l.r11rc ,1;u ffid..m1 Ir,, n11.-c1 Hie 

Obl!~~u'I rel:11etl lb lus.c:.1 obHtilts :a Dml wl~n Lhcv i';ll ,11~ 

P111 r1[ t11hln ,..._ 1 1 M.trd1 .ll 1 •\; :il l Martl1:u _ 
102.'w 10,~ 

tc•.sc Ll■hlli lk\ lq tti.12' b~l!!fnnln,: f!lflbt!' ynr- l.5Sl 50 l.71l!O 
l\dt.lilit"~ . '.\.7lM,97 
D!~{lOltll 12.94 1.41111 
fo11:~I E'fC:Dl!t l,~(16 lSI •12 

ll_{:.)Set l1t1\1""'1 UI •J 7.U IJ 
l.£21re t...dlb1llUe~ 1n l l10 c:tid or 11io. '«.!1 1 UTI!.MI :, ~~,-~u .. . , .. 

' I ',~· ' 11,11'1 hill ""' ' ,on,11i I I " 
Mnl11rll)'Q1':lf\'Sls: orlcl-Ui 1111.bllil'Y 

A,~fi\lMc.h ll, A!Jlll1'turfdll, 

>--------------------------,1-'"l.fl~l=--,-,7-.,-_.,. 1,.:•~~ 
zJil D z,'i•• ~, 

10th} Olh t curri:,n nnritidal llnbl:SUIH 

Al:. t j\lu<h)I, .. 4,,-,ttMtn:hj f , 

ZOlS J.D?.il. 
Emplo~ bcncfilrp;apblc: }_457 Sfi J.2-.5.S h1 
C'1111)tl'R.I c:rcdi!nt ?1'6 
Ollw 111'111"1~l•1t 1_SQ ll 1l(,1JWl 
T utAl l BUlf'f (llr"f'~DI nn11nc:lll l Uabll ltLu 1.JU1iti'7 .l.2n\l.L1 

r11rdc11.l1n /u ;,If 1'1are.h.Jt1 ,\~ ;ti Mueh -~ 1, 
101.5 ioz, 

l'l,'on~C~l'l'tnl Tlr-(14!' )'111'-fthln 

C11rR.111 Tnidl! Pi!valtl tJ" 
0 10011 011~rimd11'1~ d11vs ohmm, cnlC-Qlri~ aJ)d .:nnrdf t:n1ofTlr lMCI 
•10~1 O'tlbliUlilITTI! d1LCili ,pf tR.diaon l"flhcr 1Jia11 1nlcf1J; colcl r,ruel tr\11$1'1\il,lr t!l11i:f'ft~ 4JCJ!<.2~ 510.1\.."i-
TOIJl t I ra,lt. ita"■ltfn •Jt!IUS S.145.M 

-

r"rtrcnl;u•s- A& Q I Mnn.:b Jl, -U lll M3rth .If 1 
lOJS 1014 

-, r.do- P•JO•Col< l;,IJ(2ft- l S, IU} -14 
l'rw.lr:.m1wbb lO rd11td P'llf1ta lRt•\."1 11alc 2.l ) K1167 40.W 

t"rfllBI tnutl!.0111T"11h lt!t •.ff~5.lR ~ 

The UIM!1{1nrt0rurJU01111 to lhe- Mk-to .Sm.11U a11d Mtdi111n Enl41fPrl !I D1.:v~1p1iac1~ ,,c1 , 21'k, li, IMSMED ,t\c/J il!I •l "'41uch, I, 
202.1 •n,I Man:h l I, 1024 11 • • nndci; 

rurtk1tlr1rs 

t•, t'tn..-lp.1) no,oUnl tt:rOi,lmn 11p.ptr 11 

thl 1111~~1 "'1,1~ 1hcri::Q-41 mr,11in111g lll1J)Pnd 
l~f ir,lerul paid by lhc C:atupo11y In lcrms.orSct'lfCl11 16 orlhc M ·Mtll Acl, a.km,g: 

lik II~ IIIM\\tnll 1,n11-, ll lYIIICr\f m,tdt! IO •ht:. , upp! Tlll r t:ic)'ltnel II~ • r,rioi11tcd d11y 
'JI lnl<."n"u.dwoi,d p.11 b~(u<lll.: pc-1!r1,t,I 1•rd~l;sy In rt1,1{bu~ 11.1)m~1 !1vhi~h h•ve. 
l~th t)';"ltil 1h11 k ~11ul ,bl- -:1PJh\fl1l1'iJ <:l~y, dhrll!fl ,r r,,c, ""h t\\it "otvi..u niMlul!i fo1cn:i.t 
-ilkd" ~c,looMSMWl\ol 
If) ll'IICICi--1 ocemt:i! n.nd 4't!IOlllning ltrp111JI I 

m fltflll-W lrik!~ l1.!JrJD.llli1 1c d{!I: II~ 1111:,-,iMe l!~t in 11 10 w~l111 )'l:ll~. toim :nid1 
ffl., wl1.e" 11\c l1'1eru1 duC-' 11.$ ~o'l't" ~re ot'll.f.J1Jy n,1ct to 1tio.1;,tr.11I c(]l~rpdJ;c~ g,1 1h-c­

K11 l'-C•i ih\JU1~hl t.:it11 ;11 ik\1'1,.Hhlo,ij-),. "tthalillll( u 1\tl~1 ~11!\h•IU \, 

t1it l\htrd1 JI , \, 1 1 f\itJlr(.lt J1 -
2n!.5 lUl<I 

t 'utltuli'I,..- Und'111-u ticd Al1 U tl1 m1lh~ :11 , IU J I , 1 .. r h 2.dl~ 
~ nl ~itl iJ11t, 1,...,, lhatt I u- 111.• J~l \H 1i 1-l tHt'I "" t II tllA i l u1n 

, 1 ~1~Mf: . 
Oti«ll&:,. 405UO •1• 48 . -

111111 lh. ,i.r,,J J,1,.. 1.1~~1[ . 
tt.t"I n i.n~h,.-.1 J.(ii:1,-. • nt.b,c;;n - . -
r1trtfculnr,11 l ~ 11..u.hd uut~JH1111 • a, llf Jt \-Ii clil lfH 

'-'111 "' "' thse- l ..c-h '111111 I \t111r 14 :Z\'Ort: l..Jv-un \run rh:11n l v-ran 
llilMSM ~ 
lwl0d:1C11t • .TI<•-'> l1f. 11 

lt1ti.l D11:P11H!JJu~M.~IF . 
tt" .. )l.luirttticd,h1tti 1'.\11,,n 

l'Olitl 

. UiS.2R 
- . 
. 

Tl'tlfl 

- . 
S. l 4S,(,5 
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BuJ •I Fluserv Health Li111lted 
Notes to Fhrnnciftl sta te111ents for the period ended Marci• 3 , , 1025 
!/\.11 ~mo11nl!l in lNR lukh~, unlcs., 01hc rw isc s1a1cd) 

Note 14; Revenue fi'rom O pcrolion.1 

The c1111,oa11y tlcrv1ei; the to lluwml! 111nt'.< ofrc~cnuc 
Parllc11Jar 

Revenue from conrracl~ with custome1 s 
-Sale of services 
'rolHI rev~1111e from norn lions 

Vellt ended March Yur ended Morch 
JJ. l025 31 2024 

66,623 82 Gl ..S 14.6J 
66,62-:l.82 lil .514.63 

T11e Company collccls GST C>n lichalf ur lho Government-. I lcncc, GS, t$ nOL included in Ruvc,.uc from 0 1101-w t,0 11~. 

Reco11cilia11on of rcvcnu,;, recCl1:nl~1·1l ,\'ll h ~Ol1 11"U I nrk11. 
Particulut Year ended Mat·ch Yur ended (Y{urcb 

3L 202s 31, 2024 
Gross collecllo11s as per conrructed pric~ 79,733.03 71 ,638.11 
Deductions for: 
Contract l!nbi!ilies- lnsurunce premium 11.207,33 8,525.62 
Not cancellation 1,90 1.87 1.597.86 
R.evenru, (rom onerallons 6(\",623.RZ 61.S14.63 

'ore IS! Ot her Income 

l'urtlculnr Yuar ended Murch Yem· ended Murdl 

31,202S 31,20?4 
Gain ,011 sa le of Mutual Fu nd 20,28 20. 15 

lnlerest income rrom fixed deposits 255."9 21>1 ,70 
Profit on Sale of Asscls 1.97 . 
. Refund retained 51.03 3N0.63 
IJnwfnding of dbcmln t cm securdy dcpusltr. I 54 184.79 
Business Sup11or1 Chorgei; 10 1.07 14.27 
lntcresl 011 h1come TM Refond 22.32 -
Interest on Lo~n 4G!t29 
Tu lul other Income 940.09 861 .SS 

N111c Hi! Employee bencfil.'l e~pcns 

Particulnr Notes Vear ended M-nrcb Yur ended March 
3 1,2025 JI, 2024 

Salnrie.~. wap.lll< a,-,d bonus 1(),570.1~ 10,084,2') 

Conlribution to provident and olher t\lnds 417.67 369.10 
Share based payment 10 employees 27 I.R4&.19 1,350.74 
Gr.Hl,lty &. Corupensalcd U:xpcnscs 13 190.66 136.57 
Stalfweifore exoen~e.~ 1. 165 .ftS l.OR7.71 
Tufol cmploye~ benefit cxnensc 14,192-.S4 l3,02H.31 

I; 
'· .,. 
~ PUNE ; 

1. 'J 
"'i.7.1 C,t';;, 



Bajaj Finscrv Health Lim ited 
otu rn Finu nclal ~tatemcnts for the period ended March 31, 2025 

(All DmOlllltS in INR lekhs, unless otherwise stated) 

Note 17; Depredation and amortisation expense 

Particular 

Depreciation of properly, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on right-of-use asset 
Amortisation of int11n2ible assets 
'total tleoreciallon and amorli~ation exoense 

Note 18: Other expenses 

Particular 

Sales commission 
Customer Service claims/provider claims 
Sub-contracting Cl\penses 
Rental charges 
Fees for Technical services• 
Advertisement & Business Promotion 
Communication charges 
Miscellaneous expenses 
Travel and conveyance 
Foreign Exchange Loss 
Office expense,~ 
Legal and prof~l@.llaf fees 
Allowance for B11tl dl:bls .:xp,msc~ 
Recruitment el\penses 
Repairs and maintenance 
Paymenl~ to auditors (refer note I 9(a) below) 
Rates and lal\es 
Exoectcd credit loss for trade receivables 
Tobi othc.- u:nenscs 

Notes 

3 
4 
5 

Year ended March Vear ended March 
31,2025 31, 2024 

359 98 293.85 
774.8 1 639.76 

2,777.50 I 740. 15 
3,91.2.29 2 673.7S 

Year ended March Year ertdcd March 
31,2025 31, 2024 

27,386.24 29,204.57 
11 , 189.38 10,978.47 
18,877.79 11 ,802.25 

- -
3,396.26 3,742.51 

626.34 l ,6t0.89 
195.65 1,225.32 
(16.82) 276.46 
606. 16 1,473.42 

3.14 -
492 .62 427.09 
144.20 989.14 

12.16 19.89 
20.42 243 .31 
38, 10 15.51 

9.60 5.49 

- 51.01 
(9.04) (28J .29\ 

62,972.19 61,784.02 
--r>evelormenr costs that 11rc not eligible for capit31isation have been eXpensed in the period incurred and recognised in other 
expenses 

, ote I S{a): Details of payments to statutory auditors (exclusive GST) 

Particular Year ended March Year ended March 
. 31,2025 31,2024 

'As alldltO'I': 
Stat11tory audit fee 8.00 4.00 
Other matters 1.00 1.00 
Reimbursement of out-of-pocket expenses 0.60 0.49 
Tohl.l onvmeuts to auditor 9.60 5.49 

'otc 19: Finance costs 

Parlicul.ar Year ended Morch Year CJ1ded March 
31, 2025 31, 2024 

lntere,l exr,ensc on leased liabilities 315.03 251.92 
li'inunce cns1s exoensed 315.03 251.92 
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[)11J•J Hnun> liHlth Limited 

N1•ks Ii, Shu,d11 leM t.'h111ntl•r 11a1nnen1.1 ft.r U1e p.rlod <"ndrd Mu1!h 11, 2B15 

(f'\ll 1m100nl1 /n IJ\IR 111ths, \llnla.s 01hcni,1"1,i:st~rtdJ 

N~mi!' or rc1~1C'd paf'I)' and l'\:lhlf'C a, rch1l~P'lfp 1"".srwrc r:il tnmu,1fon 

Holdlil~ t.:tnip■ riy; 

Bfljlj T=l1$'rY I Id (Ht,ldln11, ~ny) CnnIrih1111nn rromcfQIIP ~n 1i:1f!Jf1! t\frquiLy 

01t!.i11tJ11s Sllflpafl Ctmga-
Rcimlmrsicnk..'fll b shM: bucd pa)'l'll:fll: 

·u1uldl11rlt1 ■ lh'I Mlnl'.·1olnl.dt:1ry: 

VIIM~P\11 Lw fin,, 
(IIIO¾ Subtldlt.ry) 1'~ for 1'1:iff¥!JIOII or Sci I liw,cl 

V tdilll I h:·ulll~IVI.: p ._oi l.Jd Loi,,n clwn 
( 1111)% S11b\hH•rt) lnlcrC5r lnmmc 

Eq;11i1)' l:nnt(loorna ordchl 
l111.1-=tltt'tC1,I in SuMidi111,-

Vldail Ht~tn lnwranc.e TPA Pvt Ltd Rei.1l R~-uion;-d 
(ltl0%S11lnldl11.')' ) 

Aaj11j AJIUfl.l! CTcncn-1 lt~'iX'ICi:Co Ltd 11\SUr.,ria: J1tc111111ni p.i4d ~ oemr,l~IM~ d\willl(!. 1tk: 

"'" ll r\.,Jlmi,-,flJ;)dl'll')" I l\lf'flln!;'C i,n:mh1mp111cl 

l rrJUNll\tt prtmium p•id (Of' miulapo4it~ o~ncnl 

(11:1.",~ bllluontt of • dune-(' (lH ll~ff f"[l4il:)' 
t,t.cvamc: 

[bj.;i] J\Jlmv Uk lnllitil'ltt Co Ud l11!n111111a? pn:milm [lo'lld lll1 Cffl{llo~ (lurtl1~ l~t ,a1 
{Fl.~ lov, ,i;\tmdint)·} Adv~m,'T prcmi11r11 r,1id for cmfd"f'lC' inii:umnci:: 

IRt1111anl!\,l pmnium p,,ld rcu n,:ti:l~'I poln..")' ;~J\I 

Cl(lll;iil& 1:1&111."ctu(llo.,J. ild'r.lll'IN) 

Rt'VN\U'I! 

fbJ;aJJl'it \UrKc-l..1,d Sl1bvtnlln11 Cllsf ch;;iiJ101 clurl,u tlM: ~r 

(Fdlo1,1• 1utn.idUlry) To~ih lt n:JJ.Cll p.itdi,mid 

lhr~lm,,;~ suprinn w1Ylc-tl!. fla~"ll 
PUS!l'(ltt ~11pron srrvkc,, ~~•1 

Rc,,·n11,M.: 

1-. ,nlllc1l:nlnt111ttMlt..\•lll);.l"l'r'DI 

Mnrki!'fing ft'cs- r aid durfi.if 11~ ~r 

M'11kc!in1; FttS fUl!.i1a.l d1.111in~ U11.i pcrlOI.I 

T11.11jphlc11.fsCU Sr.IC\ 
SOI 1'1~111 nr S-ceutily Orpt .~ii 

'RaiJ•J 'Fil$Cl'\· OiTCd. Umildl Mukc: tinz f«li p.-1),blc dur'Sni! the. }-c.:J" 

ffcil01-\' "1ik.idi".111)'l tlcull mipcmc 
Mtvkctltit F'f(!S: nete:iqbli;, J~f1'16 1tlc-p('fltld 

M.4~nU\: 

~jllj I rotiS:in& FiN.~ Lld M11thl:!Liflg ftt111-.-i>°3t•Faduri11g lhl!' .>t.1t 

01u.ltm;sSt1flfMJl'ldli1!JCS 

(I clln~· 11'1WidaQ·l 

!11J;1) ])inti,dal ~'UrillN LtJ NI'S Co«lrlttu4!oo p•ld 
\feJJcm• ~~Pdiof}') (lncntlll.! 

8:11_}.lj .r'~ M::111~1,u~• Cn I Id Ri:~~nw.: 
Cfte:1101\ ~&31)1 

01hr, trtOty 
llaW lluJdlnt1,1af)Ll ln\·C1111iC11- I Lld ll~JJilollll'iOlllffll 

[O,lio,c,,"lyl 

I Ul111I ).h1ul{r AJ(TIC!)' Ltd l n\dllngapc-1ms 
[Olhcr m!i1)1 

Hna.l 1tt1U...,-.J41t1i1,1 ~AllliMn, I I.I 0ut5Dllrt:ai l'l:SOt.irCC'to!i:[ 

1Hllatl ~l•rl 

S.1ki AULD f-1[!pk1y«. Ql'l)Up Gnt1t11LyFmKI Pill-II ~11,rlbiulion 1i:r1' C1roup Cir:uui1y lr1md r,1 r }1111101' 11.SIJ 

"''"" ~n11,,1 
Kc-y M.n11trri.t1I ~nlllll'ICI 

Ocv.nrii: Mod)' (WhOtc 'TTIJIC' l)ir(ll;iOtl ~ho,! lt,U, e,,"lcyoe b(L"IC'rit1 

Shan: 1,-.,.m) r~)'T"<PW 

'lfJ1II\Ucll1111 \'alitt"fi.1"" 

(he- ptrtod t11dd llrl 
M11"h .\I, 101.S 

l•l.07000) 
2lf2~il 

i:.n:i 91 

l'lJ) 
J 19 

··"°' 59 
'4,Mt,2? 

SI~ SI 
!◄ 1 1:74 ~J 

t• ,.-1 1 

211! 

:?JU2 

tll.llSOOJ 

J~ 11 

6,16S(,l 

(16GO•I 

Wlfl 
(4.! 1114) 

(8741) 
(1'9) 

is.<,"7.S5 

,.. 
tl-ltlllt 

lti II.)} 

2.1Sli 41t 

"'' 19 
111 Jn) 

(Ill •Ji 

. 

S..'t97 

U:974 
,in1s 

11k'.' ... Vt' dimt1.lu1·0 hlh<' b«n IMir.k 1hr rrl:i.lcd p:utiClf !dcnLll'i ied :u.su.eb only 10 I~ !n t'Ol\la"11lty 11-id1 11~ lndfflA Aca111Jn\11113 Su•nlbnl (Jl'IIL AS) 24 

A II abt1vc tnios1K1lan1 ~ In 111c- ordiruu)' cavrs.c ofbmlnco nAd 011 a1la$1 ICl'lf.l•h bl'lll!i o(ludln~ to: l1rp.1e1 

f0114i tandlriC am<m•d 'fl■ ft.'ll !Uwii \l,tllur f l)t 

lcllrrl<"d In tht Or,l::inet fl it titrhnil entli::d 
)oiflc,rluonM•rth'.\ I, M■nhJ I , mu 
1n1s 

(1.12.170) t>l,SOllOIJ) 
IUOI J?SOO , .• ~o,, 

~JO . . 
4,9(11,QS 

J/,9.if.l 
914 l . 

2A ,11.74 1J 

0•1 -

0 IG 1116ns 

"'" 66 
l.U 62 

i.U6 ~? (7.29'Ql'l» 

11>4.'1'1 
101:2 -

7,941 19 
~lll 

!16SOl! 

14 ll 
24 9S 

it.SM1 . 
'lJ4 

t•o, 111 7,1'1'118 

("HI!) 

on 
:? ;\6 . "'" 

72616 . 
1406 

LH t•2i1 

OOI 

S4ll 

~3>0 

H I 

l.lOUlll 
u,n.s 

Nami: Of r~ M~C'll r•n)' ;mn 11o1mn: on111; ,ct:.ic:u t)~"}' ro:liM lom:111['1 wt.ere C"Qtllll'II lil:IHJ tiave tm;n t1k-ct,~~-J lm.ccp«:ll>n (I( \l'tic'ftlet ltl f'il'II l~'t"Cl h:.vttlf:Cn Uill\~.OCIIOIIS l,a:VfC:(!11 If\!: l\'lilll re'd ro,nr,•s 
f n oi:IN:r C11.1CS, cmclm.wc ll1tvic bcm mi Jc w1l y whm tlltfU 1111,'<' ~ 11anslld1D1U· willl th~ r.irlim-

Obj~frvH, jlQl~(CI :and:p~uu:c nfa,p5UII u,11n~ The C01J19,'U'I)' llll! no c.1pl11~1 01Mr 1h,in ~~ity Th<' C'-'fflpM)! 15 n1,11 C:\f'UIQl to tlfl)" ~l~nr)·im1~ ~pluiJ rtq11lrenwm, 

(Jo In Ulldt!:l 

O ul3l andlng •mou~II 
~arricd In lhc 1h futt 
Shcfl u 11n M1cch ., hi, 
lOJol 

(69,SO'l 00) 

HD 

.l5i41N 
1.440 1.S 

s., 

I.Ill 41 

6l.91l 

. 

10091 

• 17 

I IS 

. 

-
. 

1rn.111 

. 

tli :a.J, I I <'\J 1..- ~nxll 1lldl, al 11 Jd 1, l a.I ti ,IQ, I lq ll» 1,UI. 1· inli11cw[lhl~~ludihC.-..K'l.nul ,~l~cm:1N.g•cmc11I SR6..'iy11 f CJ1Plt:l!lisof ~ ,..,f!IIOll,<lil-"l\'LliftCl1l.,,_~ ,, n•~nc-- . "" •111 DUI. IJ Hl11111 1 1t11i ~ ..i,nr IJ.11 l i.rtn1 ,, ltlk'"!~I ... :i 1111alllllil 'C0nl llntlM 

1'111t'lktt•11J11. A11111 !\-brct1J1.211zs /u .. 1 Mu~h ll, l(IJ.4 \ 
Equil)' !<.llHQ 

11.%8G"./ 
AdJl.$'1\ffltl° 

T.n~i"jci Md ~lhc"r ;:i~S(i• [41,1'0 16\ (11,'°H'ill 
Wnr1tin ■ t11""l!■ I I '.)4J 09 t.l.0'7-)l 

1""11"-"i'I\ m t.4t.lu!.1I t ••wh lOJl 7~ m~• • 



811 ■ 1 Flnscn Hci:ilfh LlmUcd 
Notes lo flnanclalitalemenls for 1hr pef'lod rodtd M■ rd1 31, 1025 
(All omouols ;n INR hkhs, unlts,olherwise ,1,ieJ) 

Norr 2S: Pair Valur. Hierarc.hy 

I. F:al .- v1lve! Qf rinancl1I Jnurnmcnu nol melliluf"ed at fa ir ,•.al~c 

Fnlr nlut. or flnanctll ln51rum~nu nol tne~m.1ttd al raiir nlur as fll Msrt"h J I . 2025 i nd :ua,-th .31. 20:Z.rl 
Mt1nagemen1 con:.idci~ 1be carrying amounts. offi n,mciul l!sseu, Jnd fin-inCNII li1:1bi lit1n ,n the: financi-11 sUJlemcn,ls. e.xt:epl as per ru.uc: above 

2. Flnandal rl.sk n-u1in1 cr.mrnl oblttlh•ci and no lit{C'S 

!he principol linam::klt liabilitie:i; or 1.:ompan-'.)1 comprise lJade amJ other pay.11:i lf's. l~e Jiabili1ies. ·n,e main purpflse of these f'ioondal liabililies is to finonce 11,t opr:c;!l"\ons or compan.ya11 d to provid~ 
gt1.11ramees lo support 111 opttalions The pi im.ip:i I finnndail asseils af company im: ILiJr lrade .inti ocher receMlbl,.s, ar.J caih and cash equiva len1 s I hac dtri, f' dtr,~ Lfy uom ils operutiOrls ihe 
company is e,cpost:d 10 marktl 1i.!ik, c:rtdil I isk Tho. Group's u-nior nmnagemt'nl OVt'UltU the mana.~rnlffll or1t.es..- risks. 

Miukc-triik 
Morkei risk is ihe ri.sk tha t lhr: f3H valueoffhrure t:-ash flows of.u frn n(:iaf inst1ume:nc will rluctualc- btcause of c~nge:s in nlltrkt'I rulces. MaritC'11·isk compri.se-s 1hret- 1ypes: of risk: frnerc~I ~re rllik. 
c:un-cncy risk and olber price risk 

tnlcnst rale risk 
tnlc1"(:sl rate rh,k is lht .-lsk lhal lh( lair wlue or fu1ure Cilsh flows ofa fin:mdo11nslrum~nt will lh1.:nn,tr: becaus.e o(changes in m:arket int~'"'st mci:s. Tht:: exposure to the risk of c'\il.n~es in mark.el 
ln1cres1 rates rtfa [ts primarily 10 lht long ltrm len~, poymen1s. 

The Cornp;nny 1nvesrs 1hc surplus rund gc:m.,.aii:::d from uperti;tions in sho'1 ltrrn Jtpo..sit$ wilh hnnlk!S llntl mucu11l funds. Bank dtpo.s ils arc met.!~ for a short lcnn r,eti-04 ofupio 12 mooths i:arr:, i111erest 
1'3lr: as per-prtvaifin~ m~kec ir,, tert"St rale, Ccu,sidering. lhe.se b-all\k. deposits arc shalt ff'lffl in ru:iiun.-.. lhi:re is no si,:niticanI intettSt ralt 1isk 

Crt"di.t risk 
Crc:di1 risl. l$ the nsk lhal t:ouqltTp-nrty will not mc=(i i1sobllga1ionsundcr a fui.a11eiol inSINmC"n! or cusromer 1."0lllract, ICJM:flng IO a rin.aflCbt I~, Th.r: compilny 1.5 ~cscd co 1;rc-i.Jr ri:i.k fi-~>m ib 
opc.ffling ~«i~itic:s {prill).il,rily lradc ~iviiblr:~} .utlfl fiom ]15 fffl.ilneil'lg.activi1i~. rncluding ~~11,:nn, tkpa:;ils \l'dh b1nks and fi,mn-.:ial lt1sli11,1t~. and Olhtr fin.:in-ci :d tnsoumi:nl:s. 

F"ln.ant11l lns trumtn1s and <'Uh drposlt.s 
Cn:::dil risk from balances wL1h b.ink.s llnd tinaru:.:i:;i.l lnslilu rfons is m,magcd by rm:: fi.Mnce depa1un~n1 in accordamt:e with the guidafk:.e fi-omholtlinM company. rm·cs11•e111s orsurptus lunds arc m:u.lc­
only wi1h 3pprnved 1."0Unterpartlt".s keeping vii=w of credit I isk 85.Sod.~(eJ with c-Bch oountetp,;Jrt)' 
Pr1.1denl liquidity risJt m11-n.:ige,nefll irnpUei mllli11tainin~ -iumctent ea-5h.ar1d mar.kdable ~~ itil!.t :il'l\1 :,:v:ailabilltyof tundlna 10 meet obligatioru: wh4:;n due :;ind to •i.'IOSI:! out m:;irkel posi1k,ns 
Maruig,emen1 rrPOflilOTS f0ttcas1s- cif 1h~ liquidiry po.si1ioo or company and c-3:Sh and cash e1:1uival~°'s on rht basis: of exptttnl cosh nows 

The tiiible below -!i haw.san :1naly.ti.!l uf.i.u-tls aQd hoblliti~ analy~~d (mamrlty ~naly.sis) at:\'oi din,e. t-o whtn lhey .irt robe rrcovered or stllleJ 

P•rUrufar:1 
A1.s:e1.s 
PrOt)criy, plonl 0.ll41 ~c1ulpme.rd 
Rlgjn of Us" Ass,i:lS 
Oiher inEB"gi"ble assets 
O1ltcr ass"ls 
Cu11Tet1I rax assets (nel) 
ln·vcstmciits 
fro de: rc«iwhks 
Co:tl1 :md 1.:,1,sh cquiva.knts 
Security dtposil!li 
Othi.:r baLlnt.es WilJ1 hanks 
LCXIRS 

Olh.cr Financial ussc.•rs 
TaltifAt,itlt: 

Li•bllllles 
Pto~ioos 
Employee ht.nefil oblig;uion:S 
O1her cu1rt"nt liahilities 
Trade payoblcs 
L""'"-' liabHltics 
Olhcr fiNnt:i:11 liahililits 
lnblllal1i111in 

IN,1 

Nol, lti: C11nit1-I and od1e-r rommUme11Ui 
(bl Othtt Cummitincnts 

r•rtic:ular 

Within 11 month1 

-
-

I K.49R 15 
-

308 73 
l,104 Ill! 
6,442.14 

:l.75 00 

R,2-14 
l9.4R0.90 

],544 07 

18,598 17 
4,885 28 

670.46 
l../11"'61 

JR.515,26 

tl 014_,6\ 
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8aJ111J F•nn=rv HC"alrh l .fmhnJ 

NntN U:1 f-tn•11C'-b.l iuuc-mrn1:1 Cnr rt'li:: pttfod "ndcd l'\lDrth .JI, 1:Q!S 
(All anl(tUnrsin INR l::dchs-. unlc.s,iothcfwisc .sar,1cd) 

Tiu: t"OITI~h)' hl~ 1doJ1!~d the employee slod!. nr,llom pl.1'1, 201& (ESOP sc:hcmc} ronnt1l.1Led by its holdil'J!C:Otri(lM1f, rot ii~ cm;,to)1c:~ and C!Ylf11oye:c::s of it1 sub~1dHI rieJ, pur.111r,n1 10 1h, rcsohUioin p.1:-.i:cd byWn:holckts ~I the 11nn1t1tl ;cnc,_.I 
n,c-c:1 lni;i: Thi:: cmp&nyt:c ~oi::k oplJOn,; ph;:1n is dc.~11:ncd In ,-ovuk lnt"Cn[i,..c to 1hc tmplnytt!i. of lhc company In llcli'l/'tl loui; term r1:tu,~ 1mJ tr. •m t:(lulLyii;cUlc<l plrm l1K" ESOP !11::hcmc- ls. adm111n1C"1n1 by tbc lboan.l 11nd ho1Jin£:; comp11ny shares will 

bo.! ia:ruod u11dc1 the ~ch<'mll lo cn1ploycc.s P:irtic:i1i,11fon In lht pt11n 1, a~ th,; 80.1,tls~ chscre1lon ond no indl"id1J1111 ih:.J III contr1'C'Lu:i1 righL 10 p.t1nlclp.a.1ic HI LAC plan or 10 rt!cci\lt 11ny cu.inmlccd bcncfib>: (lptlons grnn100 urldcr f!SOr .scheme would 
veg m nor lieu tha11 one. )'CJ' und no.I mDJc 1ha11 lou, ,1-".JI"!, from 10C date ar wnrit nruc or"ions. The: board orrhc- company h11snpproYc:d ;.121nr with rd.,1cd v~lin.c cond11ion.1 Vcsims oflhc ap1tOru; ~•13uld be sub,f:d 10 oa111U\uo\u; tmploymc:nl wlih 
!he OOU-.fHW}' 111nJ htn0: l~ optlom would YCSI Wtlh lhc ('IIIMil~ or t11nt.: 

0f'!Ct ,~. lhc optioN •i:rNinsCJ:C'rci:.::Jhle f'-11 JI~ OJI\IIIC' )'Uflj: Op1ion.~ j~Qnle.d 1,01',L:J l.h\l cibn !We: f,vnoeM~idcr>Uo11 ~•ILi Qlll)"OO Ji\'i..h:ni.l ar l'fllinr; fillhb: On cxerti...:. i.:a-;11 ()Jttion~,:oi,vi:11ihlc ~()Of'IC'-CQl.iily:iil~rcnrUac.1RJldinfj 
(OlffpllR)' 

Pt:1rllr1ll11r.,: 

Opcn1n..i~ ofii:Nlrc b.iscd p:a)mcnt.11 1:u~i::tl'Qn 

Pii)'nlcur ID~':llrd :i.hruc h11iu:d pllo)'ll'lt:Jil 

I' l]Cl!SC nri::i;it1st fit'lru 5!1mrc. bot.i:d r..o}'mcfll ll'llll'5al:ltnn 
Cro~itl61' a~ nf ~;re. hn:i;C1I p;,Ylncnl lr.:ll1SIIC:lin1\ 

P1111111:11J•,, l ruudc,I M111•tl11 '1, 1111~ 

Opcnl~ b:;alnncc 
Cimnfi:-d diu lrtg ihc}',o;:11 

E.licrci~U chJrffll the- yei:ir 

lt'totlQtr 'blwi..-• 

F':tlr vJlohtt ~, &pthm~ tn.n1'ed 
1'r.1nch11 I 

S0,162 42 
4.49,R7J.4R 
;\,J.l,QJIIOO 

1 •1 n111 .~1 

Yur ended March ,1 , 1cus Yttr endtil Mflf't'~ .lt. 
l0:t4 

1,)05 ,n 71311 
l.41714 1.'141.48 
l,'48 19 1.J.m74 
1~1'-4> I J0.)47 

\t' iir •rul,t! M■"h JI. !RH 

49,ll~OO 
?,029,50 
1.Z1J 08 

Y:,J.f.LU 

Tl.c risir \,r;llu ,tt :al CNtnl 1i.nlc n f nr,lin11!1: e 111nfot.l r\ll M:ay11, 20:Zfl W"fl:I R!;; 1,3),A S{, T~ bit \r.:il,u~ i::il rra111 dnll! 1.,;; 1l1•Lc1mincJ u~n,: Ilic hbd.: ~hnPH t'llr.tlt!I, wh.i.i=h 111i..-e.i: hlln eiet:nufll 1tu!: t.<.:.,ttrcW! rtii!i.!, Ila= l~rm nf"!'Winl'I, 11'11.• 
,hnt pric:(' Ill !;101,t dglc ond C-[Utcd ,ohl.lilily of the l11td:11 lyir1Q sh;,rc. lhc C.li~ecled dMdclld )'ickl ;11\d thr:- tt":k a« in1e,a.11t•c for Lile I.CUii or 1b0 oplion 

Tullclrn Z 
The Rllr Villuc Ill v-an1 dl!llotofoptioru; Ct.in.ltd oo Ap1lr 2S, 2021 WII~ fUJ,) lO lf1. I he rill4 \rn lllc :it tf'Ar'II d.11c- ls dc(crminC"d mdn.1: the bli1dc.r,cl1.aN:., rnodd. whkh litll.oC'JI" 1/'l!Oi)((OUIIJ the CArn:!Sil: (K1CC. •hc.•ttm a f llp,IIIDJ11 
the. :\11111n: rnii:E:; :II g1 a11r d.illC ond c:tr,«led .,.alalllkyof Iha, unLlctl)'111g m.-11~ 1he c~pcc:n:d 11T\klct1d,yicld ud lhlll ri ::iik fftc intuc,;I nlc. fllr lhc: 1cnJ) i:iflh_r Dplion 

·rmnth.e ., 
1111; tllir Yn.k11! 11t l:l,t:lMI i..lnl'V of1;1p1ir.n~ i:nanlL"d lm flpnl ?J. 2022 w::1..,;; R:i. :5,01JJ 7fl The ra1r value 111 a,:,r.,nld:1tc is dci.i:1mini=d ll!iiDJ;. lhc hl11clc: !.c:hole!i mm.Id. wluch Joke.,;; ffllo occ:ounf the ucrci!IC pncc, t:llu lCTD"totnr11on. 

ltt'I: 1.Rlllrc pr~cc :it ;,nnl d::11c il,nd c"'pcc.t.td Yol;11ilily of1hc. umkriyin1: st.a1c, lhc: c,;pcclcd d fY1dicmf yield 1111d cl1t: rt.I.ii: rm:: inkTc:5' 1.!ilC! ror !he 1c1n1 o(1hc- apt!On 

T,..nchit 4 
The f.11lr YllllLJC 111 £1ilnl d:llc of ~JlioUA" srnn1cd on Aug!-111 l)l, 2022 .,.,,. IU S.SR 14 l he ,~11 ~luc BL gnuil d11tc ls dctronincd us.ins 1hc bl.,ck scholcs mockl 1 which 1111:ci,; ,n10 11C't'Ot11111hc e:imdsc p-rltc. Ulc term or <lplloo, 
1lto -;:lll$rc ri,ii::i: ~ gfflnl da,l.l And cxr,ee1c<l \rObllfoy or the unt!c.rl)'11~ sl-.arl!. 1hc c,i:pcctcd div{dcL,d yidJ ~nd the risk lice int~re.-;:t ,i,,c fur •he:: ,~mi oritw- Ctptlnn 

T,.nche .5 
Thi!: r.,[r v,11ILJ~ 11t t!illll dnte o("'llani&rnntc:d a,1 flpr1127,20~l w:-ir; Fu.: .-44 22. ~ lair ,'ftbn:: al ,&r.int"Jfl.[e kddm11!11etl ll~llt.G fie hl!ii!k 5eholt:5, 1•lmlct whi,ch h:ik~ lnrn acconnl the c.x:CJ't'i-.c priF:I!', lht' ler,noror,tKlfL ll'n! 
d111rr::: rmGc ill .i;::1an1 dntc m,d CJrf)C=ctal vg,IMili~)' 0(1hc lllllk1l)'rnP. 5hJn:. 1hc: c:,:po:t;tC'li dividend )'~d nnd 1tu: ri~ rTCc inle1c"il r:1111:! iirlht- tmn ot1hc Ofllkln 

Tranche 6 
The: fgir v11ilUC'..ul granl do1te of\:ipCNJ1u 11111nmJ 011 A.prU 21,2024 \"1.\.<; ~SI'/ ill The f41r Ylllut illl t.ran1.d21c: ~t.lt1c,mintd U$:iug ~,~ bbdc s:clwrts mG-d-:::1. 'l\hich 11;1~cs !1110 :;>,c,eounl •ht cx1;1,rt,;tprk:c, ihc- tcnn olaf!Cion. lhc. 
sJuu-c 111icc: -.=:Jt £,tanl daic o,ld c::~rcctcd vol:111il ilyof1heu111li:rf)in11, ~Jc.. the cicpe1'1cd JivfJcoJ yield liltkl lhc 1i!-~ frcc ic,tC'!Ci! rv1c ro, Ill( 11:nn n,fllt,1: nrilJon 

The model i Uflub: fo1 oc,1iPt"tS.lfl'M!cd: 
Tfl!ochc I T1an,c:hc2. l1oncht .l Tuind1c ◄ 

nl Oplion~ J:&flUltcd for 1-..n ""111.idi::1:uktn :im.J vc,1,1inQ pc:doll 11 1-4 )'\':Rll- I~ yc:u~ 1-4 yrari; I -4 )<orS 

b) E1:crc1st. ')lric:c R,;"4,702.0S pct 4JP\t011 ~ 10,H9 I 15 pc, opl io11 ~ 14 .f!26.4-0f)Crupflon H:5, l!li ,07J L per o,1Hon 
c)Gnmt.d:i~c P,,1Qy 21. 20,0 Apr 2R. 2n2 l Ar,• :n.2nu Au; 02. 2022 
dl Elerc:isc dllolc Moy 10, 2014 Apo 21. 202l Apr 2~. lff16 Aug 01, 2016 
t:J Sli;m: rw-t<-.; .ii s:1-11•1111,111-c R.i. ◄ ,70:!M H. IM?l ll l-t~Uj-1 u ,cn, 10 

f} E.11pcc1c-d prit.•c vntri1ili1ynrd1e campo,n)1r..11hnr~: 1S 56% ,1464~ :u 7'% JS 30% 
il f.xpi:ctcd diYidend yield 001•. ooso,, 001"/4 DJllo/, 
h) rhit Rtt INcrc:li.t rnl~ f,),"'". H9% 5.15% •42% 

Exr,ttted pr-kc YollltiD1y •~ b:i.t.~ on hllrnuc w1n1ihl)' (~don rcrua.I11ing llfc urflf)ffofl!I:}, 11~t11,1~d rorc.1tpt1Li1.il thani;.~ to'I fu1ure,11latih1y dut to 51uhli<.ly11v.:1il.ablc ti,ronnu110n 

Nnte l8 ; Cottttni;tel'III U11biliOu 
Tho oomp,1111)' h1u in 1;"t10t[n.i;:cnl linbllhlts In currcot)'l'M t<nd pri:Yious )'l:r1r 

N111c 19 ; J\.(kli1km1I Rtgul~tDII")' Rc:qulrc:mcnU 

ll R. ■ Un1 

R:tlhl N'umtl"llldr 

(Ill< 'lrm::fll Killkt 1C11ni:n1 Anet,:; 

(b) fh:htm 011 Eq11fly Rnlki "lli:I rr't(."{tfllc 

(C) Tffldc r«ci\l.ohlct lllrnovci rnllo HC\'t'.llllt' 

(dl T,n.Llc p;1yr;1blc.s lmnnvcr r.uio P111c!,o~i. 

~c) Nr-t capl1;al IUi'llull't.l rnllo ff.Q\IC®t" 

Hl Nc.c fl mfih rouo 1<c1 p1ofil 

ho Rc:turn on Cllpi"l.il crraploY=d Hai nlng be lore lnl~rc-sl rind lilX 

{)\l R.t"IUm on lnYCS11nct11 &mi.is: bc:for~ in1crc11 ,111d 1.111, 

Note~ 

Uu10mln11nr 

C1.1rr.c:nl l.iabilidrr. 
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f'tvtn,gc illCCOUUII, IC.C:Ci'l:lbh: 

A wince Jl'l'oun1s r,;iy.ihle 

Wo,1,;lng Ci.piUII 

N'i!'is:ilrs 

C.ptia1 c,nplnycd 

A~t11,tc,Opcro1i11~ asscis 

a) Dlsdo!.lllil:: oflnYcnlO!YTurnovc:r n111M:'l 1,; JIQI IIJ1,plic1blc.J1!1'. cl~ Comr1.1.n)' dee~ 1ml hold Jll1'j l(IYCl!lory 

"1'ulnd uded ~l11ri:-hJI, 1\1 tl Jiu Mirth, 2D1~ ':4 VurlSfttC 
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t,ur '" C'll:,ng,c ffl Re"®c 
R~~•P11 111,1 Pa,Uty 

l niri11.1'■'Cd M1nJin I.cad~ 
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1mr,ttwcd M:a1F,1n Lead!! 
lru,'IJ"n, ·-:1111H1 ;., R11tki 
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8.aJa,J ~lnscrv llc111 llh Ltmllcd 
Nntct1 1n Jill11 ■ r1 cl1l , r•le1ncnu fnr the pt'flr,d tndC'd ftl•tth J J, lOZ.S 
(Altumoul"lls ii rNR. lakM.un.tc~01hc1wlse Jl•,cd) 

II) ftt:hu loMhlp " " h Urv.c-k fJft (OJT\p•nla 

N1Uun of tr■n1ocllnnJ w'Jih 
~lnttk•n lf rn t 1.nn 

NII 

Nil 

Rtl1ilonst,lp "'ii )hr 
~1r ur1,, •If 4' fll "l • n, 

Rll'lal&.mJ-ilp ~ Uh th< 
1ftlt't: io. ol ~•r,, • :111-11\ 

lih 1!11 f11t.h. liihT M11 ,1!h•MTTd <T h~ic-l 1'111 lnw,k'tl totfv.r rP'M l11t11111t\-t:d 1u,u1', f, .J111rc:- 11 r~·m 1111n rv =i.n)I 11J~t, M.111t1~ 111r b[if \)(fltiKIJl l.y 1hr C'1""f-"'""" ,._, Ill" ~ 11,11~\\dlC'I r~h) or 
ffill~(i<"i\. 11'1Uidi,•11 ~1,t1, crnllk:I: rb1f1,.'ffl\CJP,....-l. 1,td• lftre M.1Ji.li.-l'>,lJ1n,lffl,i:. "I\C'll,i;.T Rt,;'DIL1r:J in ,mm~ "'t OU'IC'!WNE', 111111 lt-ic- ~1mt~•tlluir 1,h,dl whclhcr. drtnf~ Of ,~ocuft lcrtd m 
~1',1-1 tll illti.rt JIC'ft,,1..- nr ,i;l'lldkf. 1dcu1,fk:ll in oo,· e 1:;a11111("1 ~h.ntK~,.~·rh)'i•• •If• ti~it~II 111" tilt Cumr-,wl)'f~t;h1m~h• 1k1W(l',·i,1,ir,"'1..,... 1,..1,,lilc au;, fH1Kiit1fcc. ~url1y m 1~ lilrt' ,1111 h..◄tJilrnrllMI 

lflnr:m1~ !l,:ndid11lc11. 

h' I PM• lilud,,. hnr 1'c-.NI 1in•lft\.-rJ. Ir)' thri t"mr1r,.1"' (rrrp1 •1T) ~llllif"\. ni ntltl~lc$), lllcluJ,m; loreip cri1l1itn ("FuLKlin Pa11lu'l), w•lh lhc: unders11ndi,,1- whllltfm 1«n1,Cn lfl writfoc o, 
•~IIC', 11'llt lhc C'o11,,-,1r-•.a11. ,vhtlht 1. drr«tly,. 11JiJ'1~,1ly, knd u. uwn l ~, other poi'MHu 1u c:t.ll1la ldcntmcd in ill'Y't•U:rMcJ whAuocrva by or on bthalforth n1nJlnl! Pon)'{ .. Ullin1•tc 
lk~ltt"lllrw,."1 Cllf fW,.,...Mli:- II.ii} '1US".Hltc:<", IIC'i.\l•irtyfll 11)1! , ,ia., 11n h,·h.d1'rard1r \hLmmtc 8011:fi1,.'111{ie&. 

v) Thti Ca111pcruydo1»1 r,01 hlV~ fll)' l,en111,I propeny, wh:te IUl)I ,irocc-edir.g hn.1 he.en miri1ted or pendina 11.l!Plfll:14' lhc ~pu,y 1w holdlQ£: r,ny bcn11-rni f"'01kll'Y, 

vm, Tho. Canpeny hu c:omplid v.ith 1hll number nfl11)1:r.t p1t:ten'brd 1.111d~ r2nw:t(8}) nriw:Hon 1 o/d1t Ari r-~d Mill UlEl Camp11.111;!J; (k.cstrici:i'onan numb!, or Lay.nl A.ub.. 2011. 

kl,,. Con.,,.ny lru Ml UIIClcd inlo ,ny "''"""' or11r.11aemvi1 • ·liict1 r,ru "' Al~OUlll518 lm~""I 00 CIHtll'l•nt nr pttviou, r11111r.<i1I y,ar. 

,-1) The Co,mp,ny 11111' 1101 4r11ded or l,,,;esLcd h1 O)ptt, c::vm:rw::y or Vinu11I eurTCI1filyduring I.he currc::nl orlhc: pn:\·iou., lw!eot.dll ,:Ai , 

,m Thcl,Ct\1lljll.ff"y ha,a .~ 1n •ceatmlln& loftwilf'O rar .,,,.Jrunlning i(! ~ooks or,ii,:.cCM,inf whk:h MJ 81 fennttc orrn.iHdii, IIIIJ~h l lr&ll (edit bg) ,~wry ... l~c lilmc:i ha optr.icd tht01.1eht11.H chc 
)(Jr ror ■ It l'f:TcV1,al Lr,1rtJ1.criom ric::r::1;1irch:d Kl 1hr: sonwaJT, Al,o, lhrc h,ii\·\,': brc11 l"IJ lnsui11CC.s uf .;iudi1 ,,.n lkolure bcini •••tllfltn:d w~h. 

A■ ~u our TtlDOn orc,ircn dl1c 

Por KKC 8' M>O<~lc< UJ' 
Cf,a,1cr~.J ~t"(:01,1nl11~~:r 

(lbnn<Jtr Kh\mJI KunV<rjl 8' CO Ll.J') 
ICAI Finn R<Bi' .. Oion Numb<,, I051<6WIWI00621 

. . ::::,~ 

.' . .;-\~--­.,,>rr- 1......--::-- . 

~OOIIIJ Knmtnt11 
r111~r 
ICAI M<mbm~lp Nunlhu, I Ml66 
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OolO. 2 l>t A pol Z025 

On bckolrof 1,,r lkl1rd ofDln::cloni 
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r>lm:tOI' Oirc:ctor 
DIN U77'N126 Dlll:0007001Y 

~ 
'1ln1.nce l lc111dl 
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